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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ER R E

Pursues stability while maintaining sound, steady, and long-term operations

1TREE - &

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of Hengdeli Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (the “year” or the
“year under review”) for your review.

In 2024, the international environment was complex. Amid
intensifying geopolitical conflicts, regional wars and trade
protectionism, the momentum of world economic growth
remained weak. China’s total economic output achieved a
new breakthrough, however, there were still many risks and
hidden dangers. Confronted with complicated environment,
the Group adhered to the principle of “sound, steady and
long-term operations” and adjusted its business in line
with the market so as to maintain survival and pursue
development, making every effort to safeguard the interests
of shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded
revenue of RMB1,043,555,000 (31 December 2023:
RMB1,421,454,000), representing a year-on-year decrease
of 26.6%; high-end consuming accessories business
recorded revenue of RMB688,104,000 (31 December 2023:
RMB710,708,000), representing a year-on-year decrease of
3.2%; international commodity trading recorded revenue of
RMB355,451,000 (31 December 2023: RMB710,746,000),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 50.0%. The
Group recorded a loss of approximately RMB55,472,000
(81 December 2023: profit of RMB35,191,000) and
loss attributable to equity shareholders amounted to
approximately RMB65,161,000 (31 December 2023: profit
of RMB33,885,000), which was mainly due to the decrease
in sales and gross profit, the increase in depreciation
expenses on property as well as plant and equipment and
foreign exchange losses incurred by the operating units as a
result of exchange rate fluctuations.
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During the year under review, China’s economy was
under great pressure, which affected the Group's high-
end consuming accessories business to a certain extent.
However, the Group has adopted various measures to cope
with the complex operating environment, being stability-
rooted, pursuing development through innovation, actively
improving gross profit margin and reducing expenses.
During the year, although the sales of high-end consuming
accessories business declined slightly, the profit has
improved significantly compared with the same period last
year.

During the year under review, in the background where
the international economic environment was unpredictable,
the market prices of products such as mineral sand and
coal saw a volatility. The Group's international commodity
trade value and profit both declined compared with the
same period last year. In 2024, the global shipping market
for dry bulk cargo experienced an increased volatility as a
whole. The Group has always maintained its prudent and
steady business strategy by insisting on a customer-oriented
approach and ensuring the safety of ship navigation as it
seized new opportunities to expand its business. In addition
to deepening its efforts in the traditional shipping routes, the
Group opened up a bauxite shipping route between Turkey
and China for the first time and signed a long-term shipping
agreement. During the year, both revenue and profit from
the Group’s shipping business achieved impressive results.

The Group’'s core values of “respect, commitment,
cooperation and innovation” have enabled us to build a
solid foundation for corporate governance and fulfill social
responsibilities. Believing that business coexists as a part
of society and prospers along with it, the Group, apart from
its efforts in achieving business results and creating brand
value, has been improving its social values by protecting the
environment, managing environmental quality, conserving
resources and developing talents. The Group also actively
participated in public welfare activities with an aim of
growing together and sharing with the community.
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At present, the global political situation is experiencing a
high degree of unrest, making the business environment
remain complicated and grim. Apart from adverse impacts
brought about by changes in the external environment, the
economic performance of Mainland China also confronts
certain difficulties and challenges in its own development.
However, with the stable foundation, strong resilience
and great potential, it is undisputed that the supporting
conditions and basic trend for facilitating the China’s
economy to achieve growth in long run. With continuous
implementation and improvement of multiple measures by
the Chinese government to “pursue stability while seeking
progress”, it is believed that the momentum of Mainland
China’s economic development will continue to strengthen
and achieve sustainable growth.

In the new year, the Group will continue to adhere to the
principle of “sound, steady, and long-term operations”, and
will leverage the stable business environment in Mainland
China that “pursues stability while seeking progress” to
keep abreast the market trends and further advance the
process of international trade in a prudent and steady
manner. Additionally, the Group will continuously expand
and strengthen the international shipping business which
is closely related to international trade, and strive to
become a stronger participant in the international shipping
supply chain and achieve new breakthroughs in corporate
development.

The Group will continue to adapt to market demands and
continuously enhance the service standard of its integrated
services for commercial space in both Mainland China and
international markets. The Group will continuously adjust
the manufacturing of high-end accessories for renowned
watches while embarking on a limited number of diversified
business activities to include the manufacturing of high-
end consuming accessories in high-end lifestyle products
such as jewellery, cosmetics and mobile phones, and to
expand its commercial space beautification services to
include living space beautification services, thus becoming
an indispensable independent segment in the industry
ecological chain of high-end consuming accessories.
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On behalf of the Group, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, suppliers, customers and
other business partners for their ongoing trust and support
and to all our staff members for their dedication and
wholehearted contributions over the past year.

By order of the Board
Cheung Wing Lun Tony
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2025
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The directors of the Company are pleased to present to you
this report and the audited accounts of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group’s business
was primarily focused on the manufacturing of high-end
consuming accessories, building up of high-end consuming
service platforms, international commodity trading and its
related supply chain services.

High-end Consuming Accessories Service

The Group has a relatively mature industrial chain for high-
end consuming accessories manufacturing, mainly covering
the manufacturing of watches, jewellery, cosmetics and
accessories and packaging products, commercial space
design, production and decoration. The companies are
mainly located in Suzhou, Guangzhou and Dongguan.

The two companies, “Guangzhou Artdeco” and “Dongguan
Born Talent”, mainly produce high-end watch boxes and
watch accessories for various types of watches. After years
of development, we have achieved great success in all
aspects. We have transitioned from low-end products to
high-end products, from simple processing to independent
innovative designs, and from purely handmade to products
automated.

“Suzhou Henge” is a commercial space integration
service enterprise engaged in design, production, on-site
installation and after-sales service, comprising the design
and decoration for each type of counters, props and various
stores.

After years of development, all companies under the Group
have achieved ISO9000 quality management certification,
which provides strong support for the manufacturing
of high-quality products; the companies have earned a
solid reputation in their respective fields, forming tight
relationships, mutual trust and interest sharing with brand
suppliers. Moreover, a wide customer base covering China,
Switzerland, the United States and other countries in the
Asia Pacific region has been established. The application
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of advanced information management systems, such as the
industry-leading ERP, BIM, and MES, provides practical
guarantee for efficient and compliant corporate operation.

During the year under review, the economy in China was
under heavy pressure and the Group’s high-end consuming
accessories business was affected to a certain extent.
However, the Group took various measures to cope with
complicated operating environment. The Group laid a solid
foundation to maintain stability, sought development driven
by innovation, continuously broadened its business modes,
expanded new customers, developed new products and
enhanced the gross profit margin. The Group standardized
and strengthened its informational and automatic
management, and strived to achieve integrated management
of pre-prevention, mid-inspection and post-correction. All
measures mentioned above achieved remarkable results,
and expenses were effectively reduced. During the year,
although the sales of the high-end consuming accessories
business declined slightly, its profits improved significantly
as compared to the same period last year.

In the new year, the Group will adapt to market changes
and adjust such businesses as appropriate, further
strengthening the industrial management together with
technical R&D and innovation, taking quality as the priority
and driving growth by innovation. We will continue to seek
opportunities to conduct vertical and horizontal industry
integration of products, so as to maintain and improve
our leadership in the industry. The Group will focus on
expanding the development in manufacturing of high-end
consuming accessories, and engage in deeper cooperation
with brands and international counterparts in various ways.
The Group will continue to enhance the service standard
of its integrated services for commercial space in Mainland
China and international markets. The Group will also fully
embark on a limited number of diversified business activities
to capitalize on the potential of the manufacturing of high-
end consuming accessories in other high-end lifestyle
products such as jewellery, cosmetics and mobile phones,
and to expand its commercial space beautification services
to include living space beadutification services, striving to
become an indispensable independent segment in the
global industry ecological chain of high-end consumption.
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International Trading

During the year under review, in accordance with the
established strategy, the Group continued to carry out
the international commodity trading business. During the
year, the business mainly covered the importation of iron
ore, thermal coal and coking coal to Mainland China. The
unpredictable international economic environment, coupled
with the implementation of the policy restricting crude steel
production in some cities in China, weakened the demand
for iron ore and the market prices of products such as ore
sand and coal were volatile. As a result, the trade volume
and profit of the Group’s international commodity trading
business decreased as compared to the same period
last year. During the year, the Group planned to build a
bulk cargo transshipment logistics park in Mexico, which
integrates customs clearance, import, transportation and
warehousing, and is dedicated to serving large-scale
enterprises in China.

In the new year, the Group will continue to monitor market
conditions as it prudently pursues international commodity
trading activities and explores new profit models while also
pursuing its future development and laying a solid foundation
for the Group’s sustainable development.

International Shipping

During the year under review, in line with the Group’s
established strategic direction and the development of its
international trading business, the Group continued the in-
depth development of its international shipping business
which mainly focused on global maritime transportation of
dry bulk cargo, such as steel, coal, iron ore, manganese
ore, food and industrial salt.

In 2024, the global shipping market for dry bulk cargo
experienced an increased volatility as a whole. The Group
seized the opportunities of the rising market to vigorously
expand its business by developing new customers and
signing long voyage transportation contracts with its
customers to lock in long-term profits for the Company.
During the year, the Group successfully developed a
series of well-known large-scale mining, power and steel
enterprises at home and abroad, such as CHN Energy
Investment Group, Yancoal Australia Limited, Tianyuan
Manganese Industry Group, Steel Authority of India Limited,
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and ArcelorMittal Group. In addition to engaging in the
traditional transportation routes, the Group opened up
its first bauxite transportation route between Turkey and
China and signed long-term transportation agreements with
renowned companies in Turkey, which yielded relatively
satisfactory returns. On this basis, the Group’s shipping
business achieved good results in terms of revenue and
profit during the year.

With China being a major importer of bulk raw materials in
the world, although there are some uncertainties in global
economy growth and demand from China, the fundamentals
of long-term upward trend of Chinese economy remain
unchanged. In the coming year, the Group will continue
its expansion in China’s shipping market and provide
existing customers with better-quality shipping service.
Simultaneously, the Group is maintaining its prudential and
stable operating strategy as it looks to the international
market to broaden its customer base, new cargoes and
new routes to enhance the Company’s vessel capacity and
competitiveness, while maintaining stringent cost control
to achieve healthy and stable profit growth and positively
contribute to the Group’s further development.

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s operations, financial condition, business
directions and prospects may be affected by various risk
factors and uncertainties. The major risks and uncertainties
for the Group are identified below. Except as stated below,
there may be other risks and uncertainties unknown to the
Group or not material at present but could become material
in the future.

Strategy Risk

The business environment in the market keeps changing
over time. Setbacks in economic activities pose a
particularly adverse effect on the sale of high-end products.
As a service provider of high-end brands, if our strategies
are unable to predict or adapt to the changes, the Group
may suffer from uncertainty risk. In this regard, the Group
will closely monitor the market and revise our strategic
approaches from time to time in order to put us on track for
healthy growth and mitigate potential impacts of risks on the
business.
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Commodity Risk

Currently, the Group’s business and operating results to
some extent rely on brand suppliers. If brand suppliers
no longer appoint the Group as their service provider, or
there arise quality issues regarding their services, there will
be a risk that the Group’s operating results may fluctuate
vigorously. The Group has maintained good cooperative
relationships with many international brand suppliers, so
that the risk of reliance on any single brand supplier can
be reduced, which leads to the continuous health of the
Group’s business.

The Group is currently engaged in the international trading
business. Factors such as price trends of trading products
or changes in customer demands are beyond our control
and any adverse changes in such factors could have
material adverse impact on the Company’s operating results.
Therefore, the Group will monitor the international situation,
the price trends of products and customer demands closely
to reduce the risks therefrom.

Operation Risk

Operation risk refers to the risk that losses will be incurred
because of the shortage or failure of an internal business
process, staffing or system, or attributable to an external
event. Managing the operating risk is, in general, the duty of
each functional department. The Group is of the opinion that
operating risk cannot be eliminated entirely and will have an
impact on our operating results and earnings.

The Group has issued guidance about internal standard
operating procedures, authorities and reporting hierarchy.
The internal audit department will identify and assess
major operating risks and report any such risk to senior
management for appropriate countermeasures. Take
inventory control as an example, besides scientific
management and stringent controls on its operating process,
the Group will also make provisions so as to control risk to
the greatest extent.

m Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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Financial Risk

The Group’s financial risks mainly include market risk
and liquidity risk. Monetary condition, interest rates and
interest rate cycles may pose a risk to the financial position,
operating results and business of the Group.

Market risk refers to the risk that the Group’s earnings
and capital or the ability to achieve the desired business
goals may be adversely affected by changes in exchange
rates and interest rates, etc. The Group timely monitors the
relative foreign exchange positions of assets and liabilities
and makes appropriate adjustments to minimize foreign
exchange risk. Interest rate risk is regularly managed and
monitored by the Group’s senior management.

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group is unable to
obtain sufficient funds or realize assets, leading to failure
of meeting its contractual obligation when it falls due. In
managing liquidity risk, the Group monitors cash flow and
maintains adequate capital and credit facilities to ensure the
supply of funds for the Group’s operations and to reduce the
impact of fluctuations in cash flow.

Talent Pool Risk

Recruiting the right people is an essential factor for the
development of an enterprise. Competition is intense in
the industry and regions in which the Group operates its
business. The shortage or loss of personnel with appropriate
skills or experience could pose a potential risk impacting
the Group’s ability to achieve its goals. The Group provides
competitive salaries and benefits as well as various
incentives to attract the right talent so as to satisfy the needs
of corporate development.

OUTLOOK

At present, the global political situation is experiencing
a high degree of unrest, and the business environment
remains complicated and grim. In addition to the adverse
effects from the changes in the external environment, the
economy of Mainland China also suffers certain difficulties
and challenges in its own development. However, China’s
economy has a stable foundation, strong resilience and
great potential, and the long-term positive supporting
conditions and basic trends remain unchanged. With
multiple measures further implemented and improved by
the Chinese government to “pursue stability while seeking
progress”, it is believed that the momentum of Mainland
China’s economic development will continue to strengthen
with sustainable growth.
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In the new year, the Group will continue to adhere to the
principle of “sound, steady, and long-term operations”, and
will leverage the stable business environment in Mainland
China that “pursues stability while seeking progress” to keep
abreast of the market trend and further advance the process
of international trade steadily. Additionally, the Group
will continuously expand and strengthen the international
shipping business which is closely related to international
trade, and strive to become a stronger participant in the
international shipping supply chain and achieve new
breakthroughs in corporate development.

The Group will continue to adapt to market demands and
continuously enhance the service standard of its integrated
services for commercial space in both Mainland China and
international markets. The Group will continuously adjust
the manufacturing of high-end accessories for renowned
watches while embarking on a limited number of diversified
business activities to include the manufacturing of high-
end consuming accessories in high-end lifestyle products
such as jewellery, cosmetics and mobile phones, and to
expand its commercial space beautification services to
include living space beadutification services, thus becoming
an indispensable independent segment in the industry
ecological chain of high-end consuming accessories.

COMPLIANCE OF LAWS AND REGULATIONS

To the knowledge of the Company, there was no major
change to the relevant laws and regulations that have major
impacts on the business and operation of the Group for
the year. Also, the Group has complied with such laws and
regulations in all major respects covering sale of products,
protection offered by online platforms to brand suppliers,
labor standards, environment protection and anti-corruption
and bribery prevention policies.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group maintained a sound and stable financial position.

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded
revenue of RMB1,043,555,000 (2023: RMB1,421,454,000),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 26.6%; the revenue
from high-end consuming accessories business amounted
to RMB688,104,000 (2023: RMB710,708,000), representing
a year-on-year decrease of 3.2%; the revenue from
commodity trading amounted to RMB355,451,000 (2023:
RMB710,746,000), representing a year-on-year decrease of

50.0%.

Breakdown of revenue: (for the year ended 31 December)
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s gross
profit amounted to approximately RMB148,758,000 (2023:
RMB215,265,000), representing a year-on-year decrease
of 30.9%. Gross profit margin was approximately 14.3%
(2023: 15.1%), representing a year-on-year decrease of 0.8
percentage points. The decrease in gross profit and gross
profit margin was mainly attributable to the fluctuations
in commodity trading prices and a decrease in sales
transactions during the year.

Loss for the year

The Group recorded a loss of RMB55,472,000 during the
year (2023: profit of RMB35,191,000), representing a year-
on-year decrease of 257.6%. Loss attributable to equity
shareholders amounted to RMB65,161,000 (2023: profit of
RMB33,885,000), representing a year-on-year decrease
of 292.3%. The loss for the year was mainly attributable to
the decrease in sales and gross profit and the increase in
depreciation expenses on property, plant and equipment
and foreign exchange losses incurred by the operating units
as a result of exchange rate fluctuations.
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Financial status and net debt to equity ratio

The Group maintained a sound and stable financial
position. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had total
equity of RMB3,279,504,000 (2023: RMB3,245,634,000)
and net current assets of RMB1,878,500,000 (2023:
RMB1,855,619,000), with cash and cash equivalents
and deposits with bank of RMB1,266,636,000 (2023:
RMB1,309,252,000) and total bank loans of RMB58,003,000
(2023: RMB94,136,000). As at 31 December 2024,
bank loans bearing interests at floating rates of 2.3% to
3.2% (2023: 2.3% to 3.7%). As at 31 December 2024,
approximately 78% (2023: 80%) and 22% (2023: 20%)
of bank loans were denominated in RMB and NTD,
respectively. The maturity profile of bank loans is set out in
note 23 to the accompanying financial statements. During
the year under review, there was no sign of significant
changes in the Group’s demand for loans in a particular
quarter.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s total debt amounted
to RMB58,003,000 (2023: RMB94,136,000). The net debt
to equity ratio of the Group was approximately zero (2023:
zero) (Net debt is defined as total debt (which includes total
interest-bearing borrowing) less cash and cash equivalents).
It established a solid foundation for the further business
expansion of the Group.

The Group adopts prudent treasury policies in financial and
cash management, manages bank credit availability and
monitors risks of credit cost centrally in various ways. The
Group maintains a good partnership with a number of banks
which provide financing facilities, and reviews its funding
liquidity and financing needs regularly.

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

ERGH

Bﬁ“ﬂﬁzﬁ&@ﬁﬁﬁéx' :

@
N
~
«©
‘o
(S
S
o
o
(@]
Sl
>~
A
3%
4
EI

- = ¢ : 3,245,634,00070) © A& B 3
# {E 51,878,500,000T (= & = = F:
1,855,619,0007T) - AR KRS EEY
A 4R 17 177 X A1,266,636,0007T (= T —
£ :1,309,252,0007t) + M RITE KA & £ 7
58,003,0007T (==& — =4 : 94,136, 00075)
W-ZB-mE+=-A=+—08 ' BTEFIRYT
FFRFE - HF R E23%E32% (T ==
F:238%E37%)c RZE-_WME+=_H=+
—H  RITERBPL78% (T -=4F : 80%)
LAARBEE  22% (ZZE =4 : 20%) LAH
BMEE - RITEXRIAEESRHREEN 2
B HRANE23 - BEFEERN @ WEBRIA
SR EBEERKERENTEAS (LB -

Jh“ IH

RZZEZWEFE+ZA=+—H A5EEHE
& A ARKS8,003,000t (ZE=Z=F: AR
#94,136,0007T) - EFBEREL XN AT
(ZE2EZ=F:T)(FEEEER: ABEERE
(BIEFTEEELTE) RReRREEEY) - &
SEEBRNE-—FPHRET TRENER -

AEBEYHRASRREEEE OB
% BAEEETEE USESRERET
TRGEEEEREREERARR  A%ER
SRRHBANRITRBRTNEEBER
F - THEASRBERBESRIH TSR
5 o

FARFIEE A R A

B AR



REPORT OF DIRECTORS

EE R

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in HKD,
RMB and USD. Therefore, the Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risks. During the year under review, the Group
has been actively monitoring its foreign exchange risk and
will adopt a foreign exchange hedging policy for significant

foreign exchange risks.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had land and buildings
equivalent to RMB170,687,000 (2023: RMB179,902,000)

pledged as security for mortgage.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no material

contingent liabilities (2023: Nil).

Current assets

As at 31 December 2024, the current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2,105,424,000 (2023:
RMB2,170,351,000), comprising inventories of approximately

RMB175,432,000 (2023: RMB258,115,000),

other receivables of approximately RMB616,205,000 (2023:
RMB558,072,000), loans to associates of approximately
RMB34,719,000 (2023: RMB33,789,000), cash and cash
equivalents and deposits with banks of approximately

RMB1,266,636,000 (2023: RMB1,309,252,000).

As at 31 December 2024, cash and cash equivalents of
approximately 22% (2023: 19%), 54% (2023: 49%) and 24%
(2023: 32%) were denominated in RMB, HKD and other

currencies, respectively.
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Current liabilities

As at 31 December 2024,
Group amounted to approximately RMB226,924,000
(2023: RMB314,732,000), comprising bank loans of
approximately RMB45,953,000 (2023: RMB76,653,000),
trade and other payables of approximately RMB168,777,000
(2023: RMB226,920,000), lease liabilities of approximately
RMB9,188,000 (2023: RMB8,313,000) and current taxation of
approximately RMB3,006,000 (2023: RMB2,846,000).

the current liabilities of the

Capital structure

The Company’s capital structure is composed of issued
share capital,
December 2024, the issued share capital of the Company
was 4,404,018,959 shares (2023: 4,404,018,959 shares),
with reserves and accumulated profits of RMB3,188,320,000
(2023: RMB3,164,782,000) in total.

reserves and accumulated profits. As at 31

Significant investment, material acquisition and

disposal
The Company has no material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the

year under review, except as disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Except as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
the Company did not hold other significant investments
during the year under review.
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THE COMPANY

During the year, the Group’s business was primarily focused
on the manufacturing of high-end consuming accessories,
the construction of high-end consuming service platforms,
international commodity trading and its related supply chain

services.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company
which materially affect the results, assets and liabilities
of the Group are set out in note 14 to the accompanying

financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the aggregate amount
of distributable reserves of the Company was
RMB1,209,490,000 (31 December 2023: RMB1,192,072,000),
which is set out in note 28 to the financial statements in this

annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The Company’s ability to pay dividends depends on, the
Group’s current and future operations, liquidity position
and capital requirements. The payment of dividends by the
Company is also subject to compliance with any restrictions
under the Laws of the Cayman Islands, the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Board will review
the dividend policy from time to time and may exercise at
its absolute and sole discretion to update, amend, and/or
modify the policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any

particular amount for any specific period.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the financial year ended 31 December 2024

(2023: Nil).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and the laws of the
Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The summary of the Group’s results and assets and
liabilities in the last five financial years (for the year ended
31 December) are set out on page 85 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year under review, neither the Company nor
its subsidiaries repurchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities (including the sale of treasury
shares) (2023: Nil).

As of 31 December 2024, the issued share capital of the
Company was 4,404,018,959 shares (31 December 2023:
4,404,018,959 shares).

TREASURY SHARES

As of 31 December 2024, the Company did not hold treasury
shares (2023: Nil).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share award scheme

On 25 March 2015, a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) was adopted by the Company to recognize
the contributions of certain participants to the Company and
to attract suitable personnel for the further development of
the Company.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid for a term
of ten (10) years commencing on the adoption date. The
Board may select any participants, other than any excluded
participants, for participation in the Share Award Scheme
and determine the award amount for the purchase of the
awarded shares to be awarded to the selected participants,
among which:
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The “Participant” refers to (i) any senior management
employees, including without limitation the directors,
executive officers and manager-grade employees, whether
full time or part time, employed by the Company and/or
its subsidiaries from time to time; and (ii) any consultants
employed by the Company and/or its subsidiaries;

The “Excluded Participant” refers to (i) at the time of
the proposed grant of an award under the Share Award
Scheme, any Participant whose service in the Company
or its subsidiaries (as the case may be) does not exceed
one year from the expiry date of his or her probationary
period as stated in his or her employment contract with the
Company or its subsidiaries (as the case may be), or (ii) any
Participant who is resident in a place where, in the view of
the Board or the trustee of the Share Award Scheme (the
“Trustee”) (as the case may be), the grant, vesting and/
or settlement of the awarded shares pursuant to the terms
of the Share Award Scheme at the time of the proposed
grant, vesting and/or settlement is not permitted under the
laws and regulations of such place, or compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations of such place makes it
necessary or expedient to exclude such Participant.

The Board is entitled to impose any conditions (including a
period of continued service within the Group), as it deems
appropriate in its absolute discretion with respect to the
entitlement of the selected Participants to the awarded
shares. No consideration for the awarded shares is needed
to be paid by the selected Participants to the Company. The
Board shall not make any further award of awarded shares
which will result in the nominal value of the shares awarded
by the Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
adoption date. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected Participant under the Share Award
Scheme in a 12-month period shall not exceed 0.5% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date
or such number of shares as determined by the Board from
time to time.
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There is no minimum vesting period for the awarded shares
awarded under the scheme, provided that the Board shall
have absolute discretion to determine the vesting conditions
for any awarded shares. The Share Award Scheme does not
require the grantees who are awarded the awarded shares
to accept the awards within a prescribed time period, but
in the event that the Company receives a rejection letter
within three (3) business days from the date of the offer
letter issued for the awarded shares, the Company’s offer to
the grantees shall for all intents and purposes be deemed
withdrawn from the outset as if no offer letter had ever been
issued.

If the Company decides to award the awarded shares
to the Participant under the Share Award Scheme, the
Company will instruct the Trustee to acquire the shares
of the Company on the Stock Exchange, and the Trustee
will transfer such awarded shares to the Participant upon
vesting. No consideration for the awarded shares is needed
to be paid by the persons who are awarded the awarded
shares to the Company or the Trustee. For the avoidance of
doubt, all awarded shares awarded and to be awarded are
existing shares of the Company, and no new shares will be
issued for the Share Award Scheme.

The Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the tenth
anniversary date of the adoption date (i.e. 25 March 2025)
or such date of early termination (whichever is earlier) as
determined by the Board.

During the year, the Company did not grant any awarded
shares to the employees of the Group (2023: Nil). As of
the date of this annual report, the total number of shares
of the Company available for award under the Share
Award Scheme was 435,437,095 shares, representing
approximately 9.89% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company.
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Share Option Scheme

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
15 May 2015, the share option scheme was adopted
conditionally. The share option scheme of the Company (the
“Share Option Scheme”) was adopted to grant options to
selected participants including but not limited to directors
and employees of the Group as incentives or rewards
for their contributions to the Group. Subject to any early
termination as may be determined by the Board, the Share
Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten
years commencing on the adoption date, with a remaining
life of approximately two months as of the date of this annual
report.

Under the Share Option Scheme, subject to the discretion
of the directors, there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised. Each option
has a maximum valid period of ten years after which the
option shall lapse. The total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options (including share
options exercised and outstanding) granted to the eligible
participant in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue. Any further grant of options to such
participant which would result in the shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such further grant representing in
aggregate over 1% of the shares issued by the Company,
must be subject to separate approval by shareholders,
with such participant and his or her close associates (or
associates (if such participant is a connected person))
abstaining from voting. The exercise price shall not be
less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer; (ii) the average of the closing
prices per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares.
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Under the Share Option Scheme, the grantee shall accept
the option within ten days from the date of the offer to grant
the share option and pay HKD1.00 to the Company as
consideration for the grant upon acceptance of the option.

As of the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares of the Company available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme was 478,437,095 shares, representing
10.86%
Company, and there was no option outstanding (2023: Nil).

of the total number of issued shares of the

During the year under review, the Company also did not
grant any option (2023: Nil).

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

under review and as of the date of this report, none of the
Directors were considered to have any interests in any
business which competed or may compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group required to
be disclosed under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into service contracts with each
of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors for a term of three
years. The Company did not enter into service contracts
that cannot be terminated without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation) within one year.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director has
entered into any service agreements with any members of
the Group.

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
ERGH

RIZFEBRAEFTE  ARAFTRARBREBER
RELONBHEF T BRER  RERBRE
B AR AR AEE1.00T FTAREHERE
PR ERIR T 2B -

HEAFTRAH  BEBREASIT FEITZ
NRF D BE 478,437, 0950% » (AR RIE
BTN 482 10.86% » 4 1 R 1T BY BB A 4
ZE=FE) c ARAREEFEANE
BREEMERE (ZT=F: &) -

EERNHIFRB 2B
BAFHRREN  DEFEANRBERRSEH

HiE MEEERIASNEMNERLFEERER
SEZEBERBFRATREBAHT 2 EBP
BRERBEEEBARXZMARAAESZ LHR
Al (T EMRA]) BAFREZEE -

EEZRBEN

ARBRENTES  FRTEF KRB
TEFHFERBEH - BRE=F - ARRR
BEAIUAAR—FATTEE FRAEREIN)
M IR IRTE B4

BRAFRFEIN EEMBEELAKBEMKE
NCIEIVASSENIS

AR PR A PR T

2-mern QEFT



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
RS

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION AND
DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, the
Directors, among others, shall be entitled to be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
shall or may incur or sustain by or about the execution of
their duty in their offices.

A directors’ and officers’ liability insurance is in place to
protect the Directors and officers of the Group against any
potential liability arising from the Group’s activities which
such Directors and officers may be held liable.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS AND THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER’S MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

During the year, save as disclosed under the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual
report and related party transactions disclosed in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements, no Directors
or any entities connected with Directors had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business, subsisted during the year under review.

Save as described in this annual report, during the year
under review, there was no contract of significance between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID DIRECTORS/
EMPLOYEES

Details of remuneration of the Directors made in accordance
with specific basis during the year under review are set out
in note 7 to the accompanying financial statements.

Details of remuneration of the five highest paid individuals
during the year under review are set out in note 8 to the
accompanying financial statements.

Details of remuneration of the senior management during
the year under review are set out in note 30(a) to the
accompanying financial statements.

The remuneration policies of the Group are as follows:

N The amount of remuneration for the Directors or the
employees is determined according to their relevant
experience, responsibilities, workload and years of
service in the Group;

7 The non-monetary benefits are determined by the
Board and are provided in the remuneration package
of the Directors or the employees;

7 The Directors and the eligible employees shall
be granted with options or awarded shares of the
Company as determined by the Board to be part of
their remuneration package.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit scheme are set out
in note 25 to the accompanying financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY OF
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2024, the interests or short positions of
each of the Directors and chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO; or were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are deemed or taken to have under
such provisions of the SFO);
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

and were required to be

of Listed Issuers of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Name of Director and

EERBETBRARREEARALQFH
EMEBEEZERSD - BEROKE
ERoERRAR

R-ZE-_WNFE+-_A=+—H BEERESTT
BABRARA REBEEE (ERR(EHFR
HEIRA) (BBEOES1E) [ BHRPEKRK
1§|JJ EXVED) Brfn - MR RERET - B
RIBE B S RS GG E3526 LR AR RIAT
FEZ2ERMRAZEZIOAR  IRBEEFR
Hﬂﬁflﬂﬁﬂ%xvﬂ%?&%@h  EBAARR A
RE Rz Emaonk B (BIEBEFES RBAEK
RS e f&ﬁ%&;ﬂfﬁﬂ%ﬁf’ﬂzﬁﬁﬁ’w&ﬁ
KRB ) &*E%Ftﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%tﬁﬂﬂ%%i&
TEHFR %E’J’H EFRIFRE - BBAARQ
B P 2 e RORBIAR -

Approximate

Chief Executives Nature of Interest Number of shares Percentage
(Note 3)
EERESITHRABES EEME ROEE KNAEDLE
(H17#3)
Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony Interest of Controlled
Corporation (Note 1)
SRIOKBE ST RIS EEER (1) 1,365,245,877R%(L) 31.00%
Mr. Zhang Yuping Interest of Controlled Corporation
and Beneficial Owner (Note 2)
BT R L REtEEREa R ESEE A (HH22) 748,902,047 % (L) 17.00%
Mr. Huang Yonghua Beneficial Owner
EmOKELA EnEEA 56,172,8008%(L) 1.28%
Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan Beneficial Owner
AL E EnEAA 5,920,0008%(L) 0.13%
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The letter “L” denotes the person’s long positions in the
Shares.

Note 1:Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony owned 100% of the issued
share capital of Empire Charm Limited (“Empire Charm?”),
which in turn held 1,365,245,877 shares of the Company as
at 31 December 2024. Accordingly, Mr. Cheung Wing Lun
Tony was deemed to be interested in 1,365,245,877 shares
of the Company, representing 31.00% of the issued share
capital.

Note 2:Mr. Zhang Yuping owned 100% of the issued share capital
of Best Growth International Limited (“Best Growth”), which
in turn held 657,178,447 shares of the Company as at 31
December 2024. During the year under review, Mr. Zhang
Yuping held 91,723,600 shares of the Company under his
name. Accordingly, Mr. Zhang Yuping was deemed to be
interested in a total of 748,902,047 shares of the Company,
representing 17.00% of the issued share capital.

Note 3:Shareholding percentage is based on 4,404,018,959 issued
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Directors and chief
executives of the Company were aware, as at 31 December
2024, none of the Directors and chief executives had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO; or were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO);
and were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Listing
Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS FEREEFEARAATKRHL - HEARK
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, ¢ NERZEZEEZNRE
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF

THE COMPANY

As far as the directors were aware, as at 31 December @mEZEFME RS -_NWE+—-_F=+—
2024, the interests or short positions of the persons in the B - RAAAFRG HERHO L EEBSHES
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company IR#EZ A5 L HIEEHIFE3361E - RAARZET1Z

which were recorded in the register required to be kept by T &M AZRBEEZIAENATHOT :
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:
Approximate
Percentage
Name of Shareholder Number of shares (Note 4)
KWEDH
fRER A ROEE (Hiit4)
Empire Charm Limited
EHBRAA 1,365,245,87 7% (L) 31.00%
Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony (Note 1)
SRKBEE A (HfaET) 1,365,245,87 7% (L) 31.00%
Best Growth International Limited
IR AR A A 657,178,4478%(L) 14.92%
Mr. Zhang Yuping (Note 2)
wBEEAE (Hz2) 748,902,047 F%(L) 17.00%
The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Limited (Note 3)
The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Limited (#77£3) 437,800,0000% (L) 9.94%
The Swatch Group Limited (Note 3)
The Swatch Group Limited (#/:£3) 437,800,0000% (L) 9.94%

The letter “L" denotes the person’ s long positions in the [LIREEBALTRRDIFEZLRE °
Shares.
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Note 1:Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony owned 100% of the issued
share capital of Empire Charm Limited (“Empire Charm?”),
which in turn held 1,365,245,877 shares of the Company as
at 31 December 2024. Accordingly, Mr. Cheung Wing Lun
Tony was deemed to be interested in 1,365,245,877 shares
of the Company, representing 31.00% of the issued share
capital.

Note 2:Mr. Zhang Yuping owned 100% of the issued share capital
of Best Growth International Limited (“Best Growth”), which
in turn held 657,178,447 shares of the Company as at 31
December 2024. During the year under review, Mr. Zhang
Yuping held 91,723,600 shares of the Company under his
name. Accordingly, Mr. Zhang Yuping was deemed to be
interested in a total of 748,902,047 shares of the Company,
representing 17.00% of the issued share capital.

Note 3:These 437,800,000 shares were held in the name of and
registered in the capacity of The Swatch Group (Hong
Kong) Limited as a beneficial owner. The entire issued
share capital of The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Limited
was beneficially owned by The Swatch Group Limited. The
Swatch Group Limited was deemed to be interested in all
the shares held by The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Limited
under the SFO.

Note 4:Shareholding percentage is based on 4,404,018,959 issued
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the
Company had not been notified by any persons, other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company, who had
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which were required to be recorded
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO.
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

During the year, Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony, through his
wholly-owned Empire Charm, acquired 660,602,843 issued
shares of the Company from the qualified shareholders by
way of voluntary cash partial offer, increasing the number
of issued shares of the Company held by Empire Charm to
1,365,245,877 shares. Accordingly, Mr. Cheung Wing Lun
Tony was deemed to be interested in 1,365,245,877 shares
of the Company, representing 31.00% of the issued share

capital.

Save as disclosed in the preceding paragraph and under
the section headed “Equity-Linked Agreements” above,
at no time during the twelve months ended 31 December
2024 was the Group, holding company of the Company or
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which enabled
the Directors (including their respective spouses or children
under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or

any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or subsisting during the year

under review.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS WITH
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS OR

SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there had been
no contract or service contract of significance between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and controlling
shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries

during the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to ensuring high standards of
corporate governance practices. Corporate governance
report of the Company is set out on pages 42 to 58 of this

annual report.
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The environment is the foundation for corporate presence
and development. environmental
protection has been regarded as one of its top corporate

governance priorities by the Company. The Company

For many years,

implements a series of mechanisms and measures relating
to environmental management and energy conservation
in its daily operations to strive to protect the environment
and conserve energy, with a view to promoting harmonious
development in terms of economic, social and ecological
benefits, which has achieved significant results.
Environment, social and governance report of the Company

is set out on pages 59 to 84 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group has always been committed to advocating
the “people-oriented” core culture and strives to practice
an entrepreneurial spirit of “mutual respect, shouldering
responsibility, close collaboration and ongoing innovations”.
We will continue to utilise this philosophy as the cornerstone
of both our corporate management and corporate social
responsibility policies. As at 31 December 2024, the Group
had a total of 1,290 (2023: 1,467) employees in Mainland

China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Malaysia.

The Group has always been committed to developing and
adding value to human resources. The Group implements
a standard recruitment system and allocates resources
to various kinds of training for our managers, front-line
service staff and maintenance technicians, which covers,
among others, the art of management, sales skills, brand
knowledge and service awareness, with an aim of enhancing
knowledge, marketing skills and service capabilities of our
staff and assisting them in their continuous improvement and
development.
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The Group offers a competitive remuneration package and
various incentives to all employees, as well as regularly
reviews the structure of relevant mechanisms to cope with
corporate development needs. Options and awarded shares
are granted to the general management staff and associates
of the Company in recognition of their contributions to
the Group and as an incentive for their greater future
commitment. Meanwhile, the Group also offers various
other benefits to its employees, including pension plans,
mandatory provident fund scheme, insurance scheme,
housing and meal allowances.

Under a solid human resource assurance system, the
Group is enabled to create a high level of harmony among
employees of different nationalities and cultural backgrounds
under one shared vision.

The Group has maintained good and well-coordinated
partnerships with brand suppliers and various retailers.
Backed by our partners’ wide and strong support, our
operations have been able to achieve mutually beneficial,
harmonious and win-win development. During the year
under review, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its suppliers and customers. For
further details of relationships between the Company and
its employees, suppliers and customers, please refer to the
Company’s environment, social and governance report set
out on pages 59 to 84 of this annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FTEEZFRHEED

The percentages of purchases and revenue for the year REBEEERN  KEAEETEHEFHEES
under review, attributable to the Group’s major suppliers’ JHEREEDRLHBEEERMABTD LT ¢
purchases and customers’ sales respectively, are as follows:

Purchase FRHE
— the largest supplier — B AEER 14%
— five largest suppliers combined — AAEEEEET 53%
Sales HE
— the largest customer —BARPE 44%
— five largest customers combined —AREFAG 82%

The Swatch Group Limited constituted one of the five The Swatch Group Limited:&:@EH B A al#E
largest suppliers through its subsidiary. Save as disclosed KAAEEEZERZ — BRULFETEEHIN - #
above, none of the Directors, their close associates or any HEE=H  EERHEASNEEKER (MESSAT
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Board own H#EBLS%A EHAAGBEITRG CFEIEE
more than 5% issued shares (excluding treasury shares) of 7Fi&p)) R btz T EHEEEEERBEAE
the Company) had an interest in the above major suppliers = °

or customers.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION BFEBRERS

During the year under review, the Company renewed a REEBFE X ARAREE FEFEBRERS -
continuing connected transaction. On 3 May 2024, the WR-ZE-_WNFRAA=H ' ARQA (BEAFK
Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) and HRXREMEBAGF) LXAFEEEEABRNDERA
Shengshi Watch and Clock Group Ltd. (for itself and on & (BEARGRAKKRENEB AR [ SE4
behalf of its subsidiaries, “Shengshi”) entered into a renewal RS HE - BERHAQARAEFEMNATES
agreement of the master services agreement. Shengshi is FKEIFEA (R _ME+ = A/NBEHE) i
an indirect and non-wholly owned company of Mr. Zhang ENIF2EHE AR - RIEZERE RS
Yuping, the former chairman and an executive Director of ARNEBR-_Z_MF—A—HE_T_OF+
the Company (resigned on 6 December 2024). Pursuant — A =-+— B HifE A& E & H KB A 7R
to the master services agreement, the Group provided the R REERE @ ERABARK2 8008
shop design and decoration services to Shengshi Group 7@ BERZEESEASARK2 1408 7T -

and its subsidiaries from 1 January 2024 to 31 December

2024 with a cap of RMB28.0 million while the actual amount

incurred was RMB21.4 million.

safpeaRsd —2oness  CETEEE
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The above continuing connected transaction is renewed in
consistent with the Group’s past business and operation
and the Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries)
entered into the master services agreement and the
supplementary agreement, which is in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.

Such continuing connected transaction is subject to
announcement, annual review and annual reporting
requirements but exempts from the circular (including
independent financial advice) and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements and has been annually
reviewed by independent non-executive Directors. The
Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirement in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above continuing connected
transaction. The independent non-executive Directors
confirm that the above continuing connected transaction
is: (a) entered into in the ordinary course of business of
the Group; (b) entered into on normal commercial terms
or more favorable terms; and (c) entered into according
to the agreement of the relevant transaction with fair
and reasonable terms, which is in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The Board has engaged the auditor of the Company to
carry out a review of the continuing connected transaction
of the Group in accordance with Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules, the auditor has confirmed that: (a) nothing has come
to its attention that causes it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transaction has not been approved
by the Board; (b) for transaction involving the provision
of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to
its attention that causes it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transaction was not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group; (c) nothing has come to its attention that causes
it to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transaction was not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transaction; and (d) with respect to the aggregate amount
of the continuing connected transaction, nothing has come
to its attention that causes it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transaction has exceeded the annual
cap as set by the Company.

DONATIONS

During the year, the charitable and other donations made by
the Group amounted to approximately RMB3,000 (2023: Nil).

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as
at the date of this annual report, there was a sufficient
prescribed public float of the issued shares of the Company
under the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year under
review have been audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
(“ZHONGHUI ANDA").

ZHONGHUI ANDA will retire and is willing and eligible
to offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. A resolution will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
ZHONGHUI ANDA as the auditor of the Company. There
were no other changes in the Company’s auditor in the past
three years.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no important
events affecting the Group after the end of the year under
review and up to the date of this annual report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from Tuesday, 6 May
2025 to Friday, 9 May 2025 (both days inclusive) to confirm
the members on the register of members who are eligible to
attend and vote at the general meeting. In order to establish
entitlements to attending and voting at the general meeting,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 2 May 2025.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony, aged 35, is the chairman, an
executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He graduated from Western Sydney University
in Australia with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Applied Finance
and Management Accounting. Mr. Cheung joined the Group
in 2012, and held positions in the high-end consuming
accessories business department and senior management of
the Company with extensive management experience in the
high-end consuming accessories business. Mr. Cheung is
the son of Mr. Zhang Yuping, former chairman and executive
Director of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Yuping (alias Cheung Yu ping) (&¥1¥), aged
64, is the former chairman and a former executive Director
of the Company. He is the founder of the Group and is
in charge of the Group' s strategic development and
overall management. He has over 30 years of management
experience in watches and other high-end consuming
accessories manufacturing and international trade
industries. Mr. Zhang is also the director of Best Growth
International Limited, the substantial shareholder of the
Company, and the father of Cheung Wing Lun Tony, the
chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Mr. Zhang Yuping has resigned as the chairman and an
executive Director of the Company on 6 December 2024.
Mr. Huang Yonghua (&7k#), aged 54, is an executive
Director. He joined the Group in 2001 and is in charge of
the Group ' s operational supervision and customer service.
Mr. Huang has over 20 years of experience in watch
accessories services and management.

Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan (Z=#{), aged 65, is an executive
Director. He joined the Group in 2007 and is responsible
for the Group s business including accessories
manufacturing. He obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree and
has pursued further studies in business administration. He
has nearly 30 years of experience in watch accessories
manufacturing and distribution.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Shi Zhongyang (£1#[%), aged 50, is a non-executive
Director. Mr. Shi graduated from Nanjing University in
the PRC and University of Goetting in Germany with a
Master’ s Degree in Law. Mr. Shi joined The Swatch
Group Limited in 2000 and joined the Group in 2006. He
is currently a legal counsel of the legal department of The
Swatch Group Limited.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cai Jianmin (3% £ R), aged 81, is an independent
non-executive Director. He graduated from the industrial
accounting faculty (L €5 R) of Shanghai College of
Finance and Economics (/&8 EET). Mr. Cai holds a
Certificate for Professional Accountants (&t EKE
£) in the PRC. He was the senior financial management for
various companies including Shanghai Hualian (Group) (.t
YGEERE(%£E)). Mr. Cai joined the Group in 2005.

Mr. Liu Xueling (2 2 %), aged 67, is an independent
non-executive Director. He graduated from East China
Normal University in Shanghai with a doctorate degree
in history. At present, he is a senior lawyer in Shanghai
Tongyan Law Firm (L8 mBRMAREMESFT). He joined the
Group in 2007. He served as an independent director
of Shanghai Qiangsheng Holding Co., Ltd. (listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600662) from 2014
to 2020.

Ms. Qian Weiqging (8/&%), aged 52, is an independent
non-executive Director. She graduated from Massey
University of New Zealand with a master degree in finance
management. Ms. Qian has been engaged in financial
investment for a long time and has rich experience in
commodity trading. She had hold positions in China
International Futures Co., Ltd. and COFCO Futures. Co.,
Ltd. Ms. Qian has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since 21 March
2023.
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Senior Management

Ms. Tan Li (7 B8), aged 60, is the vice president and
secretary to the Board and is in charge of the Board office
and human resources of the Group. Ms. Tan Li graduated
from Nanjing Normal University (F@ = &0 & K ) with a
Master of Arts degree. She joined the Group in 2001.
Before joining the Group, Ms. Tan Li taught at the branch
colleges of Peking University in China.

Mr. Ng Man Wai ()& X &), aged 54, is the company
secretary and financial controller of the Company. Mr. Ng
graduated from the University of Toronto with a bachelor
degree in commerce. He joined the Group in 2004. Mr.
Ng is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA) and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA).

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors would like to take this opportunity to
express our sincere thanks to all the shareholders for their
continuous support and to all our staff for their dedication
and contribution to the Group during the year under review.

GENERAL INFORMATION

As at the end of 2024 and the date of this report, the
executive directors are Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony
(Chairman), Mr. Huang Yonghua and Mr. Lee Shu Chung,
Stan; the non-executive director is Mr. Shi Zhongyang,
and the independent non-executive directors are Mr. Cai
Jianmin, Mr. Liu Xueling and Ms. Qian Weiging.

By Order of the Board
Cheung Wing Lun Tony
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2025
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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INTRODUCTION

Since its establishment, the Company has been committed
to maintaining high-standard corporate governance practice
to ensure transparency of the Group’s management, so
that the long-term development of the Group as well as our
shareholders, customers, employees can be safeguarded.
The Group has established a board of directors, an audit
committee, a remuneration committee and a nomination
committee that are diligent, accountable and professional.
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA has been appointed as the Group’s
external auditor.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. The Directors
are of the opinion that the Company complied with the code
provisions under the Corporate Governance Code except
for the deviation from provision C.2.1 during the year under
review. Given the existing corporate structure, the roles
of the chairman and chief executive officer have not been
separated, and both are performed by Mr. Cheung Wing
Lun Tony. Although the roles and duties of the chairman
and chief executive officer have been performed by the
same individual, all major decisions would only be made
(where applicable) after consultation with the Board, which
comprises three independent non-executive Directors.
Therefore, the Board is of the opinion that the Company has
achieved an adequate balance of power and been able to
guarantee scientific decision-making.

Composition of the Board

To maintain high-level independence and objectivity in
decision-making, and supervise the management of the
Group in a comprehensive and equitable manner, the Board
of the Group comprises three executive Directors (Messrs.
Cheung Wing Lun Tony (Chairman of the Group), Huang
Yonghua and Lee Shu Chung, Stan), one non-executive
Director (Mr. Shi Zhongyang) and three independent
non-executive Directors (Messrs. Cai Jianmin, Liu Xueling
and Ms. Qian Weiqing).
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To ensure that the Board operates in an independent
and accountable manner, the three executive Directors
have been assigned with different responsibilities. Mr.
Cheung Wing Lun Tony, the Chairman, is in charge of the
Group’s overall management and strategic development,
while Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan is in charge of the overall
business operation of the Group, and Mr. Huang Yonghua is
responsible for coordination and supervision.

The three independent non-executive Directors have
extensive experience in the areas of accounting, economics,
law and commodities trading, respectively, and can
adequately act for the benefits of our shareholders. Their
terms of office are as follows:

Cai Jianmin: 26/9/2023-25/9/2026;

Liu Xueling: 01/6/2022-31/5/2025;

Qian Weiging: 21/3/2023-20/3/2026.

Mr. Shi Zhongyang, a non-executive Director of the
Company, has professional expertise and extensive
experience in the areas of law and business management.
He will supervise the Company’s daily operation, and
provide corresponding opinions and recommendations in
a timely manner, which is beneficial to the standardized
operation of the Company and safeguarding the interests of
our shareholders. His term of office is 15/2/2024-14/2/2027;

Duties of the Board

The Board of the Company is accountable to the general
meeting and performs the following major duties: reporting
duties to the general meetings; executing the resolutions
of the general meetings; determining investment and profit
distribution proposals of the Company; formulating plans
as to the increase or decrease of the registered capital of
the Company; preparing plans in respect of the split-up,
consolidation, alteration and dissolution of the Company;
appointing and dismissing the general manager of the
Company and determining his or her remuneration.
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In respect of the corporate governance functions, during
the year under review, the Board discharged corporate
governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference,
or to be specific, the following corporate governance duties
during the year under review:

° reviewing policies and practices on corporate
governance;

° reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

o reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements;

o reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to the Directors and employees; and

o reviewing the Company’'s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

Members of the Board are provided with appropriate
and sufficient information in a timely manner for their
understanding of the latest developments of the Group,
which is helpful in the discharge of their duties.

The management of the Company is accountable to the
Board and performs the following major duties: reporting
to the Board, executing the resolutions of the Board, and

completing all the tasks assigned by the Board.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group has established effective risk management and
internal control systems to provide reasonable (though
not absolute) assurance against material misstatement or
loss and to manage (rather than eliminate) risks of failing
to achieve business objectives. The Board is responsible
for the risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness.
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In order to safeguard the interests of our shareholders,
the Group has established an enterprise risk management
framework to provide top-down and bottom-up approaches
to identify, assess, mitigate and monitor key risks in a
proactive and structured manner. The Group has established
departments dedicated to the supervision and control of
financial and operational risks, including an internal audit
department. Such departments formulate annual internal
audit plans and are responsible for performing daily and
special internal control procedures in aspects relating to
business operation, financial reporting and compliance
control and in accordance with the targets set by the
senior management, which includes conducting audits
and examination of all aspects and at all departments
once or twice a year, so as to enhance internal control
and ensure the sound development of the Company. Such
departments will report the audit and examination results to
the audit committee and the Board for them to assess the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
of the Company, any significant failures or weaknesses in
internal control, and to take necessary actions promptly to
remedy any significant failures or weaknesses. If necessary,
such departments will follow up regularly on remedial
actions in response to significant internal control failures or
weaknesses.

The Company has established a disclosure mechanism
regarding the procedures of proper information disclosure to
ensure that inside information remains confidential until the
disclosure of such information is appropriately approved,
and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and
consistently made.

The audit committee and the Board have reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group
and completed the annual review on the risk management
and internal control systems (including their effectiveness)
of the Group. Based on the reviews made by independent
auditors and the Group’s self-assessment of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group,
the Group believes that, these systems are effective and
adequate. However, the Group will continue to review the
effectiveness of these systems as well as further improve the
internal administration and control systems of the Company
if required.
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ATTENDANCE OF THE DIRECTORS AT THE =EEM=2ZHEEBR

MEETINGS

In 2024, a total of seven Board meetings and an annual R-ZE-MNFE AR HXBR-AEERES
general meeting were held by the Company. The attendance %' AR T —ARRAFAG - FEFH
of the Directors at the meetings was as follows:

Frequency of
attendance
atthe Board  Rate of
Name %% meetings attendance ~ Remarks
e

hERE  HEE

EFIBIAT
Frequency of Frequency of
attendance at attendance at
the general  Rate of  the commitiee Rate of
meeting attendance meetings  aftendance  Remarks
kg EE

HERE  bEE R RS hEE i

Zhang Yuping* KT 4 57%  Abstained 3 times 1 100% 4 100%
SREE
Cheung Wing Lun Tony*  Zixe* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
iR Byl MR il iR oyl
Huang Yonghua BKE 7 100% 1 100% N/A Non-member of the
ol commitiee
EEER S
Lee Shu Chung, Stan R 7 100% 1 100% N/A Non-member of the
AR committee
FEEEMHE
Shi Zhongyang £ 3 43% By proxy 2 times 0 0% N/A Non-member of the
2ER il committee
Abstained? times* FZE8N3
2R
Cai Jianmin EER 7 100% 1 100% 6 100%
Liu Xueling ] 7 100% 1 100% 6 100%
Qian Weiging #es 7 100% 1 100% 2 100%
* Mr. Zhang Yuping resigned on 6 December 2024; Mr. * SR¥ T S A R2024F 12 56 B BT ¢ 3R KB
Cheung Wing Lun Tony was appointed on 6 December S HER2024F 12 A6 HERE
2024

Members of the Board are provided with appropriate and &
sufficient information in due course for their understanding g
of the latest developments of the Group, which is helpful in  77HEZE o

the discharge of their duties.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introductory
session so as to ensure that he/she will gain appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and his/her duties
and responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements. The Company
provides regular updates on the business development of
the Group. The Directors are continually updated on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance with
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

The Directors are committed to complying with the
requirements under the Code C.1.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code on Directors’ training so as to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the year under review, the Directors of
the Company attended relevant training in accordance
with the “Listing Rules” and provided the relevant training
records to the Company. According to the records, details
of the attendance at the training sessions of the Directors
(including Mr. Zhang Yuping, former Chairman and executive
Director) during the year under review are as follows:

Updates on corporate governance,
laws and regulations
EBIERER

Seminar/training

EER
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company confirms that it still considers the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

Having regard to the requirement under the Code B.2.3 of
the Corporate Governance Code and Mr. Cai Jianmin and
Mr. Liu Xueling having served as independent non-executive
Directors of the Company for more than nine years, the
Company will identify and appoint new candidate(s) for
independent non-executive Director(s) as soon as possible.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony serves as the Chairman of the
Board of the Company and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group. The Chairman’s responsibility is to oversee the
functioning of the Board and the strategies and policies of
the Group and the Chief Executive Officer’'s responsibility is
to manage the Group’s business.

MEETING BETWEEN CHAIRMAN AND
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year under review, one meeting was held
between Mr. Zhang Yuping, former Chairman, and
independent non-executive Directors of the Company
without the presence of other directors, mainly to discuss the
impact of the year’s political and economic situation on the
Company’s operations and the Company’s future direction
and other related matters.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company had adopted the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as the
Company’s code for securities transactions by its Directors.
After making specific enquiries with all the Directors serving
during the year under review, the Company has confirmed
that during the year under review, all of them had complied
with the standard as required by the above code.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial reports of the Group in accordance with the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards.

The statement of the auditors of the Company on their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out on pages 86 to 92 of this annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit fee payable to the auditors of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2024 will be approximately
RMB1,817,000 (2023: approximately RMB1,811,000). During
the year under review, in addition to the auditing services,
the Company’s auditors also provided the Group with
services such as taxation planning and due diligence. The
total non-auditing service fees were RMB166,000 (2023:
RMB289,000).
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee in
compliance with the Listing Rules. The audit committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Messrs. Cai Jianmin (Chairman), Liu Xueling and
Ms. Qian Weiging, who are responsible for reviewing
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company as well as significant or unusual items, internal
controls, financial reporting, risk management and control
matters, which included a review on the audited annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
interim report for 2024. According to the terms of reference
of the audit committee adopted and implemented by the
Company, the audit committee is responsible for reviewing
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company as well as significant or unusual items, internal
controls, financial reporting matters and duties of risk
management and control.

During the year, the audit committee of the Company held
meetings on 19 March and 20 August 2024 to review the
annual report and interim financial report of the Group
respectively. All members of the committee, namely Messrs.
Cai Jianmin, Liu Xueling and Ms. Qian Weiging, attended the
meetings.

The audit opinions from the audit committee in respect of
the Group’s financial report, risk management and control
for the year are summarised as follows:

The 2024 financial report of the Company is objective in
all material aspects, and gives a fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and the
operating results and cash flow in 2024. During the reporting
period, affected by volatile environment, uncertainties and
unstable factors which still existed, the Company's operating
results declined compared with those of the previous year.
Nevertheless, the Company's business was generally steady
and the overall operation was relatively stable. During
the reporting period, the risk control and management
system of the Company was still in normal and systematic
operation, which brought positive impacts on the effective
implementation of various tasks of the Company. In the
face of the challenging environment, the management of
the Company still needs to assess the situation and actively
respond to challenges to ensure breakthroughs in the
operating results of the Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
in compliance with the Listing Rules. During the year under
review, the remuneration committee comprises of Directors
including Messrs. Liu Xueling (Chairman) and Cai Jianmin,
being independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhang
Yuping, former Chairman and executive Director of the
Company (resigned on 6 December 2024), and Mr. Cheung
Wing Lun Tony (appointed on 6 December 2024). The
primary duties of the remuneration committee are to review
and determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses
and other compensation payable to the Directors and senior
management of the Group, and to review and/or approve
matters relating to share schemes as set out in Chapter 17
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

During the year, the remuneration committee held meetings
on 19 March and 5 December 2024 to review matters
related to the remuneration structure of the Directors and
senior management of the Company and the remuneration of
Director Cheung Wing Lun Tony respectively. All members
of the committee, namely Messrs. Liu Xueling, Cai Jianmin
and former member Zhang Yuping, attended the meeting.

According to the terms of reference of the remuneration
committee adopted by the Company, the remuneration
committee acts as a consultant regarding the remuneration
matters of the Directors and senior management of the
Company, while the Board retains the ultimate power to
approve the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee in
compliance with the Listing Rules. During the year under
review, the nomination committee comprises of Directors,
including Mr. Zhang Yuping (former Chairman, resigned on
6 December 2024), former executive Director and Chairman
of the Group, and Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony (Chairman,
appointed on 6 December 2024), and Messrs. Cai Jianmin
and Liu Xueling, being independent non-executive
Directors. The Company has adopted and implemented
the terms of reference of the nomination committee. The
nomination committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors and succession of the Board.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company adopts the nomination and selection
policies for the Board members, including the criteria and
procedures for appointment, by-election and re-election of
Directors.

SELECTION AND RECOMMENDATION
CRITERIA

In determining the suitability of the candidates for Directors,
the factors the nomination committee and the Board should
consider shall include integrity, professional ability, business
experience, independence and potential contribution to
the Company and the Board and diversity in terms of age,
culture, race, and gender, under the laws and regulations
of Cayman Islands, Listing Rules and other applicable laws
and regulations. These criteria shall mainly include:
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° candidates shall be persons of integrity, honesty,
good reputation and professional status;

° candidates should be able to meet the needs of the
current Board structure, size, diversity and talent mix;

o candidates’ business experience and professional
knowledge and ability in the operation of the Board;

° candidates can spare sufficient time to ensure the
proper performance of their duties as a Director;

° candidates for independent non-executive Directors
must meet the independence requirements of the
Listing Rules, possess independent character and
judgment, and be able to effectively handle the
Company'’s affairs in a manner that is in line with and
represents the best interests of all shareholders of the
Company.

These criteria are not to be exhaustive or decisive. The
nomination committee and the Board will take into careful
consideration any other factors that are in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders when selecting
candidates for Directors.

Nomination Procedure

When the Board determines that it is necessary to appoint
additional or replacement Directors, the nomination
committee shall adopt such methods and channels as
it deems appropriate to find suitable candidates for
Directors, including recommendations from the Directors,
shareholders, management and external headhunters. After
working out the list of potential candidates, the nomination
committee shall draw up a shortlist of candidates for
discussion by the Board based on the selection criteria
and other factors it deems appropriate. The nomination
committee and the Board will ensure that the composition
of Directors complies with laws and regulations of Cayman
Islands, Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations.
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Where a retiring Director, being eligible, offers himself for
re-election, the Board may recommend such retiring Director
to stand for re-election at a general meeting. A circular
containing the requisite information on such retiring Director
shall be sent to the shareholders before the general meeting
under the Listing Rules.

The nomination committee and the Board shall review the
above nomination policy from time to time to ensure that the
Company remains compliant with the relevant regulatory
requirements and maintains a good corporate governance
standard.

The nomination committee held two meetings during the
year to review matters related to retirement by rotation and
re-election of Directors of the Company and the appointment
of Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony as the Chairman of the Board
and an executive Director of the Company. All members of
the nomination committee (namely Messrs. Cai Jianmin, Liu
Xueling and former member Zhang Yuping) attended the
meeting.
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SUMMARY OF THE BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

To improve the performance of the Company, the Board has
adopted policies on board diversity. The Board believes
that board diversity can be achieved by taking into account
various factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, race, professional
experience, skills, knowledge, term of services and other
talents. All the appointments have been made based on
the Company’s business models and specific needs from
time to time, and candidates have been assessed with due
regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board on objective
business conditions. The nomination committee will be
mainly responsible for identifying suitable and competent
candidates for Board members and assessing such
candidates in light of objective conditions. As a part of the
annual performance review for the efficiency of the Board,
considerations of the nomination committee will be balanced
between skills and experience as required for accomplishing
the business targets of the Company and diversity factors.
To achieve board diversity, the nomination committee will
discuss and develop measurable objectives from time
to time, and propose the same to the Board for adoption
and implementation. Generally speaking, the selection of
candidates by the nomination committee shall be based on
a range of diverse perspectives including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
race, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
term of services. However, the final decision will depend
on the strengths of the candidates and their prospective
contributions to the Board. The Board may improve one
or more diversified perspectives from time to time, and
measure the progress on such basis. The nomination
committee will review the policy from time to time, including
conducting assessments on the effectiveness of the policy.
The nomination committee will also discuss any amendment
that may be necessary, and submit amendment proposals to
the Board for approval.
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Ms. Qian Weiging was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 21 March 2023, thereby
increasing the diversity of the Board.

Please refer to the disclosure in page 78 of this annual
report for the gender ratio of the Group’s employees as at
31 December 2024.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Man Wai was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company in 2004. His biographical details are set out
in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management”. For the financial year ended 31 December
2024, Mr. Ng attended relevant professional training for
not less than 15 hours in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration payment of the Group’s Directors and
senior management for the year ended 31 December 2024
falls within the following bands:
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RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

How the Shareholders Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting and Make Recommendations at
General Meetings

According to the articles of association of the Company,
any shareholder holding at the date of filing the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right to vote at a general meeting
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business or resolutions
specified in such requisition and for the purpose of adding
resolutions to the agenda of the meeting; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the filing of such
requisition. If the Board fails to convene such meeting within
twenty-one (21) days of such filing, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed by the
Company.

The letter demanding the convening of an extraordinary
general meeting mentioned above shall be sent to the
principal office of the Company indicating the Board or the
company secretary of the Company as the addressee.

How to Make Enquiry to the Board

Shareholders may send letters to the principal office of
the Company for any enquiries indicating the Board or the
company secretary of the Company as the addressee.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

During the year under review, there was no significant
change in the articles of association of the Company.
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INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company firmly believes in the importance of effective
communication with the shareholders and the potential
investors in attaining high-level transparency in the Group
and enhancing investors’ understanding of the development
strategy and direction of the Group. Since its listing, the
Group has maintained close communications with the
investors through a variety of diversified communication
channels such as one-on-one meetings, roadshows, press
conferences and other forms of meetings. The Group
has also established effective communication channels,
including official website, telephone consultation and email
to maintain liaison with shareholders, media, analysts and
fund managers, in an attempt to respond the enquiries of
the investors in a timely manner. The Group is committed
to providing investors with accurate and timely information,
enabling the investors to gain a deeper understanding of
the business development and development strategy of the
Group and market dynamics, and in order to build mutual
trust. By closely engaging with investors, the Company
collects the opinions and suggestions from the investors,
understands their needs and expectations, and optimizes
the strategy of the Company.

During the year under review, the Company communicated
with analysts, investors and potential investors in various
countries and regions mainly via visits, telephone and online
meetings, enabling the investors in different countries and
regions to grow a timely and an in-depth understanding
of the Group and allowing the senior management to
immediately keep abreast of the concerns of investors, so as
to continuously optimize the investors relations’ work of the
Company.

In the future, the Group will continue to maintain a close
relationship with its domestic and overseas investors and
constantly improve their understanding of and confidence in
the Group, so as to drive the long-term development of the
Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

GROUP PHILOSOPHY

Following Hengdeli's motto a hundred years ago and
believing that businesses exist as a part of society and
prosper along with it, the Group has been shouldering
social responsibility in terms of environmental protection,
environment quality management, use of resources, and
talent development, all of which are contributing to the
Group’s healthy development.

Hengdeli has always regarded social responsibility as
an essential part of corporate governance, and attached
great importance to the benefits and relationships that its
corporate social responsibility actions generate among its
customers, employees, local communities, shareholders,
business partners and supervisory authorities. We are fully
aware that strengthening social responsibility is not only
crucial for Hengdeli’s future development, but is also a
compelling obligation as a part of Hengdeli’s participation in
civil society.

Over the years, the Group has been concerning ourselves
with environmental protection and committed ourselves
to achieving an ecological balance as part of our efforts
towards becoming a green enterprise. We have been
maintaining integrity in our operations in providing quality
and safe products to customers, which has earned us social
credibility and made us a reliable company. We respect and
value talents, and aimed at creating an environment that
offers a win-win development objective for both employees
and the enterprise. The care of our employees’ working
conditions and career development has driven us to create
a welcoming, harmonious and mutually beneficial corporate
culture for employees, in which we share with them the
success brought by the company’'s growth and thus
integrate individual, corporate and social values. We have
also been getting more involved in public welfare activities,
actively participating in a range of social undertakings
such as education and social welfare activities, serving
the community with sincerity and bringing new hope to
those in need. Hengdeli has been striving to establish itself
as a responsible and reliable company that customers,
employees, shareholders and society can trust, and one that
is committed to sustainable development.
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In 2024, the international environment was complex. Amid
intensifying geopolitical conflicts, regional wars and trade
protectionism, the momentum of world economic growth
remained weak. China’s total economic output achieved
a new breakthrough, but there were still many risks and
hidden dangers. The Group enhanced its social corporate
responsibility activities at different levels as usual,
and further integrated the concept of social corporate
responsibility into its daily operations. We continued to
provide quality and safe products and services to our
customers, while also ensured the mutual benefits and
common development of customers, employees and the

society.

Governance structure

The Group’s Board is responsible for leading the overall
development and operation of the Group, which includes
monitoring the strategies and performance of environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) of the Company. Good ESG
performance is an essential element for long-term corporate
success and long-term operations. At the level of business
operation, the Group has established an ESG Committee
responsible for formulating the Group’s ESG development
strategies, assessing and monitoring environmental, social
and corporate governance related risks, overseeing and
reviewing the work progress of the ESG working groups, and
reporting regularly to the Board to ensure that the Board has
maintained high standards of management and compliance
with regulatory requirements. This report has also been
approved by the Board in March 2025 and set out in the

Company’s annual report.

Materiality assessment

The Group has identified a list of potentially material ESG
issues, mainly taking into account: (1) issues of common
concern to internal and external stakeholders; (2) issues
of concern covered by major ESG reporting standards and
frameworks, including but not limited to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Code in Appendix C2 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange; and (3) global sustainable development trends.
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The ESG materiality matrix of the Group during the year

under review was as follow:
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We have identified potential issues of importance to the
Group through materiality assessment, and continued to
focus on material issues for monitoring and reporting by
disclosing relevant key performance indicators (“KPIs”)
and setting targets and plans, establishing appropriate and
effective management policies and internal control systems.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group is committed to close liaison and ongoing
interaction with key stakeholders including shareholders,
employees, suppliers and the
community to identify and assess the importance of ESG

investors, customers,

issues. The communication channels with key stakeholders
include, but are not limited to the following:

Stakeholders Communication Channels
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Concerns and Expectations

MEEEE BEEE BERHE
Shareholders and Investors U General meeting J Return of investment
o Regular reports and o Information disclosure and
announcements corporate transparency
U Investor relations activities o Rights and interests protection
of shareholders and investors
RRRIREE . RERE . 2 & [ 5,
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Customers o Website disclosure and o Quality and safety of products
corporate brochure U Integrity in operation
o Daily communications o Corporate transparency
o In-person visit
BF . WK EREEM . ERmEERZE
. REEE . BIEEE
. EEFEH . RFRHE
Employees o Trainings and team-building o Benefits protection of employees
activities, seminars o Working conditions
o Employees care activities J Career development
o Telephone, email and meeting opportunities
U Internal communications J Salaries and benefits
o In-person communication o Health and safety
(== . BIRERED - S . EEFZRE
. EI@&EE . TAERIR
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Communication Channels
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Concerns and Expectations
BERHEE

Suppliers/Business Partners

HEH AEBY

Supervisory Authorities

EEKE

Local Communities

HE

Business meeting, email
and visit

Bidding process
Regular reviews and
assessments

(e EERES
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EHR R EZER

Annual report

Information disclosure
Participate in trainings and
seminars

Ongoing dialogues by email
and telephone communication,
etc.
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SHEEHIRANE

BE  ERBASHEYE

Media consultancy

Annual report

Website disclosure

Participate in charity and social
activities

BEEREA

FE®RS
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RERUTEEHSHE

Stable business relationships
Resource sharing
Growth together
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ﬁ/ \/\;
HEME

Corporate governance and risk
management
Good cooperation
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Environmental protection
Contribute to society
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The Group conducted in-depth interviews with stakeholders
to gain a deeper understanding of their concerns and
perspectives on materiality. At the same time, the Group
also conducted interviews with directors and management to
further understand their prioritization on ESG issues, as well
as their views and suggestions on ESG strategies.

Quantization

A summary of the Group’s 2024 social corporate
responsibility performance relative to various quantitative
KPls, with comparison to previous years, are disclosed in
the section headed “Scope of Reporting”. Information of the
standards, methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation
references, and sources of key conversion factors used on
these KPls are stated wherever appropriate.

Consistency

As far as reasonably practicable, consistent methodologies
are adopted when calculating these KPIs or any changes
that affect a meaningful comparison would be stated.

Scope of Reporting

The report covers the operations of the Group and each of
its high-end consumable manufacturing subsidiaries. There
are no significant changes in the scope of reporting as
compared with the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” under the 2023 Annual Report of the Group dated 8
April 2024.

ENVIRONMENT

For many years, Hengdeli has taken environmental
protection as one of its top corporate governance priorities.
The Group implements a series of mechanisms and
measures relating to environmental management and energy
conservation in its daily operations aimed at protecting
the environment and conserving energy, with a view to
promoting harmonious balance and sustainable development
in terms of economic, social and ecological benefits.
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Emissions

Most of the Group’s emissions are produced from the
industrial production processes of high-end consumable
manufacturing subsidiaries located in Mainland China. The
branches and subsidiaries of the Group are all in strict
compliance with national and local regulations regarding
emissions of pollutant gas, sewage and greenhouse gas
(“"GHG”) and disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste produced in the production process, including
but not limited to the Environmental Protection Law, the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste, the Water Pollution Prevention Law, the Air Pollution
Prevention Law, the Environmental Protection Tax Law, the
Administrative Measures for Pollutant Discharge Licensing
(for Trial Implementation) and the Environmental Impact
Assessment Law of Mainland China, and has formulated
internal management systems such as the “Pollutant
Emission Management System” and the “Environmental
Monitoring Management Measures”. The Group is
committed to achieving sustainable development goals in a
responsible manner with aims to effectively reduce various
emissions in the course of growing production scale and
increase in sales. To this end, the Group launched the
internal self-development and testing of the “water-based
paint replacing oil-based paint” solution in respect of
industrial coatings with the aim of replacing oil-based
paint currently in use gradually by water-based paint so
as to effectively reduce the emission of formaldehyde in
industrial coatings. By adding industrial sodium carbonate
and other treatment agents, the Group filtered, purified and
recycled the industrial waste water to reduce the overall
sewage discharge. Moreover, with absorbent carbon
adsorption and the installation of central vacuum system,
the Group also effectively reduced the dust contamination
in the production rooms. The Group is inspected regularly
by the Environmental Protection Bureau. During the year,
the monitored results of all polluting emissions (including
sewage and gas) for each of the relevant factories passed
the annual inspection and met national standards, with
no incident of non-compliance. In the future, the Group
will continually revise and improve various environmental
protection rules and regulations, thoroughly implement
pollutant emission monitoring and upgrade production
process, so as to achieve effective emission reductions,
and strive to reduce single-digit percentage of emissions of
equivalent output value within the next three years.
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In 2024, the emission of pollutant gas of the Group was as

follows:

—TomE - KREERIERBUENAT

2024 2023
Type of emissions BER ) iESE —ENEF —F=-=
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) (g) REEP(INOX) (52) 267,994 314,293
Sulfur oxides (SOx) (g) ek ¥(Sox) (=) 1,164 1,198

Note: The calculation of emissions and energy consumption
was based on Reporting Guide of Environmental Key

Performance Indicators of the Stock Exchange (the same

below).

HRERERHENGTESE THIMRE
MRERUEEERESISE (TR)

The total emission of hazardous and non-hazardous waste in G EREE Y EEZEEY — T — INEEBER M

2024 were as follows:

T

Density (waste generated per

Volume (tonnes) sales unit)
ZE (BHESNMEE
Type of emissions HrEsE = (1) HEEEY)
2024 2023 2024 2023
—E-ME R == et
Hazardous industrial waste TXEEEEY 80 280 0.08 0.20
Non-hazardous industrial waste TEEZEEY 227 259 0.22 0.18
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To facilitate the effective implementation of 1SO14001
the Group entered
into contracts with relevant professional industrial waste

environmental management system,

treatment companies, and hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes generated in the production process were
recycled by nationally recognised professional companies.
Furthermore, in order to achieve the goal of effectively
reducing waste emissions while expanding production
scale, the Group collaborated with a well-known university
in the UK since 2017 on a project to explore the feasibility
of transforming the existing sawdust waste from wood into
usable materials by mixing these waste with other materials.
After research and development and internal testing, we
have made a partial success in the trial, demonstrating that
the blended material achieved satisfactory performance
in effectively reducing the Group’s industrial waste
emissions. In recent years, the Group also carried out a new
experiment with the university to explore the feasibility of
using a new kind of steel that advances the production level
of automation. The success of the experiment is expected
to improve production efficiency, reduce consumption and
effectively reduce waste emissions. The total amount of
waste per unit of output value failed to meet the target in
the year of 2024 under review, which was mainly due to the
increase in industrial waste emissions from Dongguan Born
Talent, reasonable measures will be taken in due course to
reduce industrial waste emissions in the future.
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Use of Resources

The Group conducts operation and production in a
responsible manner and aims to save energy and reduce
consumption while developing business. Specifically, the
Group actively promotes the concept of environmental
protection and to this end, implements various policies
to optimise its working environment, which emphasises
green operations and green initiatives in the workplace.
The Group has adopted an eco-friendly approach to
the interior design of its office. Our open space designs
maximise the use of outdoor natural light and shared light.
Original furniture is retained, remodelled or reinstated as
much as possible during renovation to make rational use
of existing resources and reduce waste; and the traditional
high-energy-consuming incandescent light bulbs have been
gradually replaced with energy-saving LED light bulbs that
enjoy higher efficiency and longer life cycle.

The Group thoroughly implements a number of measures
designed to reduce emissions and cut down its consumption
of energy and natural resources, for example, printing
office paper on both sides and reusing waste paper, used
envelopes and kraft envelopes. Waste paper recycling
bins are placed in office to regularly recycle used paper
and old newspapers and magazines, and employees are
encouraged to read and send files electronically to reduce
printing. The Group actively embraces the concept of a
“paperless” office and puts it into practice, in which most
office documents are digitalised to save space and reduce
paper use. For documents after classification and archiving,
it is more efficient to search and use, while human errors
in the process can be avoided effectively. This not only
protects the environment, but also reduces the administrative
burden and the daily operating costs. The Group uses an
online office automation system to improve its administrative
functions, such as the filing and approval processes for
applications for business trips and expenses reimbursement.
It also uses an online platform to publish the Group’s
notices, policies and regulations to share information, which
not only improves work efficiency but also significantly
conserves energy. Meanwhile, the upgrade and integration
of internal ERP system and the use of innovative cloud
technology facilitates have enabled the sharing of data and
seamless collaboration among different departments within
the Group and the enhancement of corporate resources,
which maintains the business continuity of the Group and
improves its resource efficiency and competitiveness.
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In addition, the Group encourages and implements remote
conference system, while also advises employees to use
public transport for business trips, and constantly reviews
and makes adjustments on the goods delivery process, so
as to reduce energy consumption and carbon emission.
A Group-wide campaign that promotes turning off lights
when leaving has been launched to integrate environmental
awareness into the everyday work life of employees.
Moreover, smart finger print attendance machines have
gradually replaced traditional paper attendance cards.
Our Hong Kong office regularly sends the coffee capsules
used in the pantry to brand suppliers for recycling, and
encourages employees to recycle and reuse red packets.
The Group has also formulated internal operational
guidelines containing detailed requirements regarding water
and electricity consumption and the operating hours and
temperature setting of air-conditioners. In particular, the
Group adheres to the energy-saving policy throughout every
production process during manufacturing, continuously
upgrades high-efficiency and energy-saving equipment
to phase out energy-intensive production equipment
gradually. Besides, the Group improves production process,
production environment and service efficiency of equipment
on an on-going basis to reduce energy consumption during
the process.

The water consumption of the Group is mainly attributable
to the industrial production of high-end consumable
manufacturing subsidiaries, and the water is sourced from
the water supply system of local government. However,
the water consumption during the production process is
not significant. The Group is committed to environmental
protection and sustainable development although it has
not encountered any issues in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose. At present, the Group has recycled water by using
water curtain booth which effectively saves water resources
for industrial use. By adding industrial sodium carbonate
and other treatment agents, the Group has filtered, purified
and recycled the industrial wastewater to effectively reduce
the overall sewage discharge.

An overview of resource consumption:
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Total volume Density
“e RE
2024 2023 2024 2023
ltem et —E-mEF “E-=fF —EmE e
Electricity consumption (kWh) HE (TRE) 11,294,432 11,347,837 10,874.26 7,983.28
Office paper used (kg) MO (T) 392 392 0.38 0.28
Vehicle fuel (L) B mmm () 76,266 77,926 74.67 54.28
LPG (kg) BR (F) N/A 18,179 N/A 12.79
TEA FEA
Water consumption (m3) K (ZFK) 101,131 117,504 112.60 82.66
Packaging materials for
finished goods (tonnes) SR BB EME (W) 393 373 0.36 0.26
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Environment and Natural Resources

Most of the Group’s emissions and use of resources are
produced from the industrial production processes of
high-end consumable manufacturing subsidiaries located
in Mainland China. The Group has been committed
to environment protection, energy conservation and
consumption reduction. In order to raise awareness of the
environmental impact from us and our activities at all levels
of the Group, we are constantly working to reduce carbon
footprint by various policies, measures and actions (for
details, please refer to the sections headed “Emissions” and
“Use of Resources” as set out above).

The Group aims for sustainable development by constantly
monitoring the environmental impact of its operations and
implementing appropriate measures to minimise harm to the
environment, while at the same time integrating the concepts
of conserving natural resources and reducing waste into the
corporate culture, so as to achieve sustainable development.

Taking Action on Climate Change

Prolonged climate change may induce rising sea levels,
reduced water sources and loss of biodiversity. The extreme
events arising from climate change such as storms, floods,
fires and epidemics may have a potential impact on the
operation of the Group. In the event of such risks occurring,
production facilities may be damaged and supply chain
would be disrupted, which will pose a risk to the Group’s
assets, damage our operation capacity and reputation and
cause direct business losses.

Although such risks are hard to predict, the Group is
committed to continuously monitoring and reducing its
direct and indirect GHG emissions in order to reduce the
potential impact of climate change on the Group. Therefore,
the Group has established Carbon Inventory Accounting
Procedures based on international standards such as
the GHG Protocol and local guidelines. The Group also
acknowledges the urgency of addressing climate change
and is taking every possible step to manage and reduce
climate risks. Furthermore, we closely monitor international
efforts towards decarbonisation, including carbon neutrality
target of Hong Kong and Mainland China, to guide our
low-carbon roadmap. The Group aims for sustainable
development by constantly monitoring the environmental
impact of its operations and implementing appropriate
measures to minimise harm to the environment, while at the
same time integrating the concepts of conserving natural
resources and reducing waste into the corporate culture.

Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

BRERKRER
REERREBD B R EIRE B KB RO
TR SR HERELEECENTERE
HERET - KE-EHORNRERENEE
A BT EEEREREMTHECRER
EBURERMELNTE  RATHRBER
KK -~ AT - ORI B (FFABUER
2EEX (8] & ERER] #B2) °

EAERAREERREEEEELHRE
TE FBEEEEREERKERBK
C R ERARBERBM AR ERALEXE
o RTMBRATFERR -

%
)
i%

B RIRE
REWRIRE - SEBUKFE LA - KRR
DUREMEHREUERK  RIRE(LTOEKRSE
o mRE -~ KK KEMRITHS - YK
B ELELBERE REURREL A
ERREERERTEHHEER HEEEER
RER  ZERMANEERED  SBEXE
EREERBEREX

BEBLRBRAEAERG BRI REELCHE
BRIt ERNTE  SEFEERYRIER
EEEHNAEREBHER CRECEERES
TE) ZRRBEEREHIES - & EBRBERL
g THAREYRERE(LCHBATETE -
I 1EBREX— ) A] 17 27 B2 i) Bt 1K &= [ ) SRUIR
R o BEIN - FAFIINE L1 BB £ ey AR e
i BREBSMAMHNEAMEER  SEEH
ERRBREIEE L - EEFEREFER
RAEEREELHRRNTE - KEUERERE
EREEREHRENBIE  HRERAER
MBADREBAGECH - M BERAFE
R -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

CLIMATE-RELATED DISCLOSURE

Indicators and Objectives
GHG Emissions

The absolute GHG emissions of the Group were as follows:

BRI~ AL KRR R

RAIRMEEAB E
EERERE
BEREE

AEENREREBEYBRERENT

Scope of GHG Unit 2024 2023 2022
2 R A 0 =X (v2 —E s === ===
Scope | GHG (Note 1) tCO2e

HEVAERE (FE1) AW AL EE 207 266 334

Scope Il GHG (Note 2) tCO2e

#EE=RE (F2) AW LIREE 6,883 6,915 6,718

Total tCO2e

e A —SLREE 7,090 7,181 7,052

Note 1:  Scope | GHG refers to GHG directly emitted from &7 #HEUVEZEREITIHEAAEEES RZEHH
sources owned or controlled by the Group, which REEENEZHRAERE - TE2kE L
is mainly generated from fuel for land and marine KB EZBRBES - BEEA FHR (&
transportation. The emission factors used are based EEY (B FEHRALAR) WAZERE
on the standards set out in “Guidelines to Account PR RBR Az E AR E Sl (REER) ] A
for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and I BUIRZE ©
Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or
Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong (2010 Edition)”.

Note 2: Scope |l GHG refers to GHG indirectly emitted from 2 HERERBEESEBEENELNHE
the purchased electricity consumed by the Group. BEHRMORZ R o BB R 8 E S HERE A
Electricity emissions in China are calculated using R [ A AR IR IR SR B A 2 B B A R A T ET
the National Grid Emission Factors published by H-pRAEBHERNOENFRERREME
the Chinese Ministry of Ecology and Environment. BN FE -

Electricity emissions in Hong Kong are calculated

using the emission factors for the electricity sold by

(CILP
SOCIETY =
Employment and Labour Practices EERSETIEHR

The Group has always regarded its employees as critically
valuable assets of corporate operation and development.
Under its “people-oriented” core culture, the Group strictly
complies with all local labour standards and relevant
employment regulations such as the Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China. The Group has actively
implemented its Personnel Management System and
adopted a standardised recruitment system, in a bid to
provide employees with a healthy, safe and welcoming
working environment, protect employees’ rights to rest
days, statutory holidays, paid annual leaves and maternity
leaves according to laws, and build a fair, just and
transparent working platform, therefore to create a promising
development prospect for employees.

SEEREETIRREEELCNBERNEEM
g EIRABK] 22 0EEBREET &8
BRIEETHEBRS TREMIMC(REAR
KBS EE) SHBARRBIERE - BEHE
EEETASEEFE]  KARBIHBIER
Z BOABEIRHERE Z2RABNTIHE
By REAREBEIARER  AERE - &%
FREERST  BYAF  RENMEHANTIE
Fa - REARRINERAZR o

AR PR A PR T

B AR R



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B AL AR

Employment

The Group places great emphasis on upholding the basic
rights of its employees. It respects diversity in its employees
and adheres to the principle of equal opportunities in
employment, recruiting and cultivating talents regardless of
race, religion, color, nationality, gender or age. The Group
also reviews its mechanism and structure in different aspects
from time to time in order to adapt to the development of the
enterprise and, at the same time, to benefit the employees’
development. The Group held professional seminars and job
fairs from time to time in order to recruit outstanding talents
to join the Company.

The Group has adopted a comprehensive work assessment
management system, under which it regularly reviews its
recruitment system and its internal policy for grooming
talents so as to ensure transparency and to maintain fairness
and equality.

The Group implements scientific remuneration management
and various other incentives, and regularly reviews its
remuneration packages and promotion opportunities for
different positions to guarantee related remuneration and
benefits having market competitiveness. To attract talents,
the Group also offers various welfare incentives to its
employees, including pension plans, MPF plans, medical
insurance schemes, and housing and meal allowances.

Further, the Group grants awarded shares and share options
to the senior management staff (including but not limited to
directors, executives and manager-level employees) and
relevant persons of the Company in recognition of their
contributions to the Group, and as an incentive encouraging
initiative and good performance in the workplace.
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As of 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 1,290 #HE-—Z-—_@WE+=-_A=+—H £EERHH
employees (2023: 1,467) in Mainland China, Hong Kong and A » BB ZMEB H£1,290%2 8T (=T =
other places shown as follows: =4 :1,4678R)  EXHHAT -

No. of staff
BTHH
2024 2023
—E_UE e
Mainland China PR B A 4B 1,247 1,428
Hong Kong BB 42 37
Taiwan/Malaysia & / BRAD 1 2
Total @t 1,290 1,467
No. of staff
BTEH
2024 2023
= —E-=F
Aged 18-25 18-255% 66 80
Aged 26-55 26-555% 1,158 1,825
Aged 56 or above 567% A £ 66 62
Total Bzt 1,290 1,467
No. of staff
BTHH
2024 2023
—EE TEE=
Male B 751 816
Female g 539 651
Total BT 1,290 1,467
No. of staff
EIgH
2024 2023
—EoNF k=
Full-time 25 1,289 1,466
Part-time i 1 1
Total @t 1,290 1,467

FRAEERA R AR R PUEAER
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Employee turnover rate (%)

BT REAE(%)
2024 2023
—E-IF —E-=F
Mainland China B it 31.6 35.2
Hong Kong and Macau oyl 2.5 10.8
Taiwan/Malaysia & Bk fhes 66.7 0

Employee turnover rate (%)

BT RKE(%)
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E_=F
Aged 18-25 18-255% 1767 75.0
Aged 26-55 26-557% 28.0 32.8
Aged 56 or above 5658 A £ 32.8 24.2

Employee turnover rate (%)

TREKE(%)
2024 2023
—E-MEF —EZ=F
Male 5 21.7 Bl
Female L8 42.7 38.7
The Group places emphasis on employees’ sense of EE?EEIZEA’“_TEGEQ BR SHAREE
belonging to the Company, and is committed to providing #&EREIIRFIFEA TIEIREE © 1 EE B FERH

them with a pleasant and harmonious working environment.
In addition, the Group actively launches and implements
work that is favourable for building a harmonious relationship
between the enterprise and the employees as well as
facilitating the enterprise’s sound development, so as to
care for employees and strengthen their sense of belonging

and their solidarity with the Group.

The Group’s labour unions at different levels have the
tradition of organizing activities for employees, such as
holding birthday parties for employees and holiday dinner
parties, and arranging employees’ participation in social
sports events. These activities enhanced employees’
physical and psychological well-being and strengthened
their sense of belonging and overall team spirit.
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Activity of the Group’s subsidiary Guangzhou Artdeco
SETEEMNZIEARES

Activity of the Group’s subsidiary, Activity of the Group’s subsidiary,

Suzhou Henge Dongguan Born Talent
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Health and Safety

The Group is deeply committed to its employees’ well-being
and organises regular health check-ups for them, as well as
providing various medical insurance schemes.

The Group maintains high manufacturing safety standards.
To provide its employees with a safe and comfortable
working environment, the Group ensures it is in strict
compliance with international labour standards and the
relevant laws of Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau,
Taiwan and Malaysia, such as the Production Safety Law
of the People’s Republic of China and the Fire Prevention
Law of the People’s Republic of China. It also implements
internal guidelines and policies on occupational health
and safety for different working conditions and positions
to ensure the health and safety of its employees. The
Group purchases labour insurance for its employees,
equips each workplace with first aid kit with basic first aid
supplies, arranges employees for regular participation in
courses on first-aid skills, provides employees with training
courses and drills on manufacturing safety, fire and disaster
prevention awareness at the Group’s industrial segment
subsidiaries, equips employees in the position exposing
to occupational hazards with protective gears in line with
national and industry standards, and checks whether they
wear the gears on an irregular basis. The Group arranges
regular occupational disease checkups and maintains health
surveillance archives for its employees. The employee
handbook also provides clear and comprehensive guidelines
on handling hurricane and rainstorm warnings, as well
as accidents and work injuries. The Group’s high-end
consumable manufacturing subsidiaries also conduct regular
assessments of occupational hazards in the workplace, and,
based on the assessment reports by third parties, improve
the environment of workplace through the transformation
of system engineering facilities. Guangzhou Artdeco
even installed dust collection alarm system to provide a
safer working environment for employees. All production
subsidiaries established dual prevention mechanism of risk
control by ranking and elimination and handling of hidden
dangers. The Group’s safety production situation continues
to improve. During the year under review, the Group had a
very low rate of work-related injuries, while the lost days due
to work-related injuries were 335 days (2023: 161.5 days),
and there were no cases of work-related deaths (the last
three years: Nil).
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Development and Training

Employee development drives the progress of a company.
The Group encourages employees at all levels to engage
in advanced studies or participate in training to achieve
their personal growth and professional development. While
developing its business and safeguarding the basic rights
of its employees, the Group also provides a platform for
employees to develop their careers, which includes offering
a comprehensive learning and training system that helps
them grow quickly and strengthens their sense of belonging.
The Group formulates suitable training courses according
to the needs of its different departments and businesses.
It also implements an internal recruitment system, in which
employees can choose their career path based on their
interests and strengths.

Every year, the Group offers comprehensive induction
training covering an overview of the Group’s business,
information about business partners, product knowledge,
corporate culture and core values and business-related
policies and regulations to new recruits as well as
pre-service safety training for new recruits of factories to
help them integrate into the Hengdeli family.

The Group also provides its directors and senior
management with regular trainings, so as to maintain
continuing professional development and enhance their
knowledge and skills. The training includes regular updates
on rules for listed companies, and information about
relevant laws and regulations, corporate governance,
inside information, anti-corruption and bribery, internet
risk and international accounting standards as well as risk
management accountability for directors.
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During the year under review, the average training hours per [EIFEEFENR @ EEFHEIIFELT :

person provided by the Group were as follows:

Training by type (average training hours per person and IZ{EEERIZ D (FHEIIRSHMESEININE

percentage of employees who received training) EE] e
2024 2023
—ENE —T-=F
Middle to senior management HEEEEAE  Average hours per person AR 17.6 19.0
Percentage EE:1 53% 65%
Frontline staff —#RET Average hours per person A& 15.1 12.1
Percentage E 100% 100%
Other employees Hii 8 Average hours per person NZ[EE 11.0 19.4
Percentage Bt 96% 96%

Training by gender (average training hours per person and & RIElHD (FHEIHHRESEINETR

percentage of employees who received training) SE)
2024 2023
—®B-RE  —TZZF
Male 3 Average hours per person A& 12.9 13.1
Percentage ERad 99% 100%
Female X Average hours per person ABRE 15.5 15.5
Percentage Bott 95% 96%
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Labour Standards

The Group has employees in Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Malaysia. The Group is in strict
compliance with international labour standards and all
relevant local labour and employment laws and regulations.
All of its employees and job applicants enjoy equal
opportunities and fair treatment.

The Group adopts a comprehensive work assessment
management system, and reviews its recruitment system
and internal training standards on a regular basis to ensure
transparency and to maintain fairness and impartiality.

During the year under review, the Group was not involved
in any issues relating to child labour or forced labour. The
Group will continue to comply with the strict recruitment
process and internal management system and verify the
identities of job applicants to ensure that they are of legal
age, so as to deter child labour and forced labour.
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Operation Practices

The Group, as always, cooperates closely with
manufacturers and suppliers to deliver quality and safe
products to customers, and is dedicated to maintaining a
high level of industrial production transparency and product
responsibility. Throughout its operations, the Group ensures
that it maintains and carries forward a good social reputation
by complying with all national and regional anti-corruption
and anti-bribery policies.

Supply Chain Management

The Group implements an efficient supply chain
management system that optimises links from suppliers,
product production to after-sales, so as to optimise the
allocation of social resources. Meanwhile, the Group realizes
an effective link between production and sales as well
as a reasonable flow of logistics, information and capital
through an efficient information network, and delivers quality
products and considerate services to consumers in a timely
manner at reasonable prices.

The Group’s high-end consumable manufacturing
subsidiaries have each formulated corresponding code and
management measures for raw material suppliers, such
as Supplier Development and Management Procedures,
Guidelines for Supplier Evaluation Work and Environmental
Substance Management Standards, to set up entry
standards for qualified suppliers. The Group also adjusts the
assessment criteria based on the continuous development
and changes of market environment and requirements,
and thoroughly screens and evaluates suppliers to
ensure that the materials purchased feature good quality,
reasonable price and timely service. Each factory of the
Group has a detailed supplier survey, assessment sheet,
as well as a standardised supplier management process
and procurement control procedure, and incorporates
the suppliers’ sustainable development, environmental
protection and production safety performance into the
assessment criteria by signing a social responsibility
commitment letter with them. When selecting a supplier
for raw materials, an assessment on products of suppliers
will be carried out by the examination and approval
department of each factory according to various criteria
including relevant national certifications (such as the ISO
quality management system) for the Group’s final approval.
The Group also regularly verifies, gives feedback on and
evaluates each supplier’s products in areas such as quality,
pricing and environmental protection. Those suppliers which
do not meet the Group’s standards will be disqualified in
due course.

_x_ Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

ZEED
—ENK SEZRLERMESEHBLAE

HOKEE  RENEMXITPFH  RE
AEETELED  BHEESENEREM
EnEEREN EEREKEZT  SEF

A/ THER KRR RESMRBHBEEK - A
RERBELEBEEROLERE -

HEEEE

SEERGRNHERERE  ROBELCEHE
B EmEEINERERERES  FHGER
SEEBLEE - AR SEEASHNELHE
i%:‘ii%Ti;‘*&fﬁ”ﬁéﬁ*ﬁ?ﬁ&%u&%m F
éqi/mm/\fi//w@] TETEEMEDD
X ﬁ;ﬁ%?ﬂiﬂ

|_. //\L. ¥

BB & AR R AR KX

SETBzRmHEERELECEAGE TH
FER R R R < A R B A - Bl FE
mRENERREF HERFEIERES
EMEEERES  2UARH ﬁﬁ/ﬁ)\h
£ UREBEMHRENFROTEEREY
ERBREETARE  BRHE FEHER-
BRREWENEGENE BRAE RBR
B-SESRTIHRABEFANHRERRASE
R ABERRARRELCNHEREERRE
REFBEHEFTSEBRANAFERRMR
R RERARZMAZSKZEESD  YRER
EHGEMLARE GERERMBHERE
RF'EJIJ*%&%BF'EJ@?@TE%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ’f (#m1SO
HEEERR) FZHEGE  HHEFNER
BT MBKEEBRDIE - £E0Y

EHHRERERELE BN BRREIE
ETRE  BRAFHR FTERNEERKS

RERBURREER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the year under review, the Group’s high-end
consumable manufacturing subsidiaries have a total of 336
suppliers, including 33 suppliers in Europe, 4 suppliers
in North America, 7 suppliers in Hong Kong, 3 suppliers
in other parts of Asia, and the remaining of which are
in Mainland China. The Group was not aware of any
major non-compliance incidents or potential significant
adverse effects of any major suppliers in the aspects of
environmental protection, business ethics, employment and

labour practices.

Product Responsibility

The Group has a relatively mature industrial chain for
watch accessories manufacturing, mainly covering from
the manufacturing of watch accessories and packaging
products to commercial space design, production and
decoration. Companies are mainly located in Suzhou,
Guangzhou and Dongguan. The Group believes that
providing quality products and excellent after-sales service
is a crucial part of its successful corporate presence.

The Group’s high-end consumable manufacturing
subsidiaries carry out strict quality management in line
with national quality standards. The watch boxes and other
packaging products manufactured by factories of Artdeco
Decorating & Packaging Co., Ltd. have all achieved national
FSC and 1S0O9001:2008 or 1ISO9001:2015 and SA8000
certifications, and have also complied with EU Regulation
(EC) No. 1907/2006 (REACH). During the year under review,
none of the products sold or delivered by the Group was
recalled on safety and health grounds. However, customers
may submit complaints, and the Group will conduct an
independent investigation and deal with it in accordance
with the internal guidelines.
During the year under review, the Group received 1
customer complaint (2023: 13) over product quality. Upon
timely communication with and explanation offered to the
customers pursuant to the Group’s customer complaint
handling procedures, they were satisfied with our
clarification and arrangements.
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The Group attaches great importance to respecting
and safeguarding the rights of consumers. It is in strict
compliance with Law of the PRC on the Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests and other regulations
and laws relating to sale of products to safeguard the
interests of consumers. The Group also fully complies with
the provisions of the Supply of Services (Implied Terms)
Ordinance and other relevant laws and regulations in
collecting consumer information and privacy protection. In
order to ensure that the privacy protection measures are
implemented more effectively and comply with relevant laws
and regulations, the Group also reviews and amends its
measures on safeguarding customer data privacy from time
to time. During the year under review, the Group had no
incidents of breach of customer privacy or loss of customer
information, nor did it receive any confirmed complaints in
connection therewith.

The Group has established and protected its intellectual
properties, including its trademarks and domain names.
In addition, the Group’s domain names are subject to
continuous monitoring and renewal upon expiry.

To protect intellectual property, the Group also follows
the guidance including that of the Copyright Ordinance in
Hong Kong and requires employees not to use or illegally
download and install pirated computer software. The Group’s
IT department is responsible for monitoring relevant matters.

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of
any violations of the regulations governing the provision
and use of the Group’s products and services that had
material effect on the Group, including product and
service information and labels, marketing communications
(advertising, marketing and sponsorship) and intellectual

property.
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Anti-Corruption

Hengdeli Group is dedicated to establishing itself as a
trustworthy, law-abiding enterprise. The Group abides by
applicable laws and regulations on bribery, fraud and money
laundering in all regions where it operates, including but not
limited to the Hong Kong Prevention of Bribery Ordinance,
the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Ordinance, the China Anti-Unfair Competition Law and the
Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery. The
Group advocates a work ethic that insists on compliance
with law, integrity, honesty and professional dedication,
and bans any form of acceptance of advantages or acts of
bribery. Explicit rules concerning employees’ professional
integrity are communicated through the employees’
guidebook, training courses as well as guidelines, for
example, on conflict of interest, while the efficiency of the
Group’s entire internal management system is reviewed
regularly. Channels are also available for employees to
report on internal misconduct. The daily operations of the
Group strictly comply with established procedures; the
internal audit department audits each branch and subsidiary
regularly and timely reports to the audit committee while
implementing appropriate measures to ensure all regulations
are complied with. Further, the Group also commissions
external auditors to carry out independent audits. All these
measures effectively promoted the implementation and
improvement of the Group’s regulatory system. During the
year under review, the Group participated in an online
seminar on combating money laundering and terrorist
financing organized by Companies Registry (Money Lenders
Section) of Hong Kong. The Group was not aware of any
violations of laws and regulations on bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering that had a significant impact on
the Group, and not involved in any litigation on corruption
relating to the Group or its employees.

Investment in Community

Hengdeli has always been actively involved in community
and public welfare activities, serving the community,
undertaking corporate social responsibilities proactively and
contributing to society through a variety of welfare platforms
with its own strength.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

By~ e BB

OUTLOOK

Come rain or shine, we have been moving ahead through
ups and downs. In an environment full of challenges
and uncertainties, we would like to express our heartfelt
gratitude to the Board of the Group for their continuous
care and leadership and the full support of stakeholders. In
the future, we will continue to uphold the principle of being
responsible for our customers, employees, shareholders and
the society, and will seek and capture opportunities to strive
for a harmonious and sustainable development between
the Company and the society, the Company and the
environment, as well as the Company and all related parties
to make our due contributions for the society.
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RESULTS

£

Revenue

KA

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Bial (B8),/aH

Income tax (expense)/credit  FiEH (B%),/
i)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B8)/5H
Attributable to: FE{G
Equity shareholders /NG
of the Company BAEA
Non-controlling interests g
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B1B)/5F
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEHEE
Total assets BERE
Total liabilities BERE
Net assets BESE
Total equity attributable NN S
to equity shareholders BB AEL
of the Company BEREE
Non-controlling interests R =
Total equity ERAH

2024
“E-E
RMB’000
ARET R

1,043,555

(46,709)

(8,763)

(55,472)

(65,161)
9,689

(55,472)

2024
—EopF

RMB'000
ARETR

3,634,142
254,638
3,279,504

3,209,574
69,930

3,279,504

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
P R

Year ended 31 December

BEtZA=1-HLFE

2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-=F —EC-CF —E-—F —E-TE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARETT ARETT AREFT
1,421,454 1,259,579 992,962 1,219,856
33,238 (87,981) 18,701 (354,200)
1,053 (158) 1,509 (32,324)
35,191 (88,139) 20,210 (386,524)
33,885 (80,022) 26,282 (383,076)
1,306 (8,117) (6,072) (3,448)
35,191 (88,139) 20,210 (386,524)

As at 31 December
K+=A=+-A
2023 2022 2021 2020
—TC=F B R CZ°TH
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT AR®TT ARETT ARETR

3,599,158 3,525,795 3,531,392 3,628,461
353,524 305,961 258,929 188,651
3,245,634 3,219,834 3,272,463 3,439,810

3,186,036 3,161,540 3,204,598 3,366,694
59,598 58,294 67,865 73,116

3,245,634 3,219,834 3,272,463 3,439,810
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HENGDELI HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Hengdeli Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 93 to 224, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

m Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

i Goodwill and Property, Plant and Equipment

Refer to Notes 11 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group is required to test the amount of goodwill
for impairment. The Group is also required to test
the amount of property, plant and equipment for
impairment when there is an indication that the
assets may be impaired. These impairment tests
are significant to our audit because the balances
of goodwill and property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB53,728,000 and RMB538,212,000
as at 31 December 2024, respectively, are material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group’s impairment tests involve application
of judgement and are based on assumptions and
estimates.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the identification of the related cash
generating units;

- Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash
flow projections;

- In respect of properties located in Taiwan,
obtaining the external valuation report,
discussing with the external valuer

and challenging the valuation process,

methodologies used and market evidence
to support significant judgements and

assumptions applied in the valuation model,

- Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the
value-in-use calculations and valuation model;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key
assumptions; and

- Checking input data to supporting evidence.

We consider that the Group’s impairment tests for
goodwill and property, plant and equipment are
supported by the available evidence.

Trade receivables

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group tested the amount of trade receivables for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our
audit because the balance of trade receivables of
RMB458,649,000 as at 31 December 2024 is material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group’s impairment test involves application of

judgement and is based on estimates.
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Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s relationship and
transaction history with the customers;

- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;

- Checking the computation of the amounts of
expected credit loss allowances;

- Assessing ageing of the debts;

- Checking subsequent settlements from the
customers; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk in the consolidated
financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for trade
receivables is supported by the available evidence.

Fair value measurements of level 3 financial
instruments

Refer to Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group measured the fair value of the level 3
financial instruments. Determination of their fair
values is significant to our audit because the balance
on other investments categorised as Level 3 of
RMB119,861,000 as at 31 December 2024 is material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group’s measurement involves application of

judgement and is based on estimates.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the competence, independence
and integrity of the external valuer engaged by
Company;

- Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation
model;

- Discussing with the external valuer
and challenging the valuation process,
methodologies used and market evidence
to support significant judgements and
assumptions applied in the valuation model;

- Checking key assumptions in the valuation
model to supporting evidence;

- Testing the evidence supporting the
unobservable inputs in the level 3 fair value
measurements; and

- Assessing the adequacy of the Level 3
fair value measurement disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s fair value measurement
of the other investments catagorised as level 3
financial instruments is supported by the available
evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information in
the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does

not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements is located at the
HKICPA’s website at:

https://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/Standards/
Our-views/auditre

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Chi Hoi

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P07268

Hong Kong
20 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Tare

A

CERES

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #E= —ZE— &+ —-A=+—HI5E
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAREZ75I))

2024
—E-F
RMB’000
AR¥ETR

1,043,555
(894,797)

148,758

66,384
(26,427)
(64,472)

(189,562)

(65,319)

23,169
(4,559)

(46,709)

(8,763)

(55,472)

(65,161)
9,689

(55,472)

Note
Hfat
Revenue WA 3
Cost of sales SHE R A
Gross profit ER
Other revenue HAn A 4
Other net loss Hith BB 4
Distribution costs Al =) DN
Administrative expenses THRER
(Loss)/profit from operations K (F58)sA
Share of profits of associates FE(RES & 2 B A
Finance costs B RS BRZR 5(a)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (B518), &R 5
Income tax (expense)/credit Fies (M%) #%e 6
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (F58) w5
Attributable to: FEAL -
Equity shareholders of the Company AR M EH A
Non-controlling interests IR
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (H18),/&F
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings BREARRE#E
per share (E18]), B 10

(0.015)

The notes on pages 102 to 224 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the loss for the

year are set out in note 28(b).

2023

RMB’000
AREETT

1,421,454
(1,206,189)

215,265

47,299
(6,394)
(61,100)
(172,805)

22,265

16,358
(5,385)

33,238

1,953

35,191

33,885
1,306

35,191

AREE (0.015)7T INSES

0.008
0.0087T

E102E224 B 2 MBI EH B IREK —2H °
ERARRRRDFEEABGEFEEE 2RI
BEHRHIFE28(b) °

R AR R B T AR R



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A 1H SO A A T I AR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE—Z -+ - A=+—HBILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAARE25I))

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-ZF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARETT ARBTT
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BR) &7 (65,472) 35,191
Other comprehensive income FEHEMEZEKBA (BER
for the year (after tax and BN ERER)
reclassification adjustments) 9(a)
ltems that may be reclassified BEE A REEF DS
subsequently to profit or loss: BmcIBEE
Exchange differences on translation BB INGT B 2 RIS
of overseas subsidiaries’ WERFEEZERZRE
financial statements 23,375
Share of associates exchange B G INSETE B FEAL Bt &
differences on translating NRIEH Z
foreign operations 2,615
25,990
ltems that will not be reclassified BESSENDER
subsequently to profit or loss: B 2HEE -
Equity investments at fair value through @B E b2 EWAIR
other comprehensive income — net RAEEZRAZE
movement in fair value reserves - AREREZD
(non-recycling) TR (MRl ABRE) (59,515)
Exchange differences on translation BRERBHEMEEBA
of equity investments at fair value BRASMBEFEZRAE
through other comprehensive income REMELEZERZR 12,742 6,596
Exchange differences on translation of BRE RN RIS RER AT
the Company’s financial statements EEXCZERER 34,533 17,538
44,845 (35,381)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZEWRALEE 33,196 25,800

The notes on pages 102 to 224 form part of these financial $F102£2248 2 I F B EHHIRE—FH ©
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Aok T 1R A S A A T A SR

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBT T

Attributable to: FEAL
Equity shareholders of the Company RARIRDEFEA 24,496
Non-controlling interests FEPERR I 2 1,304
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXHEBALLE 25,800

The notes on pages 102 to 224 form part of these financial $102E 2248 » M X B It ZE SRz — 25 ©
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A MBS IR DL 3

As at 31 December 2024 A —Z —UF+—-F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAREZ25I))

2024

—E-ME

Note RMB’000
et ARET T

Non-current assets EREEE
Investment properties LEYE 11 259,110
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB LERE 11 538,212
797,322
Intangible assets EmEE 12 5,245
Goodwill R 18 53,728
Interests in associates RELE RN T 2 RS 15 161,164
Other investments Hix & 16(a) 402,240
Prepayment and deposits T RIERIES 18 7,894
Deferred tax assets FEERTBEE 27(b) 1,125
1,428,718
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 17 175,432
Trade and other receivables EUE SR N E A
FEW IR 18 616,205
Loans to associates RRIEHE N R 2B 19 34,719
Other investments HEmxE 16(b) 12,181
Current tax recoverable ZRERA] Y B B TR 27(a) 251
Deposits with banks BITEFER 20 329,600
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 21 937,036
2,105,424
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables and ENE SRR EM
contract liabilities ENZFEUANELAEE 22 168,777
Bank loans RITER 23 45,953
Lease liabilities HEBE 24 9,188
Current taxation RHEA RSB 27(a) 3,006
226,924
Net current assets REEEFE 1,878,500

Total assets less current liabilities EEERAEAE

3,307,218

I T Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

2023

RMB’000
AREETT

266,398
551,137

817,635

2,727
52,611
137,386
368,582
46,707
3,259

1,428,807

258,115

558,072
33,789
10,654

469

318,437

990,815

2,170,351

226,920
76,653
8,313
2,846

314,732

1,855,619

3,284,426




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

I BB R DL AR

2024

—E-F
Note RMB’000
Kt ARBTFT

23 12,050
24 15,664

27,714

3,279,504

Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Bank loans RITER
Lease liabilities HEEE
NET ASSETS BEEFE
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXKfFE
Share capital A&z
Reserves (i

28(c) 21,254
3,188,320

Total equity attributable to equity AN TR EFHE A B

3,209,574

69,930

shareholders of the Company REZS AR
Non-controlling interests R R
TOTAL EQUITY AL

3,279,504

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 20 March 2025.

Cheung Wing Lun Tony
Executive Director

The notes on pages 102 to 224 form part of these financial

statements.

Huang Yonghua
Executive Director

2023

RMB’000
AREETT

17,483
21,309

38,792

3,245,634

21,254
3,164,782

3,186,036

59,598

3,245,634
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AR e R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE -~ 4+ - A=+—H | FE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR#271))

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RRFRHEBNERS

Fair value
Capital PRC  reserve Non-
Share  Share redemption  Capital Exchange ~ statutory (non- Retained controling Total
capital premum  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve recycling)  profits Total interests  equily
DR
RAEE wEiEE (FTEA
e ROEE  GE ARRE EXEE 0 BE BB RBEN £ FERER BRuE
Note RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOO0 RMBO00 RMBOO0 RMBO00 RMBOOO  RMBI000
W \RET ARETT ARETT AR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETH ARETTL
Balance at 31 December 2022 i —3
tZB=t-Beks 21,254 2553979 1844 2592 (135166) 32263 (154116) 83880 3161540 58,294 3219834
Changes in equity for 2023 W-E-ZEREED
Proft for the year ERER - - - - - - - 33885 33885 1306 3191
Other comprehensive income Ep2EMNA 9 = - - - 501% - (595%) - (9389 2 (9391
Total comprehensive income FAYNGE = = - - 50,12 - (B9515) 33885 24496 1304 25800
Transfer befween reserves ik REy - - - - - 55 - (5589) - - -
Amounts transferred from fairvalue ~ HERBHEAAERSE
reserve (non-recycling) o retained  (RAEARR) EAZ
profits upon dlisposal of invesiments ~ RERF| 74 - = - - - - 38730 (38,730) = - -
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZE-=F
tZR=t-AzEs 21,254 2553979 1844 2502 (85040) 37847 (174901) 828461 3186036 59598 3245634
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B Al 25 S )

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KAIRHEEAEL

Fair valug
PRC
statutory

Capital reserve Non-
Share redemption

e

Share Capital

reserve

Total
equiy

Exchange
feserve

(non- controling

Retained

profts Total interests

capital

feserve feserve recycling)
RAfERfE
HEEE (FAEA
Bx RtEE  RE E5RR EXRE  BF  BR) REEN 4 FERER RRUE
fl7:8 RMB000 RMBO00 RMBOO0 RMBO00 RMBOO0 RMBO0O RMBOO0 RMBO00 RMB0O0 RMBO00  RMBI0OO
Ul \RETT ARBTR ARMTL ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARBTR ARBTT ARETR

fus id

Balance at 31 December 2023

Changes in equity for 2024

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

RIEZZE28=

T-RzH 21,254 2,553,979 37847 (174901) 828461 3186036 59,598 3245634

NEMERERY

Total comprehensive income

Transfer between reserves

Capital injection by non-controlling
interests

Disposal of equity interests ina
subsidliary

Amounts transferred from fair
value reserve (non-fecycling)
fo retained profts upon disposal
of investments

Balance at 31 December 2024

EEBR (65161)  (65,161) 9689  (55472)
Hfp2EUA 9 - 8869 (31) 88668
2EpAEE (65161) 23538 965  331%
i (2,087)
FERERTE

5081 5031
HERBATRE

(4357)  (4387)
HERERBANER
f(TaEAER) &
HEREEN 2%

(27935)

R-B-METZA=
T-RzER 20254 2553979 1844 2502 6089 39934 (1493%6) 733278 320957 69,930 3279504

The notes on pages 102 to 224 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

maBlaehiEk

Operating activities

Cash (used in)/generated from
operations

Tax refund

Tax paid

e
BE (Frfe)/FiisRE

B
SRR

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

REFED i),/ B
REFHE

Investing activities

Payment for the purchase of
investment properties, property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant,

equipment and intangible assets

Payment for the purchase of
intangible assets

Increase in deposits with banks

Proceeds from repayment of
advances to third parties

Proceeds from repayment of
advances to associates

Payment for purchase of other
investments

Proceeds from sale of other
investments

Net cash outflow from disposal
of a subsidiary

Proceeds from disposal of an
associate

Interest received

Dividends received from an
associate

Dividends received from equity
investments

REFE

BARAMSE - W -
RS BRI

HEME  BE - R
KT B EFRSHIR
BABTEENRK

RITEFFILAN
BREE=FBK
PSR
BEME RABR
PSR
BARMBENK

hEE IR EPTIFIA

HE—RRBARRSE
R
HE—fHEZE QT
FS5IR

BEIF R
BER—REBERFRE

BB AR E RS

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

RETBMEG . (FT3E)
BEFH

BT Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE—Z -+ - A=+—HBILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAARE25I))

2024 2023

—E_DmF —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF AREF R

(79,415) 84,658
575 524
(6,857) (1,890)

(85,697) 83,292

(39,459) (215,890)
18 13,621

(18)
(40,471)

60,315
34,589
(31,577) (108,648)

17,652 42,478

(6) -

30,547

14,367

4,989

(164,121)




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HAEBESHRER

Note
BtaE
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from new bank loans HILiRTT 21(c)
Repayment of bank loans 1;=Jaﬁﬁﬂgm 21(c)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ~ENHEEHEEH
BARE D 21(c)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EfMHEEESH
2D 21(c)
Other borrowing costs paid B H A& B A 21(c)
Capital injection by non-controlling ~ FE¥ZERMEZ T E
interests
Net cash used in from financing METE RS FE
activities
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRBELEEY
equivalents W FRE
Cash and cash equivalents at the REAZRER
beginning of the year HE&EEEY
Effect of foreign exchange rate IMEEEETE
changes
Cash and cash equivalents at RERZRER
the end of the year BEEEY 21(a)

The notes on pages 102 to 224 form part of these financial

statements.

2024
—ECmE

RMB’000
ARBETT

45,000
(80,476)

(10,350)

(861)
(3,138)

5,031

(108,736)

990,815

2023
—E-=4F
RMB’000
ARBFIT

72,900
(60,876)

(11,509)

(388)
(3,536)

(3,409)

(84,238)

1,050,187

24,866

990,815
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 A R T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BkBH AN @ BEAAREZ5)

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“the Exchange”). Material accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 comprise Hengdeli Holdings Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the
Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

- equity investments (see note 1(g))

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXREFBX#®)
(Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) BBERz2F

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to BESMASEBMEA TR AEEERISET

HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting  HAFSIRE &K A& K BB TSRS A 2 85T

period of the Group.

Amendments to HK-int 5 (Revised), Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
(HK Int 5 (Revised))

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current

Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7, Supplier
Finance Arrangements

Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

None of these developments have had a material effect on

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

how the Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The
Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

(d)

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 1(p) or 1(q) depending on the nature
of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset (see note 1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(l)),
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is

unless the investment is classified

classified as held for sale).
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

(e)

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(1)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(f)  Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity
but is not control or joint control over those policies. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible, including potential
voting rights held by other entities, are considered when
assessing whether the Group has significant influence. In
assessing whether a potential voting right contributes to
significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial
ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)  Associates (Continued)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested for
impairment together with the investment at the end of each
reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and
its share of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the
Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only
after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)  Associates (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results
in a loss of significant influence represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus
the fair value of any investment retained in that associate
and (ii) the Group’s share of the net assets of that associate
plus any remaining goodwill relating to that associate
and any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve. If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture, the Group continues to apply
the equity method and does not remeasure the retained
interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(9)

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity

Other investments in debt and equity securities

securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, are as
follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investment. The investments are initially stated at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except
for those investments measured at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments, see note
31(f). These investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)
(i) Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified into
one of the following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method (see note 1(v)(v)).

- fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) (recycling), if the contractual cash flows of
the investment comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

- fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the investment
does not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the
fair value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

(i) Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes
an election to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections
are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’'s perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
until the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal,
the amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to retained profits. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or
FVOCI,
accordance with the policy set out in note 1(v)(iv).

are recognised in profit or loss as other income in

(h)

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are

Investment properties

owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(k)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use
and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(l)(ii)).
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment
property less its estimated residual value using the straight
line method over its estimated useful life. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in note

1(v)(iii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Investment properties (Continued)

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis.

(i) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

1((i1).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(x)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation
reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to profit or
loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Freehold land is not depreciated.

- Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated
over their estimated useful life, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion.

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance
leases is depreciated over the unexpired term of
lease.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)  Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion.

- Leasehold improvements 1 -5 years
- Motor vehicles 5-10 years
= Office equipment and other fixed assets 3 - 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

() Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable (see note
1(x)). Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note
1(1)(ii)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see
note 1(I)(ii)).
and brands is recognised as an expense in the period in

Expenditure on internally generated goodwill

which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

- Software licenses 5 - 10 years
Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually
to determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.
If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

(k) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(k) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets which, for the Group are primarily
properties leased for own use which expiry within one year.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the group decides whether to capitalise the lease on
a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises the
initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 1(i) and 1(l)

(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(k) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a
lease that is not originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate
lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on
the revised lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are any rent concessions which arose as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and which
satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS
16 Leases. In such cases, the group took advantage of the
practical expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16
and recognised the change in consideration as if it were not
a lease modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as
the present value of contractual payments that are due to be
settled within twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment property in ‘property, plant and
equipment’ and presents lease liabilities separately in the
statement of financial position.

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group
classified leases as finance leases if the leases transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group. Leases which did not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group were classified
as operating leases, with the following exceptions:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property was classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, was accounted for as if held
under a finance lease; and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which could not be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, was accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building was
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease was the time that
the lease was first entered into by the group, or taken
over from the previous lessee.

Where the Group acquired the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets were recognised as property,
plant and equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, were recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation was provided at rates which
wrote off the cost or valuation of the assets over the term of
the relevant lease or, where it was likely the Group would
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(i). Impairment losses were accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1(I). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments were
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals were charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they were incurred.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(k) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

Where the Group had the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases were charged
to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis was more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received were recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals were charged to profit or loss in the

accounting period in which they were incurred.

(ii) As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is

not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
The rental income from operating leases is recognised in
accordance with note 1(v)(iii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-leases
are classified as a finance lease or as an operating lease
with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the exemption described in note 1(k)(i), then
the Group classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses (ECLs) on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables); and

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see note
1(n)).

Other financial assets measured at fair value, including

units in bond funds, equity securities measured at FVPL,

equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling)

and derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL

assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other receivables
and contract assets: effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest
rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate used in the

measurement of the lease receivable.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(1 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:
- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12

months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs:
to result from all possible default events over the

these are losses that are expected

expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss

allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making
this reassessment, the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 180 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(1 Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continuead)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt securities that
are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which the loss
allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 1(v)
(v) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-
impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset, lease
receivable or contract asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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(1)

(i)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at

the end of each reporting period to identify indications that

the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case

of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased:

investment property;

property, plant and equipment (other than properties
carried at revalued amounts);

intangible assets;

goodwill; and

investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount

is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that
are not yet available for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated

annually whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 A P

() FEBEREERE #®)

(i)  EHtERBHEEMNRE
AEEREEREHREAIERINRERET
HE - WRERBSBEMPRER NIEER
EELBRRE ATATFRBTRBECER
MEBENEFEXDLRD (BEKI) :

- REYE:

- PE BEERE ZREGRSBIKRZY
EERIM)

-  ERERE:

|
I
1

P &

— ARAFBRARARMBARZRE

il B3R B ERDRETR - BIZEEZ T KE
SHAT ARG o tbsh - BRNEEE K R AT H
ERZEVEENRBREAIEREFHZELE
E SFEeftT kOB ERS AT
AR ETR -

—  AEAKEEER

BEZAEESEZEQER L EK
AEFEREEIZRREET - £HEE
AEER 2RARREFTHEHEY
Z A MEER E R R Z R AT
BRERER BRFARASREMHREH
BE - WEEZHEESRAZR LTS
YREMEEZRERAR - BIZARA
BUWELARSRAZRNEEMAS (B
—ERSELEM) EANRESE -

TR RA R 2 EER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’'s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()  Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(iii)

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial report in compliance

Interim financial reporting and impairment

with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (see notes 1(I)(i) and 1(I)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.

Inventories and other contract costs

(m)
(i) Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such
sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed
in the production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value as follows:

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(m) Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)
(i) Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in

which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

The fair value of inventories acquired in a business
combination is determined based on their estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of sale, and a reasonable profit margin based on the
effort required to complete and sell the inventories.

(ii) Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil
a contract with a customer which are not capitalised as
)(i)), property, plant and equipment
(see note 1(i)) or intangible assets (see note 1(j)).

inventory (see note 1(m

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained e.g. an incremental sales commission. Incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when incurred
if the costs relate to revenue which will be recognised in a
future reporting period and the costs are expected to be
recovered. Other costs of obtaining a contract are expensed
when incurred.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)

(m)
(i) Other contract costs (Continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs relate
directly to an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance resources that will
be used to provide goods or services in the future; and are
expected to be recovered. Costs that relate directly to an
existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract may include direct labour, direct materials,
allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly chargeable to
the customer and other costs that are incurred only because
the group entered into the contract (for example, payments
to sub-contractors). Other costs of fulfilling a contract,
which are not capitalised as inventory, property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount of the contract cost asset exceeds the
net of (i) remaining amount of consideration that the group
expects to receive in exchange for the goods or services to
which the asset relates, less (ii) any costs that relate directly
to providing those goods or services that have not yet been
recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged to
profit or loss when the revenue to which the asset relates is
recognised. The accounting policy for revenue recognition is
set out in note 1(v).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 1(v)) before being unconditionally entitled
to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in note
1(1)(i) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to
the consideration has become unconditional (see note 1(0)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(v)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognised (see note 1(0)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see note 1(v)(v)).

(o) Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 1(n)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note

1)
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(P)

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at

Interest-bearing borrowings

fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 1(x)).

(q)

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair

Trade and other payables

value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

(r)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in note

1(0(0).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(iii)

The fair value of the employee services received in

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share award scheme

exchange for the grant of shares is recognised as staff costs
in profit or loss with a corresponding increase in capital
reserve, which is measured based on the grant date share
price of the Company.

(iv)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

(t) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(1) Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t) Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(h),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the reporting date unless the property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)y Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

= in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities
(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(i) Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a contract
under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract. Provisions for
onerous contracts are measured at the present value of the
lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and
the net cost of continuing with the contract.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i) Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition
are initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value
can be reliably measured. After their initial recognition at
fair value, such contingent liabilities are recognised at the
higher of the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount that would
be determined in accordance with note 1(u)(i). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that cannot
be reliably fair valued or were not present obligations at the
date of acquisition are disclosed in accordance with note

T(u)(i).

(v) Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of watches accessories and commodities

Revenue from the sale of watches accessories and
commodities is recognised at a point of time when the
control of the goods has been transferred to the customers,
being when the commodities has been delivered to the
agreed location. Revenue excludes value added tax and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

m Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

1 BERETTEEE #)

(u BERIIREE @)
(i) EBEHPREZIAEE

XA AECSIREE (RRBREERZE
H) NFAAREER - HEARERER A
B ERAANENIERE  ZHIARABEHN
R BB R #E (WER) BRIEH
FIUWEECBRZRSERER - TR E
WA R EFEXILIFNIE B E R ZERN
XA MR AREZ AR ESRIEM E1(u)()H

=

(v) WKk EAMEA
BRAKREBEAEENEEXEBBERERTHES
i RERBAAEMTERLAKENHEER
ER > AEBERZBAD B AW -

P
=

EEMAMBOZEFRERTES  SUORHEA
BRERABER  WaRASEEBEREZKE
MAEAGERERR (TRERKRFE =TT WA ZEF
TR ETHER Ka T EREERIEMHE
B WEHBRERE S -

AREE Yz R H WA 2 ERBBR N E — P&
BEIIAT

() SHEFEREAKEM

KB & FEREC M K B an 0 W R B am HO 4R )
REBBERZPR (AR RXNEHEHEHE)
BR - W TEFBRER  YEHRENES
#Fr0 o



1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(V)

(ii) Provision of shop design and decoration service

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue is recognised progressively over time using cost-
to-cost method, i.e., based on the proportion of actual costs
incurred relative to the estimated total costs. The contract
asset (either partially or in full) is reclassified to receivables
when the entitlement to payment for that amount has
become unconditional.

(iii)

Rental income receivable under operating leases is

Rental income from operating leases

recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.
(iv)  Dividends
- Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

= Dividend
recognised when the share price of the investment

income from listed investments is

goes ex-dividend.

(v) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 1(1)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (Continued)
(vi)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as income
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of
the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”).

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollar, while the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”). The directors consider that
choosing RMB as the presentation currency best suits the
needs of the shareholders and investors.
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1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Renminbi
(“RMB”) at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into RMB at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1
January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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(b)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a Group of which the other entity
is a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

1 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(y) Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a company of

which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

Notes 13,
assumptions and their risk factors relating to impairment of

18, and 31 contain information about the

goodwill, impairment of trade and other receivables and fair
value of financial instruments. Other key source of estimation
uncertainty is as follows:

(i) Impairment of non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of a non-
current asset may not be recoverable, the asset may be
considered impaired, and an impairment loss may be
recognised in profit or loss. The carrying amounts of non-
current assets are reviewed periodically in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below the
carrying amounts. These assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable,
except for goodwill which is tested on an annual basis.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is
reduced to the recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(i) Impairment of non-current assets (continued)

In considering the impairment losses that may be required
for certain of the Group’s assets which include property,
plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) and
goodwill, recoverable amount of the asset needs to be
determined. The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair
value less costs to sell and the value in use. It is difficult to
precisely estimate fair value less costs of disposal because
quoted market prices for the Group’s assets are not readily
available. In determining the value in use, expected cash
flows generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement relating to items
such as level of sale volume, selling price and amount
of operating costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as sales volume, selling price
and amount of operating costs. Changes in these estimates
could have a significant impact on the carrying value of the
assets and could result in additional impairment charge or,
except for goodwill, reversal of impairment in future periods.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(ii)  Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expense. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer
taste and competitor actions. The Group will reassess the

estimates by the end of each reporting period.

(iii)

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

debts based on assessments of the recoverability of
the trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor.

circumstances indicate that the balances may not be

Impairments arise where events or changes in

collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and
other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year in
which such estimate has been changed.

Fair value measurement of level 3 financial
instruments

(iv)

In the absence of quoted market prices in an active market,
the Group estimates the fair value of the Group’s other
investments categorised as level 3 financial instruments,
details of which are set out in note 31(f) to the financial
statements, by considering information from a variety of
including the latest financial information, the
historical data on market volatility as well as the price and

sources,

industry and sector performance of the Group’s investments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing
of high-end consuming accessories, building up of high-
end consuming service platforms, international commodity
trading and its related supply chain services.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold to
customers, net of value added tax and deduction of any
sales discounts and returns.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and at the end
of reporting period 44% and 82% of the Group’s revenue
come from the largest customer and top five customers
respectively.

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are
disclosed in note 3(b).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B A Mt

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARZS®HE\E &)
(Continued)

(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) WA #)

(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) ON i)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by REFZERIMBBEE S TP EHWAHED

major products or service lines is as follows:

mF -

Revenue from contracts with customers
within the scope of HKFRS 15

Disaggregated by major products or
service lines

REFEFEHNZBA (B
IR E RIS 1555
SER)

BEEEMIRBRAD

- Revenue from manufacturing of — REREBREE
watches accessories EmZBA
— Revenue from provision of shop — REREEMHRT &
design and decoration service RERB 2 HA
- Revenue from commodity trading — REKXFEMm
B ZHA
Revenue from other sources H At AR U A
Gross rentals from investment properties REEBEMHEZ
BLHESWKA

R AR R B T AR R

2024
—E-NEF
RMB’000
ARBT T

306,353

381,751

355,451

1,043,555

2,929

1,046,484

RMB’000
ARETT

359,761

350,947

710,746

1,421,454

2,064

1,423,518




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(a) Revenue (Continued)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

During the period under review, the Group’s business
was primarily focused on the manufacturing of high-
end consuming accessories, the building up of high-end
consuming service platforms, international commodity
trading and its related supply chain services.

Revenue from provision of shop design and decoration
service is recognised progressively over time.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
geographic markets is disclosed in note 3(b)(iii).

(i) Revenue expected to be recognised in the future
arising from contracts with customers in existence at
the reporting date

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts for shop design and
decoration service as the remaining performance obligations
of the contracts had an original expected duration of one
year or less.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are

organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and

services) and geography (mainly in Mainland China and
Hong Kong).

The Group has identified the following reportable segments:

— High-end consuming — Manufacturing of watches
accessories accessories and shop
design and decoration
services business;

— Commodity trading — Trading of iron ore
and coal

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group’s businesses
are separated into the two reportable segments on a
geographical and products and services basis, as the
divisional managers for each of these regions report
directly to the senior executive team. All segments primarily
derive their trading revenue through their own network. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the
reportable segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Segment results and assets

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the profit or loss and assets
attributable to each reportable segment on the following

basis:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments.
However, other than reporting inter-segment sales,
assistance provided by one segment to another, including

sharing of assets, is not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “gross

profit”.

Segment assets represent inventories only, without

eliminating the unrealised inter-segment profits.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)  Segment reporting (Continued)
(i) Segment results and assets (Continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023 is set out below.
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3 WARDEHEE @)

(b) DEBERE (&

(y PUEBEREE (&)

2T _NER-ZE-_=F+=-A=+—H
LEFERERSE RS BRAFERAAEE K
BETHRERABRMHZAEEZERY) HEHR
AR o

High-end consuming accessories Commodity trading Total
BREERE AFBRES it

2024

2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

e CT-CF ety CT--F el -FT--f

RMB'000

RMB00 [ GUSN  RMBO0 RMB000
IGLAorl KU TT MY  ARMTT RIS ARMTT

Revenue from external customers RESNPREZBA 688,104 710,708 355,451 1,043,555 1421454
Inter-segment revenue GEELON 197,358 221,327 = 197,358 221,327
Reportable segment revenue ERFHUA 885,462 355,451 1,240,913 1,642,781
Reportable segment gross profit SHRHBER 136,995 30,248 11,763 148,758 215,265
Reportable segment assets SHAPEE 69,420 84,629 106,012 175,432 258,115

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the high-end
consuming accessories segment in PRC is mainly engaged
in the manufacturing of watches accessories and shop
design and decoration services business in PRC.

BE T N&F+_-_A=+—"BItFE +&H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 785 i B

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3
(Continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (Continued) (b)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit (i)
or loss and assets

WARDEBRE (#)

DEBERE (#)

BoBBA - BEREEZHER

fio

2024 2023
—EF-mE —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF ARBFIT

1,240,913 1,642,781
(197,358) (221,327)

1,043,555 1,421,454

148,758 215,265

Revenue ON

Total revenue for reportable segments ERDEFRUA

Elimination of inter-segment revenue HH D AU A

Consolidated revenue SN N

(Loss)/profit (E518), %A

Total gross profit for reportable ERHMBEF4EFE
segments

Other revenue EA g A

Other net loss HME1EF5E

Distribution costs 2 EHE AR

Administrative expenses THRER

Share of profits of associates DIGEEE R EE

Finance costs B H5 R 7R

66,384 47,299
(26,427) (6,394)
(64,472) (61,100)
(189,562) (172,805)
23,169 16,358
(4,559) (5,385)

Consolidated (loss)/profit before taxation #R&BFAT (BE),EF

(46,709) 33,238
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B A Mt

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARZDIHEE &)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) EBERE (&)

(i)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit (i) ZWmHIIBWA - BREREEZHIR (&)
or loss and assets (Continued)

2024 2023
“E-IF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTTT
Assets BE
Assets for reportable segments ERDHEE (FHE)
(inventories) 175,432 258,115
Trade, other receivables, prepayment JEWE 5 8RR - E M FE UK
and deposits 1H - BNRIERES 624,099 604,779
Loans to associates REHEE DT ZER 34,719 33,789
Current tax recoverable ZNERAT Uy 13518 251 469
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESZEEY 937,036 990,815
Deposits with banks RITIF X 329,600 318,437
Investment properties REME 259,110 266,398
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE R 538,212 551,137
Intangible assets B EE 5,245 2,727
Goodwill kS 53,728 52,611
Interests in associates AN 161,164 137,386
Other investments HMig& 414,421 379,236
Deferred tax assets BEHIEE E 1,125 3,259
Consolidated total assets IREREE 3,534,142 3,599,158
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(iiiy  Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical locations of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s investment
properties, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
goodwill, interests in associates, prepayment and deposits
and other investments (“specified non-current assets”).
The geographical locations of customers are based on the
locations at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical locations of the specified non-
current assets are based on the physical locations of the
assets, in the case of property, plant and equipment, the
locations of operations to which they are allocated, in the
case of intangible assets and goodwill, and the locations
of operations, in the case of prepayment and deposits and
other investments.

The Group’s businesses are mainly managed in three
principal economic environments, Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Taiwan/Malaysia.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 2 B
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARZ&HRE @)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEBERE (&)
(i)  Geographic information (Continued) (i) HEER (F)
2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBTT
Revenue from external customers REIIMDEFE ZWA
Mainland China B i 905,767 1,064,415
Hong Kong B 137,788 357,039
Total HEt 1,043,555 1,421,454
Specified non-current assets EERBEE
Mainland China H A3, 683,960 715,311
Hong Kong B 652,760 620,287
Taiwan/Malaysia Ak, BREE 90,873 89,950
Total #Et 1,427,593 1,425,548
Revenue from major customers REFEEZFZWA
Customer A ZEA
—high-end consuming — @i HBRED 2B
accessories segment 463,899 508,005
Customer B ZFB
— commodity trading segment -~ ARREmE S5 9 209,456

Revenue from above customers individually contributed KB FHREFZWAZBEREEGA WAL
more than 10% of the total consolidated revenue of the E810%JA L »
Group.

R AR R B T AR R



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i fi ik

4 OTHER REVENUE AND NET LOSS 4 EHMWAREIEFEE

(a) Other revenue

Interest income

Dividend income from other investments

Rental income from investment
properties

Rental income from operating leases,
other than those relating to
investment properties

Government grants

Others

(a) HAbUgA

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
FEWA 41,212 34,227
REEH MR E AR EWA 5,509 4,989

REREMFE 2HEBA
2,929 2,064

EREZAS WA - M

BEMERBERRIN

1,801
TR #66 B 2,286
Hftb 1,932
47,299

In 2024, the Group successfully applied for government
grants that relate to funding support set up by the Mainland

China Government. Under the conditions

support, the Group is required to maintain sufficient value-

R-F_F NEERINBFHRAFME - &2
BHPEABERARZINEDE R - RIZEBIK

of the funding  AKBEREFTRNEEVHER =27

added tax sales, enhance the visibility of brand and product,
and production capabilities in the Mainland market.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B A Mt

4 OTHER REVENUE AND NET LOSS 4 HMRAREEZRE &)

(Continued)
(b)  Other net loss (b) HMEEFER
2024 2023
—E-UE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFIT
Net foreign exchange loss HNIE 5 I 5 18R B (41,872) (11,560)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property,  HEME - HE MR EIL
plant and equipment and intangible REREERZ (&
assets 18) F% (1,959)
Fair value gain on financial assets BIERSEERMEEZR
held for trading AEWE 3,164
Net realised gain on financial assets BEXSEemEELE
held for trading IR AT R =
Reversal of impairment of property, WEE - BB REERE
plant and equipment o 3,961
Net gain on disposal of a subsidiary L EME A R 2 W F 58 =
(6,394)

EYVIIg e S 59 200



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 785 i B

5 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 BRBiAT (B5E) BRI

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

(a) Finance costs
Interest on bank loans
Interest on lease liabilities
Bank charges

BRBiAT (B18),a M MR A TIRB RIGH

(b) Staff costs
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

(c) Other items
Amortisation of intangible assets
(note 12)
Depreciation
— Investment properties and property,
plant and equipment (note 11)

— Right-of-use assets (note 11)

Impairment losses of
— Trade receivables

Expenses relating to short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets

Direct operating expenses of investment
properties that generate rental income

Direct operating expenses of investment
properties that did not generate rental
income

Auditors’ remuneration
Cost of inventories?*

2024 2023
—E-MEF —E o=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
(@) BAFSRAN
IRITEFRF B 3,536
HEAERE 388
RITEH 1,461
5,385
(b) BIRA
e TEREMFR 95,064 88,159
TE R FGRIRGT B3
15,827 16,162
110,891 104,321
(c) HfbEE
BT A
(H1a£12) 590
e
— REWERYE
BB K 5%
(Hfa£11) 42,173
—FREEE
(Hfa£11) 10,349
BUBEETE
— ERE SRR 4,964
EREHHEE MEEE
EEMENRY 2,243
EAASWARIRE
VXN EREELER 435
W ARELHSWAR
WEMENEE
BEBH 1,700
ZE RN 1,811
FEARAK 1,206,189
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(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
(Continued)

Cost of inventories includes RMB129,261,000 (2023:
RMB131,909,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation
and amortisation expenses and operating lease charges,
which amounts are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 5(b) for
each type of expenses.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss represents:
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S B A Mt

BRELET (B8), B8R (&)

FERABFEEETIRA TERHEH
AYXURKEREEREHEMNARE
129,261,000t (= T = = F: AR ¥
131,909,0007T) * &% & BT AR S EAZ
A ECKH (D) EBHBEN R ELH -

REEBERZAENR

REBBRAZBIAS :

2024 2023
—E-E —E o=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTTT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax AHEATTE — BB AEHR
Provision for the year REERHE =
Under/(over) provision in respect of BEFERETIR
prior years (HBRERE) (1,397)
(1,397)
Current tax — Overseas AEABLIE — g Ih
Provision for PRC Corporate Income REZHREDEEHEE
Tax for the year 1,948
Over provision in respect of prior years  BE & EBEAR M (2,021)
(73)
Deferred tax IEFERIR
Origination and reversal of temporary TR EREE KRR
77777 differences (note 27) (Htet27) (483)
Total BET (1,953)

safgnamas —2omeek  CEETEEEEEE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 785 i B

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 #HSE8BZRZAEH &)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense/(credit)y (b) HBIRBIX ~(E%) BB AKX

and accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax

rates:

2024
—E-NEF
RMB’000
ARET T

(Loss)/profit before taxation

BRELRT (B18), & (46,709)

Notional tax on (loss)/profit before
taxation, calculated at the rates
applicable to profits in the
jurisdictions concerned

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Over provision in respect of prior years

Effect of tax losses not recognised

BBAT (BIB), w2 B
BUA - A AR
ARIEAB R

BABHBAZHATE
PRI 2 HIAR &
BEFEBRRE

W RERZHBBEZE

Actual tax expense/(credit)

ERBEMAS (E2)
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2023
—E-=F
RMB'000
AREETF T

33,238

5,282
(9,156)
3,395
(3,418)
1,944

(1,953)




6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

Reconciliation between tax expense/(credit)
and accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax
rates: (Continued)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands,
the Company is exempt from income tax in the Cayman
Islands. In addition, subsidiaries located in jurisdictions
other than Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan and Malaysia
are not subject to any income tax in these jurisdictions.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
16.5% (2023: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for
the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a
qualifying corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate
regime.

For this subsidiary, the first HKD2 million of assessable
profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5%. The provision of the Hong Kong
Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated at the same
basis in 2023.

The applicable income tax rate of the Group’s Mainland
China subsidiaries is 25% (2023: 25%) for the year.

The provision for Taiwan Income Tax is calculated at 20%
(2023: 20%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.

The provision for Malaysia Income Tax is calculated at 24%
(2023: 24%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
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BERNESHRBENIRFANZGTERB RN Z
16.5% (ZE =4 : 16.5%) ;715 ' EA&EH
—MEAFNEHMAHEERDE KB QR
BRAN o

UM BRARME @ B2A 8B TERFEF A
8.25% MBI R BAL - MR T IEARBLHEFILA16.5%
MR EEAR - WM B AR Z BB ESHEBED
RE-T - = FRRMNEETE -

F AN E A B A B B A B A TS B R
B25% (ZE =4 : 25%) o

BEMESHEBEENRFRZ G ERFRENZ
20% (ZEB-=4%F : 20%) st & -

Bk TSR BE IR ERN 2T EER S
Fl2o4% (ZE==4 :24%) 514

wafrgamas —2onesd  EEEGG



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 785 i B

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7 EEE

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)  RIFFEE (A FMEHI) $£383(1) KR AT (HE

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the & =EF|IFEE) B0 F2MFETEEEP S 0
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of T :

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
and other benefit

Directors’ fee benefits plans Total
e 2R BIEA
=k HithFl & AR Azt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT AR%®Trn ARET:R
(note 25)
(fizt25)

Year ended 31 December 2024

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony
(appointed on 6 December 2024)

Mr. Zhang Yuping
(resigned on 6 December 2024)

Mr. Huang Yonghua
Mr. Lee Shu Chung Stan

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Shi Zhongyang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cai Jianmin
Mr. Liu Xueling
Ms. Qian Weiging
(appointed on 21 March 2023)

BE-Z-_ME+=-A=1
—HiLtEE

BITES
SRIKBE S A
(R=ZZE-mE+=A
NBEZEE)
KRBT
(R=ZE=-mE+=A
SNBEHE)
EKERAE
TRIALE

FUTES
by

BYFHTES

BEREE

E St

BEFRT
(R=ZT-=%=A
—t+—REZT) 92

Total

e
chR
2

10,645

I D) Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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Fo 75 i B
7  DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 7 EEME w)
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
and other benefit
Directors’ fee benefits plans Total
e ERR BRER
EEvokn Hofth M 2 FEIER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR%®TRT ARBT:x
(note 25)
(Hfzt25)
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-E_=F%
TZA=Z+—-HLEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhang Yuping RET LA
(resigned on 6 December 2024) (R=Z=—mF+=A
7~ BEHE) = = = -
Mr. Huang Yonghua EKELAE 163 2,553 = 2,716
Mr. Lee Shu Chung Stan FHBEE 163 2,082 16 2,261
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Shi Zhongyang SR LA 91 - - 91
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHITES
Mr. Cai Jianmin BERLL 91 - - 91
Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William ERBE A
(resigned on 25 September 2023) (RZE=_=FNA
ZTRARMMT) 66 - - 66
Mr. Liu Xueling Gk e 91 = = 91
Ms. Qian Weiging BEELL
(appointed on 21 March 2023) (R=—Z-=%=A
—+—BEZE) 71 - - 71
Total FE 736 4,635 16 5,387

FFEE A FRA

—z- a4 @
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7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, no directors’
has been paid or is payable by the Group during the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. There was no
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed

remuneration

to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
there were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the
directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set out
in note 8 below as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2023: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other two (2023: three) individuals are as follows:

7 EEME ®

BREXPBEBEEN BE_FT_NFR_FT_
ZFT A=t -BHLFE AEEXEEW
ENXENESHE EFTEREXFBN
EEAHE_ZF_HNFR-_FT_=F+-A=
T BLEFEZME L -

BE_ZT-_WMFER-_T-_=F+=-A=+—H
HFE  AEBYEENREN TEFHEM
hE&=HAL (ERTXHES) MFKIAE - 1F
BMAREE 2 RE)RE SRR ME -

8 ®‘BEHAL

AR HFALTHFERE =4 (ZE_=ZF ' W
Z)EE BENFHRMEIHE -8 TR
(ZE-=F: =) ATWHFHNRZEWNT :

Salaries and other emoluments
Contributions to retirement benefit plans

Discretionary bonuses BIIBIEAL

e kA
L,M(}EEI%IJ EI-I_EUT/\TA

2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT

3,589 6,488

34 48

6,536

I TT YD Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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S B A Mt

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 8 EBaHAL#@)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The emoluments of the two (2023: three) individuals, other HB&ZEMEIME (ZTZ=F: =%) A+
than directors, with the highest emoluments are within the (ZFEKRIN) 2MENF T3|EHE -
following bands:

2024 2023
—EomF —F_=F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) B ([Bxl) AH
1,500,001 — 2,000,000 1,500,001 - 2,000,000 =
2,000,001 — 2,500,000 2,000,001 - 2,500,000 2
2,500,001 — 3,000,000 2,500,001 — 3,000,000 1
9 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 9 HthzEWA
(@) Tax effect relating to other comprehensive (a) AHEHMEZEKRANKK &
income
No tax effect is credited to other comprehensive income for ®HEZE-ZT-_MNFR-_T-_=F+-A=+—H
the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. IEFE - BENBEZEG ARME2EKA -

HWRAEKE D (BIEEFH

(b) Components of other comprehensive income, (b) HEfiZ
DERAE)

including reclassification adjustments

2024 2023
—EopE —Eo=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBEFTT
Equity investments at FVOCI: RBEMEEBARALE
AEZRARE
Changes in fair value recognised during FRHERZ A EE
the year (note 16) (Hte16) (59,515)
Amounts transferred from fair value reserve @ A A #E (TRl E AR
(non-recycling) to retained profits W) BEEREEN e/ 38,730
Net movement in the fair value reserve ~ REME2EWAERZ FRX
(non-recycling) during the year NAEREZESFE (T
recognised in other comprehensive #AER)
income (20,785)

R AR R B T AR R
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10 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is
based on the loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB65,161,000 (2023: earnings of
RMB33,885,000) and the weighted average of 4,404,018,959
ordinary shares (2023: 4,404,018,959 ordinary shares) in
issue during the year, calculated as follows:

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares

10 ZR (BER) BF

(a) BREX (BE) EF

BRER (BB B TDHBREARRRG
BEAEEEEARKG65161,000T (ZE ==
F: AFAR%33,885,00050) &FERNE ET
INHE F 15 A% B14,404,018,95908 LB (—Z T —
=4 :4,404,018,959 % L@MAR) T H - FTE WM

(i) EERMEEIRE

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—B2ZB2317
Effect of shares repurchased BOIRD &

2024 2023
—E-FE —ET=F
Rl 4,404,018,959 4,404,018,959

Weighted average number of ordinary Rt+t-—A=+—H%E

shares at 31 December W R B

AN

4,404,018,959 4,404,018,959

BT Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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10 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continved) 10 B (E518) BF &)

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (continued) (a) BREX (BEB) BR &)
(i) Consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity (i) ZAAFLBEBRBREELES (BEB), %
shareholders of the Company |
2024 2023
—E-mEF ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥EFTT
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity AARBRDEFR AEM
shareholders of the Company (FE38),/ % H (65,161) 33,885
(i)  (Loss)/earnings per share (iily S (BB &R
2024 2023
=t Sy S —z=—=f
RMB(0.015) RMB0.008
Basic (loss)/earnings per share FREK (F8),/ B AR%(0.015)7T AER#0.0087T
(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (b) BRE#EE (BB) BA

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the HE T -_NER-"T-_=F+-F=+—H
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, and therefore, IF5FE @ WEEEEL LRI - WEREE (&
diluted (loss)/earnings per share are the same as basic 18)/BFEFREX (BE)  BFHERE -
(loss)/earnings per share.

EELVE IS N S 169 0
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY, 11 REYX  Y¥X  BERRE
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Office
equipment
landand  Right-of-use Leasehold Motor andother  Construction Invesiment
buidings assels  improvements vehicles ~ fixed assefs  in progress Sub-fotal properties Total
HAZRER

HHRET  KRERE ARG R RpERAE  ERIR M RENE it
RUBOOO  RMBODD  RMBODO  RWBOOD  RMBOOO  RWBON  RMBOD  RWBOO  RMBOD
ARRTR  ARRTR ARRTR ARETR ARMTR ARRFR ARMTR ARETR ARRER

Cost: A

Balance at 1 January 2023 WZBZZE-A-RykH 425,700 40938 63,941 47,048 122132 82,134 781,893 7247 929,140
Exchange adjusiments 35 3208 3% 21 754 1323 = 5,888 = 5888
Additions g 10 28,680 3 762 11,983 56,426 100,483 144267 24710
Transfer from construction in progress AR TEEA 82,886 - 31618 - - (14501) - - -
Disposes e (14,339) (7811 (2002 ey (205 - (37,165) - (37,165)

Balance at 31 December 2023 WBZZETA=t-RrER 497621 62,339 94097 47,800 123,183 26059 851,099 291,534 1,142,633

Balance at 1 January 2024 R-Z-mE-A-BlEH 497621 94,097 47800 123,183 26,059 851,099 1,142,633
Exchangs ecjusiments Byt 207) 3 1,393 2366 = 2669 2669
Additions g 19,345 1,304 1443 4310 13,067 46,036 46,03
Transfer from construction in progress AR TEEA 14223 - - (14.228) - -
Transfer o intangiole assets W37 - - - (2,508) (2508) (2508)

Disposals i3

(1,069) (1,724) (1419) (22,783) (22,783)
Decrease from disposal of a subsidiary it E-BHBRAMH = =

() (74) ()

)}

4

Balance at 31 December 2024 R-E-mET-R=f-Hz&% 108,928 48912 128,366 874,439 1,165,973
Accumulated depreciation: g

Balance at 1 January 2023 RZE-=F-A-RliH (98.479) (25,194) (45,200 (33522) (67 466) - (269,861) (20559) (290414)
Exchange adjusiments 35 (827) (246) (202) (556) (801) = (2632) - (263)
Charge for the year EESH (1461 (039 (1231 paE (1125) - (479%9) 5 ()
Reversal of impaiment loss REFERE 3,961 - - - - - 3961 - 3,961
Written back on disposals HERR 1,735 2,113 1745 13 9,580 - 16,509 - 16,509
Balance at 31 December 2023 i g o = (10,071) (33,076) (56,031) (35.840) (69,944) - (299962) (25,136) (325,098)
Balance at 1 Jenuary 2004 KoZ-mE-R-R7ER (105,071) (0%  (B00) (35840 (69,944) (299962) 2518  (3250%)
Exchange adjusiments Eige () (o7 (354) (1086) (1611) (3.499) : (3.499)
Charge for te year ERSH M3 (05 (1es) 068 (10958) (59,134 1% (6642)
Reversal of impaiment loss HEGERD 4768 - - - - 4768 4768
Written back on disposals fHERE - 17424 1,059 1,689 1417 21,589 21,589

Decrease from disposal of a subsidiary  fit E-BHBAAMHY - - - - ] il i

Balance i 31 December 2024 O WIS ENMCOTN  ng 65 (BoT) (8 (61069 Y R Y )
Net book value: EERE:

At 31 December 2024 RE-ME+=A=1-A 401,19 538,212 797322
At 31 December 2023 AE-=Et-A=1-H 392,550 29,263 38,066 11,960 53,239 26,099 551,137 266,398 81753

Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024



11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
(including leasehold right of use assets)

(i) The land owned by the Group is located in Taiwan,
which has an indefinite useful life and therefore is
not depreciated. The carrying amount of the land
as at 31 December 2024 is RMB63,416,000 (2023:
RMB65,867,000). A reversal of impairment loss of
RMB4,768,000 (2023: RMB3,961,000) was recognized
in “other net loss”.

(i) The buildings owned by the Group are located in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan.

(i)  As at 31 December 2024, land and buildings
in Mainland China with carrying amount of
RMB79,814,000 (2023: RMB89,952,000) and Taiwan
with carrying amounts of RMB90,873,000 (2023:
RMB89,950,000) were pledged to banks as security
for certain loan facilities (see note 23).

(iv)  Investment properties

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

11 REYZE - -YE - BERRE

(&)

MH*E -BERZE (BEHECARE

E) WBEEE

(i) NE@MBAZ LR EE - A ER
FRAFH BT ERE R-ZT=Q
F+-_A=+—8 %t zEEES
A R 63,416,000 (ZZ = =4 : A
R #65,867,0007T) ° JB (A E 1B & B A
R#4768,000C (BB -=4F: AR#
3,961,0007T) B R [E BB /F8E] A

TR
(i AEEBREAZEFURTERNM  FE
PAN =

(i) RZZEZWF+=—A=+—H IR*
Wi BR & B A A R #79,814,0007T
(ZE==% : AR¥89,952,0007t) &
IR & %R E & A R %90,873,0007T
(Z=2=—=%: AR¥89,950,0007T) Z
THREFEEAETERRE ZER
EIRTR1T (BRRME23) -

(iv) HEWZE

Net book value of investment properties

REWMFEZREFE

Fair value of investment properties
(level 3 fair value measurement using
significant unobservable inputs)

REMEZAAE (B=FD
R EFBERTABRREH
ABBFE)

SRR A TRA F % PR

2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
259,110 266,398
336,473 398,347
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
(including leasehold right of use assets) (Continued)

(iv)  Investment properties (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the investment properties located
in Shanghai and Beijing, Mainland China, were rented
out under terms of operating leases or held for capital
appreciation. As at 31 December 2024, the fair value of the
investment properties stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses is estimated at approximately
RMB336,473,000 on an open market, existing use basis, by
reference to recent sales price of comparable properties
using market data which are publicly available and made
adjustments to reflect the differences in the characteristics
between the investment properties and the comparable
properties. The fair value of the investment properties has
not been evaluated by an independent firm of surveyors.
The Group has adopted the cost model under HKAS 40,
Investment property, to account for its investment properties,
and accordingly, the carrying amounts of the investment
properties were not adjusted to the revalued amount at the

end of the reporting period.

(V) Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by

class of underlying asset is as follows:

11 REWE - WE- BERSKRE
(%)

ME- -BERRE(BRHEERESR
E) WRERIE (@)
(iv) ®REWE (&)

RZEBE-_WFE+_A=+—8 RTHEAH
EPERIEFHREMERBLEHEHRRLA
B EEANEE - R T -_WFE+=-_A=+—
H - AR B ITE RRBEEBERGE MG
MRRABRNEEMENDAABHBTOBAR
#336,473,0007C * ZAAENIRARTIZHER
AREEVLR2EFRATARESIIELFAEN
REEEMFEATELRYEZHOFEBER
WTIZHEMEHNAELRYENTRES
BmMEL REMENAARBREB LS
TR AEBMERABES L ERIFEI05 - &
BEYE ORNAREAAREREYSE Al
ERBRERREREVECODERAEZSES
ggo

(v) (EREEE

HBAE S B EREEREEEEEZ T
T -

31 December 1 January

2024 2024

—E-mEF —EmEF
+=ZB=+—H —H—H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hfat AR¥TT AREFTT

Properties leased for own use, carried at FA{EBRYE  RITER
depreciated and impaired cost BEKANEHE

(i) 29,263
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
(including leasehold right of use assets) (Continued)
(v)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

11 REYR W% BERRHE
()

ME- - BMERZE (BRHEEERREE
E) WRERRE (&)

) ERRAE (&)

BRNBETEANHEE ZFAXHE T

2024 2023
—E_OE R o=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets AAERIAEERIEIH
by class of underlying asset: FREEENERS -
Other properties leased for own use HIEB R EAMYIZE 10,349
Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) HEREFE (Hit5(a)) 388
Expenses relating to short-term leases and ARG HHEE RIKBEEE
leases of low-value assets HEMRX 2,243

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
RMB6,577,000. This amount primarily related to the
capitalised lease payments payable under new tenancy
agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases, the maturity analysis
of lease liabilities are set out in notes 21(d) and 31(b),
respectively.

i. Other properties leased for own use
The Group has obtained the right to use other properties as

its warehouses and offices through tenancy agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 6 years.

REERN - BEFHAEEE R/ ARMGE,577,000
e ZeRETTEFHAERZE THNEARLA
ERRER -

HEReRLARE HEAGINHASTHF
B0 RIEFIR M EE21(d) &31(b) -

HIEERME YR
BEHEERZ  ARECENEREMYEE

RERERBRAENEN - ZFWE2NFIH
EMR—BR—ENRF -

AR FRA R TR AR AR
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 \|EEE
Software licences
BT
RMB’000
ARBEFIT
Cost: RS -
Balance at 1 January 2023 RZEBE_=F—A—HZ&&% 7,862
Additions b 18
Disposals HE (260)
Balance at 31 December 2023 RIB_=F+_A=1+—HB2&&% 7,620
Balance at 1 January 2024 RZZB-_NE—A—HZ&E% 7,620
Additions b 574
Transfer from construction in progress REETREA
(note 11) (HfeE11) 2,508
Disposals HE (193)
Balance at 31 December 2024 R-ZEBE-_NF+_-_A=+—Hz%&% 10,509
Accumulated amortisation: ZGtE#e .
Balance at 1 January 2023 R-EBE_=F—A—B2&% (4,447)
Charge for the year FELH (590)
Written back on disposals H & # (o) 144
Balance at 31 December 2023 MN-ZEBE_=F+"A=+—HB2Z&% (4,893)
Balance at 1 January 2024 R-ZE_NFE—F—B24&%
Charge for the year FEXH
Written back on disposals H & 3 o]
Balance at 31 December 2024 Eé;?:mi-i—:ﬂ E-f——EI 2SR
Net book value: BRTEFE
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-_mWE+=-HA=+—H
At 31 December 2023 R-EBE-_=F+_-_H=+—H 2,727

The amortisation charges for the year are included in FEEEEAFTAGEAERRITTHEAR] T -
“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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5 i 2R B RE
13 GOODWILL 13 EE
RMB’000

ARBTT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE—_=F—H—H 237,443
Exchange adjustments BE % A 4,018
At 31 December 2023 NZE_=F+-_A=+—8H 241,461
At 1 January 2024 R-ZZE_MFE—H—H 241,461
Exchange adjustments M 5, B 7,526
At 31 December 2024 R-E-_ME+=-_A=+—H 248,987
Accumulated impairment losses: ZEHREESE :
At 1 January 2023 RZE-_=F—HF—H (185,429)
Exchange adjustments b X FH (3,421)
At 31 December 2023 R-ZEBE-_=F+_-A=+—H (188,850)
At 1 January 2024 R-ZE-_WF—HF—H (188,850)
Exchange adjustments FE 5 B (6,409)
At 31 December 2024 R-ZF-_mIF+=A=+—H (195,259)
Carrying amount: BRMEIE :

At 31 December 2024

R-ZZE-_WMF+=—_A=+—H

At 31 December 2023

R-—BE—_=F+=-_A=+—8 52,611

AR FRA R TR AR AR
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13 GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
identified according to places of operations and reportable
segments as follows:

13 BE (&)
EEEECRSELASEN ZRENR

HEIETAKERETIECEMHT L 2R
BT R EE BN

High-end consuming accessories RIMEEEE

2024 2023
—E-F —E-=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
53,728 52,611

High-end consuming accessories

At 31 December 2024, before impairment testing, goodwill
of RMB34,042,000 (2023: RMB32,925,000), RMB 18,000,000
(2023: RMB18,000,000) and RMB1,686,000 (2023:
RMB1,686,000) were allocated to Born Talent Limited, £
BEBEMTEETEBRAAF and BEMNFTHEXEEBERA
&) within the high-end consuming accessories segment
respectively.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
are determined based on value-in-use calculations. The
key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are the
discount rate and revenue/gross profit growth rate. The
Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the two
years financial budgets and extrapolates cash flows for the
following three years based on estimated annual average
growth rates in sales ranging from 1% to 3% (2023: 1% to
13%), growth rates in gross profit ratio ranging from 1% to
3% (2023: 1% to 3%), at a discount rate of 12.6% to 15.1%
(2023: 12.0% to 13.0%). Cash flows beyond five years
period are projected using 3% (2023: 3%) growth rate. This
rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant market. The discount rates used are pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments. The
growth rates are determined by management based on the
performance of the relevant cash-generating units and their
estimated future development.

Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

=imEERE
R-ZBE-WFE+-A=+—8 - #T7REIR
Al - B2 AR¥34,042,0000C (ZEZ =& :
A R #32,925,0007T) © A R #18,000,0007T
(ZZ=_=%F: ARK¥18,000,0007T) RARK
1,686,0007T (ZZ = =4 : A R #1,686,000
7)) BEARSEESMEERES BANESF
AR LETHEEMIREERRAAILE
MEHEEEEBRAF -

ReELBNzA RO eBNIEERAEENE
BT - FREEFEZEZRIABBEERRK
ASEFERE - REBREN TF1%E3%Z
BHFETFHHEELRR (ZT_ZF  1%E
13%) * MF1%E3% 2 EFEEREER (ZF =
=F 1%E3%) KN F12.6%E15.1% 2 855
R(ZEZ=F :12.0%213.0%) REIZMF
PHEECHEESRENREFRER=ZF RS
e AFEHEMNRSREMAI% (ZTE_=F:
3%) EREFEB o ZFETEBBERETSE T
HREPERE - FTAMRAXRARAARE ¥R
BRELERA S A FERRE - 2SI RETIH
ERERBRABRSEELEN KRR REFARK
BRMERE
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14 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 14 RHEBAT 2R

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries TXREHIE RN EFELE  BERKBEBEEKX
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities &2 yWEB AR ZH15 - BIEZHIER - T A
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless  FriER&H BRI AT @R o

otherwise stated.

Proportion of ownership interest

FEEEN
Place of Group's Held Particulars of
incorporation effective by the Held by issued and
Name of company and business interest ~ Company subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activity
rEEy @Rk EHERR
SR dMkasnd  ERAR o e CEOREREARHE FERR
Elegant Jewellery Holding Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% 5,000,000 shares  Investment holding
of HKD1 each
ZEREREARAT A 100% - 100% 5,000,000% #REARER
FHREAEIET KRR
Alpha Key Investments Limited BVI 100% 100% - 1 share of USD1  Investment holding
BRRARRAR EBRRES 100% 100% - RIETZRG  RERR
Xinyu Hengdeli Investments Limited BVI 100% 100% - 1 share of USD1  Investment holding
HTTEHREERAT ERRRES 100% 100% - RIETZRG  RERR
Hengdeli International Company Limited  Hong Kong 100% - 100% 1 share of HKD1  Trading and management
service
FENERERAR Eh 100% - 100% RIET R EHRERRE
Hengdeli Group Limited BVI 100% 100% - 1 share of USD1  Investment holding
ZENERERAT EBRRES 100% 100% = RIET 2R RERR

FIRAEERA R A ] R PR R
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14 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 14 RHEBARZRER &)
Proportion of ownership interest
FEEAN
Place of Group's Held Particulars of
incorporation effective by the Held by issued and
Name of company and business interest ~ Company subsidiaries paid up capital ~ Principal activity
A5z BARE AMEAR
RAER dMkesns  ERAE 5 e EETREREAHE FERK
Born Talent Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% 10,000,000 share  Trading and
of HKD1 each  manufacturing
ETERAT A 100% - 100% 10,000,0006 EHRE
BREEAT KA
Artdeco Group Company Limited PRC 100% - 100% 156,500,000 shares  Trading and
of HKD1each  manufacturing
BN REXEEERAT e 100% - 100% 156,500,000k &5 R&iE
BREE1AT KA
Shanghai Henge Decoration Project PRC 60% - 60% 20,000,000 shares  Decoration service
Management Company Limited of RMB1 each
LESREMTIREEERAR al 60% - 60% 20,000,000 MR
BREEAR®IT
IR
Suzhou Henge Exhibition Service PRC 60% - 60% 40,000,000 shares  Design, production and
Company Limited of RMB1 each  decoration service
FNTERERTREERAA i 60% - 60% 40,000,000 K&t - £EREHRS
BREEAR®IT
ZIRA

The directors are of the view that the Group has no #HE-_ZTE-_NER-_T-_=49+-A=+—H
individually material non-controlling interest for the years |tFE @ E=RAANEEIEFER S BEK
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. HISEEAR R ©
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15 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 15 REEQARZER
2024 2023
—EEF —ECo=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

Unlisted corporate entities FLEHEASE

Share of net assets JEIEEEFE 137,386

The following table shows information of associates that are THI|IREAEBEBETE  BHE NG ER o
material to the Group. These associates are accounted for P ZBL AR NEAS M B RERNIUEZSEA
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity B - FI R B AR E I ENEE L NG 2 B
method. The summarised financial information presented is B &3R4 R B &R EE o

based on the HKFRS financial statements of the associates.

Name Hengdeli Deyesion Mark Ocean Limited  Deyi Diligence Maritime Limited
International Shipping Limited

A SENEZHERGEER AR %8ABAF  Deyi Diligence Maritime Limited

Principal place of business/country of incorporation Hong Kong Hong Kong Hong Kong

TTEEHY SRR IAR &R &R &R

Principal activities Engaged in provision of Engaged in vessel holding Engaged in vessel holding
shipping services

IERH HEREMERE (e ] (]

% of ownership interests/voting rights held by the Group 46% 46% 35%

AREREZEERE  REEAS L 46% 46% 35%

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
st T =F Webdmliiel —T-=f ksl — T

SVEOREN  RMB'000 | EEHS  RMB'000 | alVEHN  RMB000
ARETT IUNGST ARYETT NSRS ARETT NS

At 31 December: R+=ZA=+-8:

Non-current assets FRBEE - - 99,575 93,811 135,877 139,279
Current assets MBEE 250,096 254,101 59,843 35,317 52,156 65,582
Current liabilities RBEE (80,770) (91,125) (53,868) (53,000) LRIk (136,760)

Net assets BEFE 169,326 162,976 105,550 76,128 99,203
Group's share of net assets AEEELEEFE 77,890 74,969 48,553 35,019 34,721

R AR R B T AR R
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15 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 15 REEQTZ2#ERE #)

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
il — T - Ebdmlifal T —F Wbl —T--F
RMB'000" EEGIYIX0ol  RMB000 YN0l  RMB000 RMB’000
IS ARETT NEEESM ARETT NSLEwE ARETT

Year ended 31 December:  HZE+=A=1+—8

IHEE:
Revenue WA 245,108 219,290 119,342 116,557 158,405
Profit/(loss) after tax Biess/ (E8) 1,846 (17,263) 26,950 28,824 42,599

Other comprehensive income E i 2 H A 4,504 3,543 2,472 1,641 2,278 657

6,350 (13,720) 29,422 19,488 31,102

Total comprehensive income 2 EU A %58

Dividends received from BUBEDRRE
associates

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share TRIAEEF G| RAEEFEEZREARY
of the amounts of all individually immaterial associates that prAERIFEE AEEL A RIFT(GEEE o
are accounted for using the equity method.

2024 2023
—EU&E —_E—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTT
At 31 December: BR+=—A=+—8:
Carrying amounts of interests E=REE 3,563
Year ended 31 December: BE+-A=1+—HILEFE:
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (F18) = h 2,621
Other comprehensive income TN =
Total comprehensive income ZHEWALLE 2,621
Dividends received from associates B E A RIRE =

During the year, an immaterial associate has declared and EERXN @ —fIEEAKL AT AAEE SR
paid dividends to the Group of RMB1,912,000. FRERE AR, 912,0007T ©
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(a)

OTHER INVESTMENTS

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 25 A B i

Equity securities designated at ~ EEABEBHEMEEBA
FVOCI (non-recycling) BEAREFE (RHE AR
) Z RS
— Listed securities — ks
- Unlisted fund investments —FLEMESKRE

Notes:

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) comprise equity
securities which the Group intends to hold for strategic
purposes, and which the Group has irrevocably elected
at initial recognition to recognise in this category.
RMB5,509,000 of dividends were received on these
investments during the year (2023: RMB4,989,000).

The value of the above investments was individually
insignificant (individually less than 5% of the Group’s
total assets).

16 HthiRE
(a) BREEMEEWRARAAETEZ

RARE
2024 2023
ZEZNEF —T-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
liigz3 ARBT T ARET T
(i) 177,779 183,434
224,461 185,148
402,240 368,582

Wizt -

BAEME2EARAZANEFENSHEE
BREAEBBRBESEENNBRAES - K
BB R ) T R R R 12 N T O M B
REZDERR - FRNAZZRERDKE
ARM5509000L (TE-=%F: ARK
4,989,0007T) °

(i)

LB EEBEERNTER (ERNDRAE
EEEEMNS) °

(if)

ELVE e N S (8] 00
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16 OTHER INVESTMENTS (Continued)

16 EHMKEZ &)

(b) Equity investments at fair value through profit (b) EBEZRBRAABIFEZRAKRE
or loss
2024 2023
—E-NEF —E-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 AR%T T ARBTT
Equity securities, at fair value BAES  BRARE
— Listed securities — FmEs (i) 10,654

Note: st -

(i) During the year, no dividends were received on the (i) RAFEETEREGEBEFIEANETEN
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss RARENRE (ZEZ=F : &) -
(FVPL) (2023: Nil).

17 INVENTORIES 17 78

(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (a) RESMBHRRERZHFEEHE

financial position comprise:

Raw materials R
Work in progress &M
Finished goods and merchandise BURK AN P

Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

2024 2023
—ENEF B
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREET T ARBFIT

17,493 25,982
45,001 27,589
112,938 204,544

175,432 258,115
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17 INVENTORIES (Continued) 17 FE #®)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) WREBEIWFTABZZEFEHEE
recognised as an expense and included in DA :
profit or loss is as follows:
2024 2023
—EE —_ET_=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBFIT
Carrying amount of inventories sold ELGFEERTE 894,797 1,206,189
18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 EWEZ R R HAEWRIE
2024 2023
—EMF —E-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 ARET T ARBEFIT
Current assets RENEE
Trade receivables, IR E 5 BR TR E B B S
net of loss allowance 338,540
Other receivables, L i U SR TR R B 18 B
net of loss allowance () 124,562
PRC value added tax receivables JE U b B 12 (E F 17,565
Receivables from BT 18 W 5k TR
government authority 13,153
Interest receivables FEURFI B 6,650
Dividends receivable from U — R E R RRE
an associate 4,050
504,520
Prepayment and deposits AN FIERIZS (ii) 53,552
558,072
Non-current assets FERBEE
Prepayment and deposits TN FIERZS 46,707
604,779

R AR R B T AR R
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

All of the trade and other receivables in current assets are
expected to be recovered within one year.

Notes.

(i) Other receivables include advances to third parties
of RMB21,197,000 (2023: RMB46,237,000), which are
interest bearing at 6% per annum as at 31 December
2024 and are recoverable within one year. The advances
to third parties are fully secured by collaterals obtained
by the Group as at 31 December 2024.

(i) Prepayment includes freight charges to an associate of
RMB22,031,000 (2023: RMB10,247,000).

Ageing analysis
The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss

allowance) at the end of the reporting period, based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

18 FEWE S HRAKHE M EWRRIE
(4)

MENE AP A FE U 5 B 30 B HL A B IR TR
BEPR—FRKE -

Hrat

(i) HtERREBEBREE = TR RARE
21,197,000 (Z T = = F: AR ¥
46,237,00000) * RZTE-ZWF+=F =+
—HFBA6% AR —FAKE - RZF
—MFE+=—A=+—8B F=HERBELE
EES R IR R R BUER o

(ii) BRRESERN —BHBREAFAINNEE
AR#22031,000c (ZE=_=F : AR¥
10,247,0007T) ©

AR
FEWE 5 B (EHIBRE 1R EE) NiE HIREZ
BERHFTZRE DM

2024 2023

—EToE —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBTT
Within 3 months SMEAR 243,018 189,975
Over 3 months but less than 12 months wBiE3MEAELR12(EA 213,785 136,997
Over 12 months BiE121E8 A 1,846 11,568

458,649 338,540

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 360 days from the
date of billing. Further details regarding the Group’s credit
policy are set out in note 31(a).
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FEWE 2Bk X PSR B i 51302360 H 2 H -
EHASEEEEBRR2E - PHBHNKE

31(a) °



19 LOANS TO ASSOCIATES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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19 REBEATZEK
2024 2023
—EoE —To=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEFTT

Loans to associates RIEHBE N ZER 34,719 33,789

The loans to associates are unsecured, interest-free and are
repayable on demand.

20 DEPOSITS WITH BANKS

REBELRZERABER 28 REARE
SRIEE o

20 RITEX

2024 2023
—E-mE —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Deposits with original maturities FEIHBEA=1EA
over three months 21T 329,600 318,437

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

21 RERRSEEY

(a) BRERRSZEYEE :
2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARET T

Cash at banks and on hand RITRFEES

937,036 990,815

As at 31 December 2024, cash and cash equivalents of
approximately 22% (2023: 19%), 54% (2023: 49%) and 24%
(2023: 32%) were denominated in RMB, HKD and other
currencies, respectively.

R-ZE-ME+-A=+—8  §22% (==
Z=F 1 19%) 54% (ZE =4 : 49%) &
24% (ZZE == : 32%) MR RIREEEY
DRIAARE - BT REMEEEE -

EEVIige i e s (85 20
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 RERBESZEEYW &)

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before taxationto (b) BR & A (B 8) & Fl &k & &
cash (used in)/generated from operations: (Fr#E),/ FR8 R MR
2024 2023
—E N —F-=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hat ARMTT ARBTT
(Loss)/profit before taxation MRl (E18), %A (46,709) 33,238
Adjustments for: FEIER -
Depreciation of investment properties &YW ELIE - W=
and property, plant and equipment KRR #ITE 5(c) 52,522
Amortisation of intangible assets A A 5(c) 590
Finance costs BA MR AN 5(a) 3,924
Interest income FLEMA 4(a) (34,227)
Reversal of impairment loss of ME  BEREEZ
property, plant and equipment AEEER D 4(b) (3,961)
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of HEME - BE KK
property, plant and equipment AR EREE(WE),
and intangible assets BRI 4(b) 1,959
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—ENB AR 4(b) -
Net realised and unrealised gain on @BIERIEALEE
investments at fair value through ZREZEERR
profit or loss RER W F58 4(b) (10,562) (3,164)
Share of profits of associates FEIREE N RS (23,169) (16,358)
Dividend income from other KA EAEE AR BB A
investments 4(a) (5,509) (4,989)
Operating (loss)/profit before BESSEHAINKE
changes in working capital (E518) /%A (61,059) 29,534
Decrease/(increase) in inventories &4~ (3L1h0) 84,972 (19,042)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and FEUE 5 BR 3R K E Ath R Uk
other receivables FIE (380) m A (44,412) 49,476
(Decrease)/increase in trade and BT E SRR R b S
other payables ;g Cfd) /18 (58,916) 24,690
Cash (used in)/generated from KeEsES ()
operating activities FsRE 84,658
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 RERBESZEEYW &)
(Continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) ®RMETBEEZEGELHK:
financing activities:

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilies TERAAEERETHEELEC BEEFIHFE -

from financing activities. Liabilities arising from financing ®EEHELEZBEDARESRECLLIERNR

activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future HREREFNAEEZHGERERERSIER

cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated FIEEEBRERELZBIE ©

cash flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

Lease

Bank loans liabilities Total
RITER HEEE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T ARET T ARMET T
(note 23) (note 24)

(Hfz#23) (Hzt24)

At 1 January 2024 R-ZT-WF—A—H 94,136 29,622 123,758

Changes from financing cash flows: BERERELE

Proceeds from new bank loans ML RITE SRS IA
Repayment of bank loans BEBITER

pa

Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHAERSHERIH
Interest element of lease rentals paid B NHAER S S H

Interest paid ERFE

Exchange adjustments iE W AR

Other changes: Hit& g :

Increase in lease liabilities from RERARET S E TR & i i ey
entering into new leases during HE&aRE
the period

Decrease in lease liabilities from HEBWREEM
lease modification HEABERD

Interest charged RN A

At 31 December 2024 RZBE-_NE+=-A=+—H
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

21 BRERBEEEEY &

(Continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) ERBEEZEEYHER (&)
financing activities (Continued):
Lease
Bank loans liabilities Total
RITER HEEE mEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT ARBTT
(note 23) (note 24)
(K1it23) (Hfz#24)
At 1 January 2023 WZZE-_=F—HF—H 81,721 17,344 99,065
Changes from financing cash flows: BMEERERELE
Proceeds from new bank loans IR E TS I IE 72,900 = 72,900
Repayment of bank loans BEBITER (60,876) = (60,876)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHAEBREHERLSH - (11,509) (11,509)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 2 tFHEMREHH L5 = (388) (388)
Interest paid SRR (3,536) - (3,536)
8,488 (11,897) (3,409)
Exchange adjustments PE H A 391 99 490
Other changes: Hith# g :
Increase in lease liabilities from REARRT S ET & miging
entering into new leases during HEEE
the period - 28,880 28,880
Decrease in lease liabilities from HEBREER
lease modification HEBERD = (5,192) (5,192)
Interest charged FHEFIE 3,536 388 3,924
3,536 24,076 27,612
At 31 December 2023 RZZBZ=F+-_A=+—H 94,136 29,622 123,758
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 BH&RKBEE£ZEY &)
(Continued)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases (dy HERESRHELE

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases FEEFARSRERZSHEBENT A ¢
comprise the following:

2024 2023

—E-mEF ZE-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Within operating cash flows KEReRETP (2,903) (2,243)
Within financing cash flows MERSREF (11,211) (11,897)

(14,114) (14,140)

These amounts relate to the following: ZESHEENTIHEEERA -

2024 2023
—EToE —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT

Lease rentals paid ENHEEHES 14,114 14,140

EEVIig e S s (89 200
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 22
CONTRACT LIABILITIES

FE B SRR
BHEaE
H b SRR N BT B A

Trade payables
Contract liabilities
Other payables and accrued expenses

Ageing analysis BRER D AT
The ageing analysis of trade payables at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

oM

Within 1 month
Over 1 month but less than 3 months
Over 3 months but less than 12 months

1@ AR
Bim1E A B DR3ME B
#BiB31E AE R 12(8 B

Over 12 months HBim12{E A

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows: R -
When the Group receives a deposit before the shop design
and decoration service commences, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue

2024
—E-NEF
RMB’000
AR¥T T

97,834
29,748
41,195

168,777

2024
—E-NEF
RMB’000
AR¥T T

66,119
20,738
4,502
6,475

97,834

HERBWENABESEEK

recognised on the project exceeds the amount of the IREBEEBIEREESEHE o

deposit. The amount of the deposit is negotiated on a case
by case basis with customers.
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BENEZRAREMENKRE
UREHERE

2023
—T-=F
RMB’000
ARETT

144,580
20,874
61,466

226,920

RBERR - REZBHFARNE SRR ZER

2023
—T-=F
RMB’000
ARETT

86,562
53,228
115
4,675

144,580

SESEINPA

BB S R AT RS RS 546 BT KRB E
EREHERHNFARKELANEE EER
BREBNUABBEENEHE - ELNEETY
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 22 EFNEZERERRKHEMENSFIE
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Movements in contract liabilities

Balance at 1 January

Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
recognising revenue during the year that
was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year

Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
receiving sales deposits during the year

Balance at 31 December

UREHNERE &)
EHEEEE
2024 2023
—EMEF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREET T AREF T
R—A—Bz&% 20,874 16,861
FRERFIFAELD
BEZWARERY
AHaERD
(14,851)
FRWEEETES
&z z A #aE®Em 18,864
R+—A=+—H24%&% 20,874

No sales deposits received are expected to be recognised

as income after more than one year.

23 BANK LOANS

As at 31 December 2024, the bank loans were repayable as

follows:

BECUHEESBHASREBEE - FRERS
WA e

23 RITERX

R-ZB-WE+-_A=+—8 " EEEHETE
AT

2024 2023
—E-NE —ETZ=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

45,953 76,653

Within 1 year or on demand 1F AR IR E K
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FZBR2FR
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FEBBREFNR
After 5 years 5% 1%

976 1,283
3,074 4,029
8,000 12,171

12,050 17,483

58,003 94,136

safnamas —2omeek G
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23 BANK LOANS (Continued) 23 RWITER @)
As at 31 December 2024, the bank loans were secured as WR—-_ZE-—MWME+—-HA=+—0  $£T75ZHK
follows: M
2024 2023
—EMEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Bank loans within one year or on demand —FARIZEREER
IRITER
— Secured — HiKHE 76,653
Bank loans after one year —FREENRTER
- Secured — B 17,483
94,136

Certain secured bank loans are all drawn down under certain A ZAREEHEAEEES S A AR 170,687,000
bank facilities secured by certain land and buildings of the T (ZZ==4 : AR#¥179,902,0007T) K&

Group with aggregate carrying values of RMB170,687,000 T+ REFEERMHE TRITEEETHNE
(2023: RMB179,902,000). FHEERBITERD 2 PR -
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23 BANK LOANS (Continued) 23 HRITER (&)

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the banking facilites RZ-ZZE-_WNER-_ET-_=F+-_A=+—8"
were not subject to the fulfilment of the covenants based on (R{TEEHESTERREITRIEE S BEEL
the lending arrangements with financial institutions. Further ZEXRTHIEENEHE - EEAEBREBES
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set  [E & 1 i) — SIS NI TE31(b)

out in note 31(b).

24 LEASE LIABILITIES 24 HE&AE

At 31 December 2024, the lease liabilities were repayableas R-ZE-E+-A=+—H EEEHES
follows: BT :

2024 2023
—EoNF —T_=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBFT
Within 1 year 1FR 9,188 8,313
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FRER2FR 6,927 7,347
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FBIENEFR 8,737 12,994
After 5 years 5% 1& - 968
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 21,309
29,622

AR FRA R TR AR AR
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25 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

As stipulated by the labour regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement plans
organised by municipal and provincial governments for its
employees. The Group is required to make contributions to
the retirement plans at rates ranging from 14% to 16% of the
eligible employees’ salaries for the year ended 31 December
2024 (2023: from 14% to 16%).

Pursuant to the labour regulations of Malaysia and Taiwan,
the Group joined defined contribution retirement plans for
its employees. The Group is required to make contributions
to the retirement plans at the applicable rates ranging from
2% to 15% based on the eligible employees’ salaries (2023:
from 2% to 15%).

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HKD30,000 (2023:
HKD30,000). Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no other obligation for the payment of its
employees’ retirement and other post-retirement benefits
other than the contributions described above.
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25 EERNKER

KETESETRIRE  ~ARELAEEREZ2HE
% fE i T AR 2 B R BT B HE A E BR S BOR IR AT
2 AEBARBE T _WNE+_A=+—
AILSEERABEREEHFEMNI14%E16% (—F
T=F  14%E16%) FRKEF S -

AEBERBERALTRAENS AN SHE
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS
(a) The 2015 share option scheme

On 19 May 2015, a share option scheme was established
which will be used to grant option to selected participants
including but not limited to directors and employees of the
Group in order to provide incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group. As at 31 December 2024, no
option was granted under the 2015 share option scheme.

(b) Share award scheme

Pursuant to a share award scheme approved by the Board
in 2015, the Company may purchase its own shares and
grant such shares to certain employees or consultants of the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
no share has been granted to the Group’s employees and

directors under the share award scheme (see note 7).

The consideration paid for the purchase of the Company’s
shares is reflected as a decrease in the capital reserve
of the Company. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of shares is recognised
as staff costs in profit or loss with a corresponding increase
in capital reserve, which is measured based on the grant
date share price of the Company.
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 27 #SZREHMBMRRERZFEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) #REMBEARRK ZAEFIIEE -
of financial position represents:

2024 2023
—EE —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax AREAFIE — HEREH
Provision for the year KEFEAE -
Tax paid BEAHIE -
Current tax — Overseas ERFIE — AN
Provision for the year NEERE 6,887 1,948
Tax refund R 575 524
Tax paid BEAHiIE (6,121) (1,890)
1,341 582
Balance of Profits Tax provision BEFEZFEH
relating to prior years Bt 1,795
2,377
Represented: =i
2024 2023
—EPUE —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Current tax recoverable ZNHR A] Uit [0 B TR (251) (469)
Current tax liabilities REATRIBEE 3,006 2,846
2,755 2,377
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 27 SREHMBRRARZAESH &
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets recognised (b) ERIAELEHREEE

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in REBZE_ZE_NFR_ZF_=—F+_H=+—
the consolidated statement of financial position and the HBIEFERELE M BRNEKNER ZELER
movements during the years ended 31 December 2024 and HEEZAMRID REBEHT|IWT :

2023 are as follows:

Tax losses

not utilised

RAABBEEE

RMB’000

ARETT

Balance at 1 January 2023 RZEZ=F—HA—Bz#&#H 2,721
Credited to profit or loss FTABZE 483
Exchange adjustments b 5 S 55
Balance at 31 December 2023 R-E-_=F+_A=+—Hz&% 3,259

Balance at 1 January 2024
Debited to profit or loss
Exchange adjustments

R-Z-ME—HA—R &%
BR&EMR
BTN ES

Balance at 31 December 2024

R-E-WNE+-A=+—HAz&%

R RATRA A B T PUARAE R
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27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(s), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
of RMB135,410,000 (2023: RMB117,069,000) in respect
of cumulative tax losses as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will
be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities. The
tax losses for subsidiaries in Mainland China and Taiwan
will expire during the periods from 2024 to 2028 and from
2024 to 2033, respectively. The tax losses for subsidiaries
in Hong Kong and Malaysia do not expire under current tax
legislation.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Pursuant to the tax laws in Mainland China, 10% withholding
tax is levied on foreign investors (5% for foreign investors
who are registered in Hong Kong provided they meet certain
criteria) in respect of profit distributions arising from a
foreign investment enterprise’s profit earned after 1 January
2008.

At 31 December 2024, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted to
RMB228,683,000 (2023: RMB211,792,000). Deferred tax
liabilities of RMB11,435,000 (2023: RMB10,589,000) have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries
in Mainland China and it has been determined that it is
probable that these profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28 EX - HEERKRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) AN 2E

The reconciliation between the opening and closing ARNEBGRAESIMARID 2 FE)REREH
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated ¥EHNEGEAEZEHE A2 TREYRE
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in Rz = {ERIAHK D S FEBELI T ¢
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual

components of equity between the beginning and the end of

the year are set out below:

The Company KAF]
Fair Value
Capital reserve
Share Share  redemption  Capital (non-  Exchange  Accumulated
capital  premium reserve  reserve  recycling) reserve losses Total
MERE
i (FTEA

Bx  RteE  RERE EXRG Ri) ERRRE  RER it
RMBO0O RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO RMB0OO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBIO0D  RMBO0O
ARBTT ARRTT ARRTZ ARMTT ARRTZ ARMTR ARRIZ ARRTR

Balance at 1 January 2023 REBZZE-A-Az&8 21254 2553079 1844 - (101155) (256,837)  (1,272327) 946,758
Changes in equity for 2023: RIEZZFERET .
Profitfor the year EREN = = = - - - 9,158 9,158
Other comprehensive income EEEHRERA
for the year - - - - 247 17,538 - 19,955
Total comprehensive income SEMALE - - - - 247 17,538 9,158 29,113
Balance at 31 December 2023 R-E-=E
TZR=t-RAzf&R 21,254 2,553,979 1,844 - (98,738)  (239,299)  (1,263,169) 975,871
Balance at 1 January 2024 R-E-ME
—-R-Reis 21,254 2,553,979 (98738)  (239,299)  (1,263,169) 975871
Changes in equity for 2024: WIE-MEERES:
Profit for the year EREH 15,890
Other comprehensive income EEY LTI
for the year 34,533 36,061
Total comprehensive income SEMALE 34,533 51,951
Balance at 31 December 2024 R-E-mE
Spieh Scac S 01054 2,553,979 (97210)  (204766)  (1,247279) 1,027822

EEVIig e s 99 200
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28 &% - f#ERKRE #)

(Continued)
(b) Dividends (b)

RE

The directors do not recommend or declare the payment of EFTEFENESRKEE-_T_HFR=FTZ
any dividend in respect of the years ended 31 December =F+ZA=+—HIEFEMNEAEKE -

2024 and 2023.

(c) Share capital (c) MB’A&
Authorised and issued share capital ETE RBBEITIRA
2024
=t Sl
Number of Amount
shares HKD
BREE SHET
Authorised: SEIE
Ordinary shares of HKD0.005 each &R EI{80.005/ 7T 2 & @Mk 10,000,000,000 50,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
At 1 January R—A—H 4,404,018,959 22,020,094
Share repurchased BEERR - -
At 31 December ®+—A=+—8H 4,404,018,959 22,020,094

equivalent
ige)
RMB’000
ARETR

21,254

2023

—T-=F
Number of Amount
shares HKD
BECE SEAT
10,000,000,000 50,000,000
4,404,018,959 22,020,094
4,404,018,959 22,020,094
equivalent
ik
RMB’000
ARETT
21,254

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive ERBFHAEABRUMIFERIKRE @ B
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitted to B —RERMDAIRARTRRIAE LIE—F - F7
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary B EBKREARGIFBREESTEEI =ZHRFE

2
S o

BX

shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium and the capital
redemption reserve is governed by the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands.

(ii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the following:

- The excess of the consideration paid by the Company
over the aggregate of the nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired under the Group’s
reorganisation;

- The difference between the consideration paid by
the Group to non-controlling interest holders and the
carrying amount of the respective non-controlling
interests; and

- The consideration paid for the purchase of the
Company’s shares under the share award scheme.

(iii)

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign currency

Exchange reserve

differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the entities within the Group whose functional
currency is other than Renminbi. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(w).

(iv)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

cumulative net change in the fair value of equity investments
designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that are held at the
end of the reporting period (see note 1(g)).

(v) PRC statutory reserve

Transfers from retained profits to PRC statutory reserves
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and were approved by
the respective boards of directors.
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v) PRC statutory reserve (Continued)

PRC statutory reserves include general reserve, enterprise

expansion fund, and statutory surplus reserve.

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group, which are wholly foreign-
owned enterprises in the PRC, are required to transfer
10% of their profit after taxation, as determined under PRC
Accounting Regulations, to the general reserve fund until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of their registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution of
a dividend to shareholders. Moreover, they are required to
transfer a certain percentage of their profit after taxation, as
determined under PRC GAAP, to the enterprise expansion

fund.

The general reserve fund can only be used to make good
previous years' losses upon approval by the relevant
authority. The enterprise expansion fund can only be used
to increase the entity’s capital or to expand its production
operations upon approval by the relevant authority.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to reduce previous
years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-up
capital, provided that the balance of the reserve after such
conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital of

the subsidiaries.

(vi)  Distributability of reserves

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company may be applied for payment of
distributions or dividends to shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves of the
Company as at 31 December 2024 was RMB1,209,490,000

(2023: RMB1,192,072,000).
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)
(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns to
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to the finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on a basis of a net
debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is
defined as total debt (which includes total interest-bearing
borrowings) less cash and cash equivalents and deposits
with banks. Capital comprises all components of equity.
The net debt-to-capital ratio as at 31 December 2024 is
(87)% (2023: (37)%). During 2024, the Group’s strategy was
unchanged from 2023.

Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

29 COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2024
not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:
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2024 2023
b S 1L —B_=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREETT
13,184 39,598
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Key management personnel compensation and
post-employment benefit plans

Remuneration for key management personnel of the

Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors

as disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid

employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

30 EXBEEIRS

(a) FEEEASHMREBREANT
&

FAEEIEERABFHOBENTAARES

(RME7HE) RETREHMEE (R 8

BE) 228 HEMT

REEERET
RERL 118 A

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

2024 2023
—E_NE T =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥ETTT
13,774 11,123
68 64
11,187

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
5(b)).
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 EXBEFXZ (&)

(Continued)
(b) Recurring transactions (b) RKEMERS
The Group ~EHE
2024 2023
—E-ME —T—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥EFTT
Shop design and decoration services ) R F R R AR 2 JE 4
provided to Primetime Group JEt REERS 26,188
Payment made on behalf of the BEEERKHKEA R
subsidiaries by Primetime Group Ytz oA 44
Other goods and services provided to mEREERME L
Primetime Group B 7 an S RS -
Goods and services purchased BElMEARBE Z2MMm
from associates K AR %% 126,104
Rental and electricity income REBENBZHS
from associates R&EHA 54

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the ZARFEEZRANLBERILZHEBRBERS
above transactions with related parties were conducted HiZ—REEGERET BEBREBHERS
in the ordinary course of business, on normal commercial Z#HaRETT °

terms and in accordance with the agreements governing

such transactions.

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to (c) HFHEBEEXZzLTRAEAM
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of the directors’ 75 8= = 5 Bl K [m) B8 B 8 BIIR (2 SR 1 3R &t &
remuneration and shop design and decoration services HERBZBEIRZBEXK ETREIE14AZAT
provided to Primetime Group constitute continuing TEMBERERS AR RIEREREBAR
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of SETLIHENFUAETERZHERTE -
the Listing Rules, and the Company confirms that it has

complied with the applicable disclosure requirements in

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the relevant

transactions.

EEEVE e N S 205 20



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its
equity investments in other entities.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from cash and cash equivalents and deposits
with banks is limited because the counterparties are
major banks and financial institutions, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored
on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 to 360 days from the
date of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than
1 month past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.

m Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

31 BXERBEERAAE

AEBEHEXEBBEFSINEE RBES -
MEREERR AEBTAXHERNEMER
ZEAE 2 BERE -
ZK’*I?&E;TZ&E#H e R AR EREERIL
B2 T EREIEBER R BN TX -

(a) FERK

EERREHFIERANETMERASEE
ELUBEBEBEZAR AEENEFERBREE
R EWE 5 IR R H b EURIE - REE AT
EHZRERSRRSEEMURBRITERL
EERKRER  BHFHAASERAEER
PRENEZRTREREE EEREEHTE
EERK  UHBUHMAAINEERRHET

=
=

RENE SRR EEMERFIAMNS - HEXR
BE - EEEBRNMBERPEATERNEET
- ZEFRHE TS HE PR MER 2 BERE
NBRIZEREN Yt REPZHEER R
EZREFPREMEMIEERE - RREZ K
FAMFAE B B#ET30E360H N E|H - HH %
Hi—{E A REERBE 2 BEBEARER IR
fEER - AEEMEREERE - AEE R
TEMEPUWHEMRS -

W E Z R
AEEZEERBREFENANEERR S
B (RBREEEFE) FFERKE S RREERE
e AAKENBEEEBRERABTTE
BEPDHMAEAREZRE 2 BEAE - BizaRk
RAEZEBRBBREARENRR P EREE
—FRD



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B A Mt

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 31 BH¥EREERAAE (&)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (@) EERME &)

Trade receivables (Continued) EWE SRR (&)

The following table provides information about the Group’s TFXRIITSEBAREEREWE HESEENE
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables: ERBREREESENER

2024
—EoEF
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
SEEUE =P ES IREZE EiaRAE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
Aok ARBTT AR¥TT

Current (not past due) BUVER (R E) 0.01% 445,658 45
Less than 3 months past due wHA A RABE A 0.1% — 2% 9,289 149
More than 3 months but less than 1 Hi#B:831E A

12 months past due B 121E A 1% — 20% 2,412 362
More than 12 months past due B R A 1218 A 25% — 100% 12,280 10,434
469,639 10,990

2023

—F-=
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TRERR R X RERE EERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000

AT ARETTT ARETT

Current (not past due) BUVER (R HR) 0.01% 319,236 32
Less than 3 months past due BER R 3ME A 0.1% — 2% 7,301 102

More than 3 months but less than 1 EA#B:@31E A
12 months past due BALR121E A 1% — 20% 868 109
More than 12 months past due 15 HA R i 1 21 A 25% — 100% 24,382 13,004
351,787 13,247

R AR R B T AR R
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past three years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

31 HXEREERAARE 2

(a) fFEREMR &)

FEW B 5 8RR (42
EHERAEZBE=—FNERBBELRIE -
% R TR A R R W R S SR B 2
ROBEARI ~ BRI A R AN SR B S R W R TR TR
HIFEMZ EERRNBEZBNER -

FRNEHARUWE ZEFNEERER 2 Z8N
I

Balance at 1 January

Impairment losses recognised during the year £ A2 fERREEIE

MIHE R

Amounts written off

Balance at 31 December

Wt ZRA=+—HZ#&#

2024 2023
—EoE —ECo=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBFIT

13,247 12,463

890 4,964

(3,147) (4,180)

10,990 13,247

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade receivables contributed to the increase in
the loss allowance during 2024:

- increase in days past due over than 3 months but
less than 12 months resulted in an increase of loss
allowance of RMB253,000; and

- decrease in days past due more than 12 months
resulted in an decrease in loss allowance of
RMB2,570,000.

Other receivables

Impairment of other receivables are measured as either
12-month ECL or lifetime expected credit loss, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from banks to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

Within
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31 BBEREERAAE #)

(b) RBEZER
MBECRAREAEEEENABETHBAEE
MER AEENBRREEETHERERSES
FREEDBTHRERE  NEREBENR
ERERARTMENAZCEERE - BAE
NREPHRBDESHR °

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BECR-METZA=T-HLFE

Within Within Undiscounted

fyearor  2yearshut 5 years but Over  contractual Carrying

ondemand  overiyear over2 years 5 years cash flow amount

1N

PED CED AERAH

IREX  BEEIF  EEENF s REhg HREfE

RMB'000

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR  ARETR ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARRTR

Trade and other payables excluding R E ZEHREhEME

contract liahilities (TeEaNER) 139,029
Secured interest-bearing loans B EEN 47697

Lease liahilities HEARE 9,824

196,550

- = 139,029 139,029
1,257 3,772 61,423 58,003
7,301 9,049 26,174 24,852

8,558 12,821 8,697 226,626 221,884

LYl NS S S 209 00

0
I
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 31

FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) RBEZER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BECT-SRT-AST-ALSR

BREREERDAE (&)

Within Within Within Undiscounted
Tyearor  2yearshut 5 years but Over  contractual Carrying
ondemand  over Tyear over2 years 5 years cash flow amount

1ER 2ELA SELA ARRAH
GEER  ERRIF  EEEE BiB5F Reng FHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AR¥TR

Trade and other payables excluding BN E Z&HRE MR

contract liabilities (FBfEaNER) 206,046 - - - 206,046 206,046
Secured interest-bearing loans EEAEET 79,709 1,669 5,006 13,351 99,735 94,136
Lease liabilities Heafk 8,076 7,898 13,643 973 31,490 29,602
294,731 9,567 18,649 14,324 337,271 329,804

I T Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate
risk arises primarily from interest-bearing loans.

Borrowings issued at variable rates and fixed rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk respectively. The interest rates and maturity
information of the interest-bearing bank loans disclosed in
note 31(c)(i) and note 23 respectively.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk to
ensure there are no undue exposures to significant interest
rate movements and rates are relatively fixed. The Group
does not account for any fixed rate financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, and the Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its debt obligations.

(i) Interest rate profile

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s
interest-bearing financial instruments was:

-

Effective

2024 2023
113 “T-=fF
Effective
interest rate RMB’000 interest rate RMB’000
BERAI= ARBTR BIRAIX AREFT
%
2.30% - 3.70% 94,136

%

Variable rate instruments AEFIRTE
Secured interest-bearing loans ~ AEMHEER 2.30% - 3.20%

S 25 A B i

31 BREREERAAE(E)

(c) FIZEZ B
MEEBA—BLRIENARERAKIRS
RERMSMNEEHMEBNER - AEB 2
FERBREZRETEER °

NATEREREFEMNEELNEESRERD
FAZBEeRENERBRREALBENERR -
FAERITERZ M X R EIHE KD IR K &
31(c)(i) R MIFE23 K FE -

>i
e

>

HEH

7

2.
=]

AEE 2 BRAEEEN R R ARERHBE
FEEAMNEEE 2 ER NN RBHEE - XK
B EET AEARBERRRAREIRZERE
NMESBEE  TEUNTESRTAMDMEE
BHEE

(i) RRER
AEBRFERHRZEEMT AR RE
T

Feegaman —2-mass T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 i A P i

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2024, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group’s (loss)/profit after tax and retained
profits by approximately RMB468,000 (2023: RMB753,000).
Other components of consolidated equity would not be
affected in response to a general increase/decrease in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the annualised
impact on the Group’s interest expense that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
floating rate instruments which expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk at that date. The analysis does not take
into account exposure to fair value interest rate risk arising
from fixed rate instruments as the Group does not hold any
fixed rate instruments which are measured at fair value in
the financial statements. The analysis is performed on the
same basis as 2023.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risks primarily through
sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily RMB and HKD. In respect of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the
Group’s policy is to ensure that its net exposure is kept to
an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates when necessary to address short-term
imbalances.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All
foreign exchange transactions involving RMB must take
place through the People’s Bank of China or other institutions
authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange
rates adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are the
PBOC rates.

Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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(c) RFZERM (&)
(i) SHRBEDN

R_Z-_MF+-_A=+—8 " fHf|REE+
A TRI00EEZ  MABHEM T ETREH
HAE A5 AEBHOTEE (B8) 5F &R
BBim A R A 49 AR ¥ 468,000 (=T
— =% : AR¥753,0007T) ° SRA RO EMD
BB ETERFENBEBEHN THEMZ

|| B2 48R
Elf=Z-

NEBRESHMBET  BRERNBEHRLEN
REgg WERNZAPERANERSE@E R
ERENXRARNTRIAR  AEENHE
XA IR FLFE - ARAKE L EFF
BEMRME®RER AR A S ER 8B E M =X
TR BOoMEBEARBEENERTAELENR
AEMNXER SWER-_ZB_=FHNFR—E£
HETT ©

d) HE¥EB
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(d)  Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate.
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31 BBEREERAAE #)
(d) E¥EE &)

(i) B E RO
TRAMAEBERREHACEREENARE
(LNEBEEIAESEUINNEEE) EED
BERBEO -

As at 31 December 2024
(expressed in RMB)
R-ZE-NF+=-—A=+—H

(UAR®Z75)
RMB’000 HKD’000
ARET T FE T
Cash and cash equivalents e RESEEY 21,195 8,220
Overall net exposure BRI FEE 21,195 8,220
As at 31 December 2023
(expressed in RMB)
RZE_=F+="HA=+—H
(AAR®Z5)
RMB’000 HKD’000
AREFIT FHT
Cash and cash equivalents HEeREESEEY 269 8,007
Overall net exposure BT 269 8,007

R AR R B T AR R
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(d)  Currency risk (Continued)

(if)
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s (loss)/profit after tax and retained profits for the
year that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the

Sensitivity analysis

Group has significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming all other risk
variables remained constant. The sensitivity analysis
includes balances between Group companies where the
balances are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currencies of the lender or the borrower.

31 BREREERAAE(#)
(d) EH@EK (&)

(i) SHRBEDN
TEREAMMEEBFAHEZ (BE) &5 RIRE
S ) B 7N 5 (B BT A 2 B K R B Y BB R A TR 5 P
NEF (REBEMAEEMRARFEEFFTE) A58
LR E8 - FRESMEEEE R AME
R MASERTNERASBERAGE
BB AN B EHE -

2024 2023
—E & S
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) Effect on loss (decrease) Effect on profit
in foreign after tax and in foreign after tax and
S eElesh e Eelasb il exchange rates  retained profits
HBEEER A 1% A
Ex RAREB R F e 3 AR B8 4 A
EH(THE) MEE IS PAEN:)) pZ2
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
HKD BT 395 5% 400
(395) -5% (400)
RMB AEE 1,060 5% 13
(1,060) -5% (13)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rate had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to each of the Group entities’ exposure to currency
risk for financial instruments in existence at that date, and
that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rate over the period until the end of next annual
reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2023. Other components of consolidated equity
would not be affected in response to a general increase/
decrease in exchange rates.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments held for strategic purposes (see note 16).

The Group’s major equity investments are listed on the
Stock Exchange and are included in the Hang Seng Index.
Listed investments held in the equity securities designated
as FVOCI portfolio have been chosen based on their longer
term growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations.

At 31 December 2024,
decrease of 10% (2023:
have increased/decreased the Group’s fair value reserve by
approximately RMB18,996,000 (2023: RMB19,409,000).

it is estimated that an increase/
10%) in the share price would

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change on the Group’s fair value reserve that would arise
assuming that the changes in the share price had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments which expose the
Group to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period.

(f) Fair value measurement
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three level
fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the

Level 1

measurement date.
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ZF*@EE%T—#T’E%%E% BRMZBRAREMEEZ
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AEEBNEERAKRERBE AT LT » WHA
BAEH - NIETARBEMEEBAEAR
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

Fair value at
31 December
2024
REZEZNF
+=—B=+-—~H
ZARE
RMB’000
ARET T

The Group REE
Listed investments FhiRE 189,960
Unlisted fund investments 3 EMESHE 224,461

414,421

I T Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

31 H¥EEREERAAE #

RIEFTE (&)
() RBRAREHAEZESHEERERS (B)

B

RAEERFE (B)

- FEIRMAE: AREXRBE_RBAR
BFfE ARENEE—R2AEBRE
ANEE  RTERAERTAEEGEA
HE - TAIBRHAERE SEEREM
BBIEZBARR -

—  FCAEE ARERBEATTER
HWABRHE -

Fair value measurement as at

31 December 2024 categorised into
R=F=-MF+=A=1—-H
BT B2 RAETE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

B -t B=4
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T ARETT

189,960 = =
= 104,600 119,861

189,960 104,600 119,861




FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Fair value at
31 December
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31 BXEREERAAE &)
() 2DRESE (B)

() RBOREFEZEREEREE (&)

AREEREE (B)
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2023 categorised into
RZEZ=F+=A=+—H
BToEz ARERE

2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

i

+-A=+—8
ZARE B—H E_K E=M
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARET T ARETTT ARET T

The Group AEE

Listed investments FTHRE 194,088 194,088 - =
Unlisted fund investments 3f FmEEKRE 185,148 = 62,664 122,484
379,236 194,088 62,664 122,484
At 31 December 2024, the financial instruments of the RIZZE-_WF+-_A=+—H AEBEZLA

Group carried at fair value were equity securities of
RMB189,959,000 (2023: RMB194,088,000) listed on the
Stock Exchange (see note 16). These instruments are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis and their
fair value measurements fall into Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy described above.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there was
no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into
Level 3. RMB36,414,000 of unlisted fund investments were
transferred out from Level 3 to Level 2 because observable
market data became available for the securities.

BEARNSHTAARB AT ETHRAES
AR 189,959,000 (ZTEZ=F: AR
194,088,0007T) (B2 R sE16) - ZE T ALK
BUARENE BEHAREFESEA LM
FIRAARESHEBEE L -

HE-_Z-_NF+_A=+—HLFE F—
HEE—_HRTAHEAWELAEE - TESA
FE=ZMITHE - AK¥36,414,000C A9 IE T &
CREBF=ARTIABAF_HKITE LA
RESTZEESNIBRMISEE -

FIRAEERA R A ] R PR R
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 31 H¥EREERAAE (&)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued) (fy DREFE #E)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (i) RANBEFEZEREEREE (&)
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RAEERLEHE (&)

ZRAREREMAMN G ERMN REARIER
AEERGEESHEHEGREZEEFESHER °

The valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair %
value measurements were determined by the Group’s H
share of the amounts of net asset value of the fund portfolio
investment.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally BE=ZLAAEBEFTEMS  A5E—REZ
engage external valuation experts with the recognised HEABERAIZEETREKITBPLBIINGE
professional qualifications and recent experience to perform  EZRETTHE °

the valuations.

Disclosure of valuation techniques and inputs used in level 3 2 =M AR EFT 2 TR G ERNT REASRER
fair value measurements: %

As at 31 December 2024 RZE_WNF+_A=+—H

Effect on

fair value for

Valuation increase

Description technique Inputs Range of inputs
WAHEEM

it LY=L WAHE gE HAnEnTE

Unlisted fund investments 3 EESKE Market approach Equity value USD3.6 million to Increase
USD5.7 million

Mgk BaEE EEES il
B5TEBET

Discount for Lack 10%-15% Decrease
of Marketability
RZ M5 10%%15%
BT

Net asset value Net asset value USD2.6 million Increase
Unlisted fund investments FLETESKE BEFE BEFE 26EBETL 0

I T Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 31 H¥XEBREERAALE (&)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued) (f) DREFE #E)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (i) RANBEEZEREEREE (&)
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RAEEREHE (B)
As at 31 December 2023 RZEBZ=F+=HA=+—H
Effect on
fair value for
Valuation increase
Description technique Inputs Range of inputs
BABEEM
it AR AR #E HRIAENTE
Unlisted fund investments FLETESRE Market approach Equity value  USD1.3 million to Increase
USD4.2 million
misE BmEE 1.3HBET )l
F42REET
Discount for Lack 5%-15% Decrease
of Marketability
RZ M5 5%Z%15% v
B EALR

EEEu A i 219
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 31 HiXEEKBEERAAE &)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued) (fy DREFE #E)
(i)  Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based (i) REZE=FUQAALEFENEE ZHE
on level 3:
2024 2023
—E-F —Eo=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt AREET T ARET T
At 1 January n—H—H 122,484 89,969
Additions NE 21,577 108,648
Net gain/(loss) recognised in other R E b2 E U AR HER
comprehensive income Bz (E518) F5E 12,252 (35,490)
Settlements A (3,596) (42,478)
Transfers out of Level 3 BE=HITAEEY (i) (36,414) -
Exchange realignment PE 5 2 3,558 1,835
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 119,861 122,484
Note: et -
(i) Transferred from Level 3 to Level 2 because observable (i) HRAIESE@ESNABET SR - &

market data became available for the securities.

The total gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive
income are presented in equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income — net movement in fair
value reserves (non-recycling) in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

I Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)
(iii)

31

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost were not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Estimation of fair values

(9)

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time and
based on relevant market information and information about
the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in
nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant
judgement and therefore cannot be determined with
precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect
the estimates.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair value for each class of financial instruments:
(i) Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, and trade and other payables

The carrying values approximate fair value because of the
short maturities of these instruments.

(i) Interest-bearing bank loans

The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate their fair
value based on the borrowing rates currently available for
bank loans with similar terms and maturity.
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32 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 32 2A@Z&KMBERRE
FINANCIAL POSITION

2024 2023
—E_NE —E-=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARET T ARBFIT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Other investments HEmxE 152,149 149,206
Interest in subsidiaries RSB R R Z R 14 1,740,579 1,679,667
1,892,728 1,828,873

Current assets MENEE
Trade and other receivables FE U B 5 BR 30 K2 EL fih JiE Uk zk0E 4,551 4,670
Cash and cash equivalents BENBSEEY 484,753 445 787

489,304 450,457
Current liabilities REIEE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 BRI B Ath & < 50 IE 1,354,210 1,303,459
Net current liabilities mENEEEE (864,906) (853,002)
TOTAL NET ASSETS BEEFEASE 1,027,822 975,871
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARRHE 28(a)
Share capital [N 21,254 21,254
Reserves (] 1,006,568 954,617
TOTAL EQUITY RS AAEE 1,027,822 975,871

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors R-_TE_FAF=-A_-_t+HAEE=S EREE

on 20 March 2025. FIED o
Cheung Wing Lun Tony Huang Yonghua SR IEE EKE
Executive Director Executive Director HiTEE HITEF
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33 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE

CONTROLLING PARTY
As at 31 December 2024, the directors consider the
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Best Growth International Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does
not produce financial statements available for public use.

34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
ANNUAL ACCOUNTING YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2024
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2024 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

These developments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
ANNUAL ACCOUNTING YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2024 (Continued)

34 E-E_NFE+=—A=1+—

BlLEstFEEHEMERER
MEET - FTIBERIREREN A

ab 8/ =
ﬁbs‘é% (&)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUATHE#g 2%
Ehskk-Eetilalaid

Amendments to HKAS 21 and HKFRS 1, Lack of Exchangeability

1 January 2025

BBEFERE21 R BB HHEERE IR (E57F) - BEIHE ] 5 2 EIIEET —ZE-hRF—A—H
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7, Classification and Measurement of

Financial Instruments

1 January 2026

BBY B EREIN R BB HHEERETH (B51F) GBI ASERTENELT —E-F—A—H
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7, Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting

Standards - Volume 11

1 January 2026

BRI BHEERE 15 - BEUFEREERETS,  BEYBHEEREIN BB BHREERE 105
REBCERAETS  BREEHFREEARH BRI FRAE - F115 “Z-R¥—-HA-H

HKFRS 18, Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
BB B EERE 185 - HBEABHE L L5 HARE

HKFRS 19, Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures
BB B ERIE 195 - FBEEEL AR EANE L 7] - HE

1 January 2027
—E_+F—-H—H
1 January 2027
—ZT-tF—F—H

Amendments to HK Int 5, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —

Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

1 January 2027

T8 —RBESS (BFT1)  BREE - RBESRZEINIBHX — AN EERESEERAZTE

HEHZ D BEHEET

—E-+F—A—H

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture

To be determined

BB FREERE 10 REE R ERIE28% (B5]X) BEREEHAEB L LAz

ABPEZ BN EEN BT BT

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.
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STOCK INFORMATION

Place of Listing: Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited

Stock Short Name: Hengdeli

Stock Code: 3389

Company Website: www.hengdeligroup.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony (Chairman, appointed
on 6 December 2024)

Mr. Zhang Yuping (resigned on 6 December 2024)

Mr. Huang Yonghua

Mr. Lee Shu Chung Stan

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shi Zhongyang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cai Jianmin
Mr. Liu Xueling
Ms. Qian Weiging

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Cai Jianmin (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Liu Xueling
Ms. Qian Weiging

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Xueling (Committee Chairman)

Mr. Cai Jianmin

Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony (appointed on 6
December 2024)

Mr. Zhang Yuping (resigned on 6 December 2024)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheung Wing Lun Tony (Committee Chairman,
appointed on 6 December 2024)

Mr. Zhang Yuping (resigned on 6 December 2024)

Mr. Cai Jianmin

Mr. Liu Xueling

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Ng Man Wai (CPA, FCCA)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square Hutchins Drive
P.O Box 2681 Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 301, 3/F, Lippo Sun Plaza
28 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Correspondence Address

Unit 3807-09, Tower 6, The Gateway
Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
23/F, Tower 2

Enterprise Square Five

38 Wang Chiu Road

Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

Hong Kong

YT Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

REZEERE

SRKBESCAE (EEEEF - 20245F12H6H
Z1E)

RIFEA (2024512 A6 BHE)

BEREE

RBE L

NRIWE
R (& 5 4 (CPA, FCCA)

A B R

Cricket Square Hutchins Drive

P.O Box 2681 Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HAMEERERBTELER LR

BB NBERDIEERE285E
NEKIGESIEIE

B Ak
BEBNERDEEGER
BRI E F6F£3807-09F

% 4]
RELESHREEMBERA A
MEESEHRD

e

R IRE 38R

TEESE N

2HE231E



LEGAL ADVISORS
As to Hong Kong Law

Gallant
5/F, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong

As to PRC Law

Beijing Kangda Law Firm

2301, CITIC Building

No.19 Jianguomenwai Street,
Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay
Grand Cayman, KY1-1100, Cayman Islands

INVESTORS INQUIRY

Ms. Gao Shi
Unit 3807-09, Tower 6, The Gateway
Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2921 9607
Fax: (852) 2375 8010
Email: shi.gao@hengdeligroup.com
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MEDIA INQUIRY

Ms. Gao Shi
Unit 3807-09, Tower 6, The Gateway
Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2927 9607
Fax: (852) 2375 8010
Email: shi.gao@hengdeligroup.com

Ms. Kelly Fung
Unit 802B, 8/F, Tower 1, Admiralty Centre,
18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3150 6763
Fax: (852) 3150 6728
Email: kelly.fung@pordahavas.com
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